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the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong
ER e MM BERRB

the articles of association of the Company adopted by special resolutions passed
on 4 April 2023 with effect from the Listing Date
RRAN2023F4HAA A RIAZRAMARANALZRME - 8 A EREER

the board of Directors of the Company
ARRAEEE

the British Virgin Islands
RERZHE

the chairman of the Board
EE—E

Plus Group Holdings Inc. (EZEM&EBERABMAFT), an exempted company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 30
September 2021, the Shares of which were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date (stock code: 2486)

TEMEBZERAER AT —KMN2021F9A30B IRIEFH 2 B S5 HI s MK 2 095
HEBMRAF - RO LT HERE AT ER 2 (BRMHDMRIR - 2486)

the director(s) of the Company
RARES

environmental, social and governance report to be issued on the same day as this
Annual Report
MAFEMERAEMIIRE Lt kER/WME

fast-moving consumer goods, including non-durable household goods such as
foods, beverages, cosmetics, tobacco, and other consumables
REHER  BEAMAABERAR  RY &8 - bhm - BEEREMBEER

the Company and its subsidiaries
ARRREWEB AR

Guangjun Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability
on 13 September 2021 and owned by Summit Plus and Junshu Holdings as to 99%
and 1%, respectively

Guangjun Holdings Limited * —5K 1 2021F9A13HERBE LS MK LHER
A\ 2 RIESummit Plus & Junshu Holdings#E B 99% & 1% A% 4

Guangjun Sun Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability on 13 September 2021 and wholly-owned by Junshu Holdings

Guangjun Sun Holdings Limited * —Z 7202149 A 13 B E R B R L B & T A /9
ABR AT - BJunshu Holdingsz2 &% A

Hannah Xia Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability on 13 September 2021 and owned by Jonson Xia Smile Holdings and
Jonson Xia Holdings as to 99% and 1%, respectively

Hannah Xia Holdings Limited * —5RA20215F9 A 13 £ R EBRE L H SN E
FRA 7] 9 BlEJonson Xia Smile Holdings & Jonson Xia Holdings # & 99% K. 1% % ##
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Definitions

B=

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEETEEET

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which include standards and
interpretations as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
EAUBHRELER  BEEESHMASRMMWENRZE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
WA SRR R AT IR

Jonson Xia Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability
on 3 September 2021 and wholly-owned by Mr. Xia Jingtang

Jonson Xia Holdings Limited * —5RMA2021F9 A3 ERBE RHETMA I NER
NE BERREETEHRA

Jonson Xia Smile Family Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI on 31
March 2023 and wholly-owned by Mr. Xia's Family Trust

Jonson Xia Smile Family Holdings Limited + —ZK 120236331 B RBE XA S
MKZIH AR - AEEERKELELREHRE

Junshu Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability on
3 September 2021 and wholly-owned by Mr. Sun Guangjun

Junshu Holdings Limited » —RMR2021F9AHE LB R L HEEIME AR A
Al HEBRELXAEZEHE

Kuwei Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability on
3 September 2021
Kuwei Holdings Limited + —=K 1202169 H3H A REBRE XA ETMA AR A A
22 April 2024, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this annual
report for the purpose of ascertaining certain information contained herein
2024564228 - Bl REEARAFERERAEE TERMERIAFERE 2 /T8 &
BAfTHA

11 May 2023, being the date on which the Shares are first listed and from which
dealings thereof are permitted to commence on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange

2023%5A11H8 - AR BEREMBE - BARRIROEEEBIFAERETEE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended
from time to time
BT SH LR - P RHEET

the stock exchange (excluding the options market) operated by the Stock Exchange
which is independent from and operating in parallel with GEM of the Stock
Exchange

B FTEENRER S (T EEIETS) - B R B A FTGEMIL B2 K0 178 1
a discretionary family trust established by Mr. Sun Guangjun as settlor for the
benefit of Mr. Sun Guangjun and Junshu Holdings, of which Trident Trust is a
trustee

HREEREEAZ T AURES &4 Klunshu Holdings &% 3 AR B 2R K
B EBEHRERERATTA

ZUMEEZERERAE —T-=FFRK

T ——
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a discretionary family trust established by Mr. Xia Jingtang as settlor for the benefit
of Mr. Xia Jingtang and Jonson Xia Holdings, of which Trident Trust is a trustee
ESEEAEATIEANESESRL Rlonson Xia Holdings AR AR H2ER
BRIERE  EREREFLEAXIITA

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and
unless otherwise indicated, excludes Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC and Taiwan

REAREME  BpA@Emms ARFESHAHE -
W@ RkEE

TREEE - PEIRFERIT

the prospectus of the Company dated 28 April 2023
ARARHEA2023F4 A28 AMBIRETRE

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BILFE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
PELNETEE®EARE

restricted share unit(s) awarded to a participant under the RSU Scheme
RIEXRHIIRMD BB TREENZRBIRMD BN

the restricted share unit scheme of the Company approved and adopted by the
Board on 13 January 2022
BEEGR2022F1 A13B#L & RIRANA AR BRI 5 B et 2l

software as a service, a cloud-based software licensing and delivery model in
which software and associated data are centrally hosted
FHAIRT S REEEBREREEN —EEm BT R ERER

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended from time to time
BAEOESNERFRBAEGRD - EARERT

ordinary share(s) of par value of US$0.0002 each in the issued share capital of the
Company
RAE B ETRAP G R EE0.0002E 7T B AX

holder(s) of the Share(s) from time to time
D TRBREAE A

the “Plus Group Holdings Inc. 2023 Share Award Scheme” adopted by the
Company on 26 June 2023
R AF2023F 6 A 26 B [ L4 80 & B 2 AR B BR A 712023 F i (5 22 B =+ &1

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BABERSMEBR AR
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“Summit Plus”

['Summit Plus]

“Trident Trust”
[fBEZR{z7E)

"Us$”
=

“0/ "
(o]
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Definitions

B=

Summit Plus International Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI on 10
March 2023 and is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun’s Family Trust

Ssummit Plus International Holding Limited » —RM2023F3A10BEHBR L EE
AMKIH AR HREERGETZERR

Trident Trust Company (HK) Limited, the trustee of Mr. Sun’s Family Trust and Mr.
Xia's Family Trust

BREFR(FEB)BRAR  BEEARKEERERERKERNHZTEA

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
EHBRERBENEETEEET

per cent
Bak

ZRMEBERERAT —T-=FFH®K 5



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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THE BOARD 5Eg

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Sun Guangjun BREESE
(Chairman and chief executive officer) (FERITEAEE)

Mr. Yang Hong Btk e

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Li Jianbo FRRKEE

Mr. Zhong Jiesheng EHRELE

Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES

Mr. Lau Man Tak B @ik

Ms. Li Yingkai TRzt

Mr. Ngan Wing Ho BEKREHE

AUDIT COMMITTEE EREEE

Mr. Lau Man Tak (chairman) BRI @ikt (£E)

Ms. Li Yingkai FER L

Mr. Ngan Wing Ho BRKR LA

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZES

Mr. Sun Guangjun (chairmar) REBERE(E/E)

Mr. Lau Man Tak R ELE

Ms. Li Yingkai EX

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMZEES

Ms. Li Yingkai (chairman) &ML (EE)

Mr. Sun Guangjun REEXE

Mr. Ngan Wing Ho BEKREHE

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BEARME

Mr. Chow Kit Ting (CPA) BBEE SoE(CPA)

Ms. Guo Yan ElE-yoaun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES RERR

Mr. Yang Hong Btk E

Mr. Chow Kit Ting BAEEERE

AUDITOR ¥ B Em

PricewaterhouseCoopers BEERFESFMERE

Certified Public Accountants E S AT

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor AR T B RE1Z 2R

22/F, Prince’s Building BE

Central IR

Hong Kong KFRE21E
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REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN PRC

2F-3F, Building 6

No. 652 Changshou Road

Putuo District

Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Unit 3525, 35/F

Two Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Admiralty

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

AS to Hong Kong law

Eric Chow & Co. in Association with
commerce & Finance Law Offices
3401, Alexandra House

18 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Guotai Junan Capital Limited

26/F-28/F, Low Block Grand Millennium Plaza
181 Queen’s Road

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093

Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman

KY1-1102, Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Merchants Bank Shanghai Caoyang Branch
N0.188 Caoyang Road

Putuo District
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PRC
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBREERE

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
HBEZ12R31HLLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020
2023 20224 20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INGLETA ARETT ARETT ARETTT
Revenue Wz 725,948 618,110 416,289 413,571
Gross profit EH 94,862 173,567 170,249 163,966
Profit for the year FERE A 11,502 52,702 59,010 53,897
Profit attributable to owners of the RNBVER AEGRF
Company 11,502 52,702 58,664 53,874
Non-HKFRS measures: FEBUBREER
AR
Profit for the year FREF 11,502 52,702 59,010 53,897
Add: o
Listing expenses WX 10,709 17,853 8,370 —
Adjusted net profit (non-HKFRS measures) Z AR H GEEH
BIEmE LG E) 22,211 70,555 67,380 53,897
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As of 31 December
BEZ12A31H
2023 2022 2021 2020
2023 F 20224 20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NGB ARET T ARBTT ARETT
Total assets BERE 698,291 627,126 630,710 594,359
Total liabilities BELER 190,109 280,632 305,679 326,922
Total equity R AR 508,182 346,494 325,031 267,437
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 190,976 62,704 20,317 9,110
Bank borrowings RITHER 55,000 61,273 54,800 31,000
EHFEMEREARAT —S-=FFHK 9




Financial and Operational Highlights

MBEREEBRE
SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIO BEMBKLLR
As at or As at or
for the for the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
72023 % 20224
12H31H 12A31H
HEBE=ZH A =% A
IEFE IEFE
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(BE49) (BE49)
Revenue growth’ W aig R 17.4% 48.5%
Current ratio (times)? BN (F)2 3.6 2.2
Gearing ratio® BEAGEL R N/A (net cash)
T iE A
(R&FH) 0.7%
Notes: Hrat
1. Revenue growth ratio equals revenue growth divided by revenue for the 1. g REERWEIERE BT FEMNI
prior year. Erinlk

2. Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by 2. MBI ERFRRDEELERURSDAE
the total current liabilities as at the end of the year end. BEEETE o

BN

3. Calculated by using the net debt divided by total equity as at year end. 3. BREBFERUNFERERRETE - BHF

Net debt is calculated as total bank borrowings, amount due to a BIRIRITIENBE  ENEB I RBEREE
related party and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. BERAEEIREEBYHE -

10  PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.  Annual Report 2023




Financial and Operational Highlights

MBEREEME
OPERATING METRICS EERERZ
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLLFEE Year-on-year
2023 2022 change
2023 20224 BEE
%
Number of paying brand NERMEFPH#E
customers 51 43 18.6
Number of paying distributor NBEEREFPEE
customers 187 127 47.2
Total number of points of sale on  Z2&ti4E B4 & (f172)
a cumulative basis (Note) 4,431,000 4,051,000 9.4
Total number of touchpoints on a 2 EH #5248 8 (F13E)
cumulative basis (Note) 519,000 453,000 14.6
Average monthly active T RERER (HE)
touchpoints (Note) 28,000 23,000 21.7
Note: The number showing above is rounded to nearest thousand. et - EXFIRBITFENBERAZKERN T -

ZHMEEZERERAE —T-=FFK 11




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFRERES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Plus Group Holdings Inc., | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Plus” or the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 and would like to
express my sincere gratitude to all Shareholders and express my
appreciation to all employees of the Group for their unremitting
efforts in the past year.

2023 was the first year for Plus to be listed successfully on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and was also the first year
after the full relaxation of COVID-19 restrictions in China. This year
was of great significance to Plus with strong headwinds and also full
of opportunities.

Looking back at 2023, the consumption downgrade trend of China’s
consumer market has further intensified under the influence of
complex international situations such as global inflation pressure,
recession of key economies, and volatility in the international
financial market. The consumer retail market in China has
experienced a new round of drastic change proven by the gradual
decline in consumer price index (CPl) month on month, the lower
growth rate of retail goods and services, and the year-on-year drop
in the supermarket retail sales value in consumer retail.

Despite the unfavourable industry condition and market environment,
as a well-known sales and marketing service provider, the Group
upheld the concept of informatisation and digitalisation services and
has shown timely insight and adaptation to changes in market supply
and demand. Leveraging on the flexible and versatile capabilities for
digitalisation empowerment and the determination (even at the
expense of lowering the earning expectations), the Group has
consolidated its original market share and, on this basis, taken the
initiative to seize the opportunities of market downturn to strive and
develop more market resources against trend. The operating income
of the Group has achieved increase instead of decrease during the
Reporting Period as well as a better layout for future development.

Meanwhile, the Group has always insisted on the overall deployment
of promoting business growth through business profit model. Our
ability of sustainable profitability got maintained though part of our
own interests have been actively sacrificed from the perspective of
development strategy and market layout.

12  PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Annual Report 2023
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In addition, the Group also persisted
innovation and exploration.

its spirit of continuous

In 2023, we published the “2023 China Offline Digital Marketing
White Paper” jointly with a well-known consulting company; and
further strengthen our capabilities of intelligentisation and
digitalisation.

In 2023, we officially established the “Al + Digital Marketing Joint
Laboratory” with the School of Economics and Management of a
well-known university, and leveraged on our accumulated system
and digital assets.

In 2023, the monthly average number of marketing personnel of the
Group’s FEMS platform exceeded 28,000, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 21.7%, the total number of tasks
completed by the Group’s FEMS platform exceeded 945,000,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 38.2%; the
Group’s FEMS platform achieved over 4,431,000 terminal stores,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 9.4%;
Combining the advantages of its business insights and strong
bonding with customers, the Group has maintained its leading
position in the industry.

Looking ahead to 2024, the Group will remain steadfast to the
service concept of informatisation and digitalisation with deeper
research and understanding of market changes and needs as well as
expansion of more new models of intelligent and digital tool
assisting in business. Efforts will be undertaken to explore new fields
and seek methods of multi-party cooperation while creating greater
and more stable corporate value continuously.

Sun Guangjun
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director

28 March 2024

Chairman’s Statement
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERE WD

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group provides on-site sales and marketing solutions as a well-
known sales and marketing service provider for market-leading
FMCG brand owners and distributors with activities mainly carried
out at offline retail stores, such as supermarkets, department stores
and outdoor promotional activities.

In 2023, especially the second half of 2023, under the impact of the
complex international situation, the trend of consumption downgrade
demonstrated increasingly obviousness in China’s consumer market.
With the decline in consumer demand and consumption ability,
pressure has been brought inevitably to the industry from brands,
distributor customers to service providers.

Under the influence of external environment, the downward trend
has further been showed regarding the overall industry situation of
the offline retail industry the Group deepened in, undoubtedly
bringing great challenges to our development.

In 2023, the Group ultimately achieved a total revenue of
approximately RMB725.9 million during the Reporting Period,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 17.4%. Amid
the challenges, the Group ensured stable revenue while expanding
market share with stronger momentum.

In 2023, the Group achieved the gross profit of approximately
RMB94.9 million which result in a decrease during the Reporting
Period, mainly for (i) active reasons:. Having faced the downward
trend of the industry as not only risks but also opportunities, the
Group has maintained its leading position and market share in the
industry by sacrificing some profit expectations on the premise of
ensuring its own survival. At the same time, it also achieved the
strategic goal of facilitating customers to accelerate the digital
transformation of offline business, laying a solid foundation and
completing the long-term layout for the continuous implementation
of the Group's digital on-site sales and marketing solutions business;
and (i) passive reasons: our brand and distributor customers
adjusted their retail expectations and the investment in offline
marketing and promotion affected by the overall market environment
and the downward trend of the industry and focus on competition
with downstream service providers, thereby indirectly resulting in a
greater squeeze on the profit margin of the industry.

14  PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.  Annual Report 2023
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Customised marketing solution

The purpose of our service of the customised marketing solution is
to develop and implement customised sales and marketing plans for
customers’ merchandise with a view to raising the awareness for
customers’ brand and promoting the merchandise and its sales,
mainly including promotional activities, marketing activities,
roadshows, product launch activities, ordering activities and
appreciation ceremonies.

In 2023, especially the second half of 2023, with the effect of the
general environment including consumption downgrade, changes in
consumption habits and the offline traditional retail cold snap, huge
sales and promotion pressure have been faced by brands and
distributor customers. By dint of its higher degree of digitalization,
the Group grasped the market trend in a timely manner to provide
customers with more accurate terminal placement positioning,
efficient marketing transformation and digital performance analysis
and other services, which fuel with more energy to support
customers to achieve marketing and promotion goals, as well as
actively promoted the digital transformation of offline marketing
business with the help of higher stickiness with customers, so as to
lay a solid foundation for the development of customised marketing
solution.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’'s customised marketing
solution business finally achieved a revenue of approximately
RMB567.6 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 23.5% which maintained growth trend.

Tasks and marketers matching service

The purpose of the tasks and marketers matching service is to
formulate and implement standardised sales and marketing plans for
customers’ merchandise with a view to enhancing their sales
performance.

In 2023, our continuous investment in R&D along with technological
innovation has significantly improved the Group’s intelligent and
digital capabilities as well as the hashrate and flexibility of matching
services as strong support for the in-depth implementation and
implementation of the Group’s digital precision marketing strategy.
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The sales-oriented business witnessed characteristics particularly in
line with the needs of brand and distributor customers in the market
downward trend alongside with the further accumulation of digital
assets such as touchpoint users and terminal data as well as
precise positioning and highly effective marketing matching.

In light of consistency between the market demand and the Group’s
strategy adapted, revenue from tasks and marketers matching
services amounted to approximately RMB114.3 million during the
Reporting Period, representing a vyear-on-year increase of
approximately 39.3%.

Marketers assignment service

Our marketers assignment service aimed for top brand customers to
enable them to experience the digital sales and marketing
advantages with a view to helping us further expand our market and
lay a solid foundation for increasing our market share.

Under the impact of the market environment, leading brand
customers the Group served who engaged in the manufacture and
sales of infant and toddler products, toys and dairy products,
candies and food and daily necessities have reduced or transferred
their promotion and placement in the offline field in 2023, which in
turn caused the Group's hired marketing personnel who assigned to
the offline retail stores designated by customers to perform sales
and marketing to be negatively affected to varying degrees.

As a result, during the Reporting Period, the revenue from marketers
assignment services amounted to approximately RMB32.2 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 34.0%.

SaaS+ Subscription

SaaS+ subscription focused on offering customisation (on an as-
needed basis) and subscription for our readily-available digitalized
tools to support our customers to streamline their sales and
marketing process based on precisely positioning their sales targets.
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In 2023, with the continuous improvement of the Group’s FMES
platform, the development focus of the subscription services has
also been adjusted accordingly. Under the core philosophy of
prioritising the improvement of market share and focusing on the
strategic layout of SaaS+ business development, we took advantage
of the downward trend of the offline retail market and provided
SaaS+ services for small and medium-sized channels and non-chain
terminals without digital and systematic support with rich
preferential policies, so as to expand a large number of new
subscribers.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from the Group’s SaaS+
subscription services amounted to approximately RMB11.8 million.
Despite the impact of the decline in customer unit price on the
overall revenue of the business, the number of existing subscription
customers during the Reporting Period has expanded to 172
compared to 95 in 2022, which covered top brand customers as well
as second-tier brands, channel customers and more non-chain
individual stores.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounted to approximately RMB725.9 million, representing an
increase of approximately 17.4% compared to the same period in
2022. Despite the decelerating growth rate of revenue due to the
impact of consumption downgrade and market environment in the
principal places of business, the Group actively seized opportunities
from market changes to accelerate the digitalization process of
brand customers in marketing and promotion business benefiting
from its digital deployment and operational strategies. Meanwhile,
guidance on services of purchasing have been enhanced for more
small and medium-sized distributors lacking the support regarding
digital marketing and promotion business, thus maintaining a healthy
revenue growth trend.

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWED T

TEC=F BEAREFMESTEH R RT
Z A HEBNEREOCOBE I ELERAR - &
RITTISI5 A RS - )X ESaasS+FE 5% R B
HRRENZLEIT ERTITEME T
TR KAEENEERIZT  BRZ
BFCRRGFOT /N REEIFEREK
iR SaaS+MRTS - ALLHE L T KEMETH
& e

REHA - NEESaaS+7T B R BB WAL
ARB1N1SEEL - BB ARTREE
TEMAEFE BREFANFEFEENTH
EPFEHRRI TI2R M =Z=_F /9%
R EHPNSETHESNREES  tiRE
TZRHEDE RERFEEZMNIEEHE

pet:::)
=S ©

Bt %5 o R

A

AREBEE2023F12A31H FRABKADAR
B7259BB BT W2022F A KLY
17.4% - WARIBRREHI T EEEHBEE
RAREMERBESZERAMBE BRER
AEBERHEFCFEEL BN - T8ED
MSEE L HE  RMEREREEPES
HEREBHHEFLER RARKBETE
ZRIVBFCEHERERHEXENPNRE
BRBRS - EMERFEEEOBABRE

ZHMEEERERAT —B-=FFHK 17

——



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFWED

The revenue breakdown of the four business segments is as follows: UK ZE kR W A BT ¢

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

Percentage of

Percentage of  Year-on-year

2023 total revenue 2022 total revenue change
EEBA =V ON
2023 F AL 2022 B RFEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Revenue from: REUTEBRREIUA
Customised marketing solution EHEHEBATR 567,647 78.3% 459,623 74.3% 23.5%
Tasks and marketers matching 8L A B TR
service 114,303 15.7% 82,062 13.3% 39.3%
Marketers assignment service EHABIRE IR 32,173 4.4% 48,713 7.9% -34.0%
SaaS+ subscription SaaS+&] 11,825 1.6% 27,712 4.5% -57.3%
725,948 618,110 17.4%
1.  Customised marketing solution EHEHEBRT R
Revenue from the customised marketing solutions amounted to TE Hil & S AR RN A B E 202312 A
approximately RMB567.6 million for the vyear ended 31 3B IEHARES7.6EHE T » 82022
December 2023, representing an increase of approximately FRAMEHARKI108.06E T #EE
RMB108.0 million or approximately 23.5% as compared to the BEXAE235% - FEHRAEEEH
same period in 2022. This was mainly because the Group TTEBEMMMED  TETRBAE
maintained its placement in marketing and promotion of long- mEREEHEEREERNNE D - A
term cooperative brand customers in the industry leveraging NESIEHE A REMTEZETIRBE
on its industry leading position and the customised marketing & BEREAESRE EEFNT
solutions, with the support of digitalization, managed to BT THREFNNAEERESETES
implement correct placement and management empowerment. NEFPERERERFPIERIZHAKS -
In the downward market environment, these features enabled
the Group to obtain more new customer resources and
opportunities for expanding the placement with existing
customers.
18  PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Annual Report 2023

e -




Tasks and marketers matching service

Revenue from the tasks and marketers matching service
increased by approximately RMB114.3 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB32.2 million or approximately
39.3% for the year ended 31 December 2023 as compared to
the same period in 2022. This was mainly due to the high
consistency between the result-oriented attribute of tasks and
marketers matching service and the needs of brand customers
for retail consumption under the current environment. In
addition, through continuously focusing on development and
technological innovation, greater hashrate and more intelligent
matching ability have been obtained to brace the further
significant increase in revenue scale of tasks and marketers
matching service.

Marketers assignment service

Revenue from the marketers assignment service amounted to
RMB32.2 million representing a decrease of approximately 16.5
million or 34.0% for the year ended 31 December 2023 as
compared to the same period in 2022. This was mainly due to
the fact that the top brand customers served by the Group
reduced the fixed investment in points of retail to varying
degrees beginning from the end of the second quarter of 2023
led by the weak sales of offline retail stores, especially large
supermarkets as well as the consumer retail market. As a
result, the Group also cut down the number of marketing
employees assigned to customers’ designated offline retail
stores to perform sales and marketing causing decline in
revenue level.

SaaS+ subscription

Revenue from the SaaS + Subscription service business
segment amounted to approximately RMB11.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB15.9 million or approximately 57.3% as
compared to the same period in 2022. The main reason was
that SaaS + products and services of the Group have been
increasingly mature and improved through continuous
innovation and development. For the subscription service, the
customised services of leading brand customers have
consequently decreased as the proportion of standardised and
integrated functional subscription service grew contributing to
constant increasing in the number of customers while
declining in the relevant unit price.

B ——
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Cost of services, gross profit and gross profit margin

The total cost of services of the Group increased by approximately
42.0% to approximately RMB631.1 million for the year ended
December 2023 compared to approximately RMB444.5 million in
2022. The increase is mainly due to the increase in the cost of
services of the Group in order to stabilise its leading position and
market share in the industry as well as to implement its
development strategy and layout of market, taking into account the
complex market and external factors. Among them, the staff
remuneration expenses serves as the key contributor, which
increased by approximately RMB178.4 million to approximately
RMB427.2 million for the vyear ended 31 December 2023,
representing a year-over-year growth of approximately 71.7%.

The total gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately
RMB78.7 million to approximately RMB94.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, representing a year-over-year decrease of
approximately 45.3%. This was mainly due to the fact that during the
Reporting Period, the Group, as always, focused on expanding the
market share and improving the overall digitalisation transformation.
The market shares have realised expansion against the trend despite
the decline in the gross profit resulting from the rising cost of
services affected by the retail market environment in 2023. The
organisational structure for sustainable discovery of the Group have
been preserved and strengthened with gaining more customers and
distributor resources while its development strategy achieved
implementation. Meanwhile, our overall operation was on a track of
maintaining profit at a sustainable level.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of employee salaries, the
Listing expenses, office expenses, etc. Administrative expenses
increased by approximately 18.9% from approximately RMB77.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB92.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2023, which was
mainly due to the increase in employee salaries and office expenses
as a result of the increase in the bonus and the operation expenses
incurred from the newly set-up of branch offices during the
Reporting Period.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling expenses primarily consist of employee salaries, which
increased by approximately 9.3% from approximately RMB19.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB21.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, mainly due to the
increase in staff costs of the Group.
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Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses primarily consist of labour
costs and other research and development costs. Research and
development expenses increased by approximately 17.2% from
approximately RMB25.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB29.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, mainly attributable to the increase in the
investment in manpower costs for R&D and system development
expenses by the Group in order to strengthen digitalisation and
enhance its information technology service capabilities.

Other Income

Other income decreased by approximately 27.2% from approximately
RMB27.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB20.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, which was mainly due to more government financial support
in 2022.

Other gains — net

Other gains — net increased by approximately 4,460.0% from
approximately RMB1.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB45.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, mainly due to the reversal of refundable amount from social
security payments by the government in relation to the relief of the
impact of COVID-19 of approximately RMB38.5 million as well as
higher exchange gains amounted to approximately RMB7.1 million
recognised from the proceeds raised in the public offering
denominated in Hong Kong dollars during the Reporting Period as a
result of the significant appreciation of Hong Kong dollars in the first
half of 2023.

Impairment losses on financial assets

Impairment of assets decreased by approximately 33.3% from
approximately RMBO0.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMBO0.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, mainly due to the decreased expected credit loss allowance
for contract assets.

Finance costs — net

Net finance costs decreased from approximately RMB2.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB1.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023. The decrease in net finance
costs was mainly due to the increase in interest income from the
proceeds, which offset the interest expenses arising from
borrowings.
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Income tax expense

Income tax decreased by approximately 68.6% from approximately
RMB23.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB7.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Profit attributable to equity owners of the Company

Profit attributable to equity owners of the Company decreased by
approximately 78.2% from approximately RMB52.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB11.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents increased by approximately 204.6% from
approximately RMB62.7 million as of 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB191.0 million as of 31 December 2023, mainly due
to the net proceeds from the Company’s initial public offering of
approximately HK$206.7 million after deducting underwriting fees and
other related expenses paid in 2023.

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure increased by approximately 125.0% from
approximately RMBO0.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMBO0.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, mainly due to the acquisition of servers to enhance the
Group’s information service capabilities.

Material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

As of 31 December 2023, save as disclosed in this annual report, the
Group had no material acquisitions, and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

Plans for material investments or acquisition of capital
assets

As of 31 December 2023, save as disclosed in this annual report and
the Prospectus, the Group had no future plans for material
investments or acquisition of capital assets.

Pledge of assets

As of 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material
pledge of assets.
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Liquidity and capital structure

The Group's primary uses of cash are for funding of its working
capital requirements, repayment of loans and related interest
expenses. As of the date of this report, the Group has funded its
operations principally with cash generated from operations,
borrowings and net proceeds from the Listing.

In the future, the Group believes that its liquidity requirements will
be satisfied with a combination of cash flows generated from
operating activities, bank loans and other funds raised from the
capital markets from time to time.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB191.0 million, which was mainly funded from
the net cash flows generated from operating activities and net
proceeds from the Company’s initial public offering of approximately
HK$206.7 million after deducting underwriting fees and other related
expenses paid in 2023. As of 31 December 2023, the balance of
borrowings was approximately RMB55.0 million, all of which are with
fixed interest rates and due within one year.

During the Reporting Period, the newly-added bank borrowings
amounted to RMB85.0 million; repayment of bank borrowings
amounted to RMB91.3 million. The unutilised banking facilities as of
31 December 2023 amounted to approximately RMB10.0 million. The
bank borrowings are denominated in RMB and the weighted average
interest rate was 3.95% per annum as at 31 December 2023. The
Group has complied with the financial covenants of its borrowing for
the year ended 31 December 2023. The Company did not utilise any
financial instrument for hedging. The Group has maintained sufficient
liguidity to satisfy its day-to-day management and capital
expenditure requirements and is able to control its internal operating
cash flows.
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The Group's objectives for capital management are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
the shareholders’ value. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to the structure in order to have funds
available to support the business activities which the Board intends
to pursue in addition to maximising the return to shareholders. In
order to carry out current operations and pay for administrative
costs, the Group will spend the existing working capital and raise
additional amounts as needed. Management evaluates the capital
management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this
approach, given the relative size of the Group, is reasonable.

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange on 11
May 2023. Save as disclosed in this annual report, there has been
no change in the capital structure of the Company since then. As at
the date of this annual report, the capital structure of the Company
comprised mainly issued share capital and reserves.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s major business operations are located in the PRC, and
thus the principal revenue and costs are denominated in RMB, and
have certain cash and bank balances are denominated in Hong Kong
dollar due to net proceeds from the Company’s initial public offering
in 2023. As a result, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk.
The Group currently had no foreign currency hedging plan. However,
the management of the Company monitors the foreign exchange
fluctuation risk and considers hedging significant foreign exchange
fluctuation risk when necessary.

Contingent liabilities

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities, which was the same as that of 31 December 2022.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group’'s employees include its own employees and associates.
Its own employees refer to the employees for the Group’s
operations, including finance and information technology. Associates
refer to those who are assigned to work on client premises. As of
31 December 2023, the Group employed 8,137 employees (2022:
8,559).

Employee remuneration is determined with reference to similar
market rate and the performance, qualifications and experience of
individual employee. In addition to the basic remuneration, year-end
discretionary bonus will be offered to employees with outstanding
performance to attract and retain eligible employees to contribute to
the Group.
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE REGARDING THE
QUALIFIED OPINION

As set out in the consolidated financial statements, a qualified
opinion on the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (the “Qualified Opinion”) was issued by
the auditor in relation to the Group's investment in two Funds (as
defined in the consolidated financial statements) classified as
financial assets in the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Reporting Period. The Funds were HK$30,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB27,187,000) and HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to RMB9,062,000)
respectively with a guaranteed return rate of 5.15% and 5.10%
respectively. As the Funds were not cooperative and did not provide
any statement nor information despite repeated requests, the
auditor was unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence to support the
audit procedures in relation to the commercial substance as well as
the accuracy, existence, classification, valuation and presentation of
the Funds, and whether the effects of these transactions related to
the Funds, including the related cashflows, have been properly
accounted for and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Impact on the Company’s financial position

The total investment amount of the Funds that is subject to the
Qualified Opinion is HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to RMB36,249,000),
and the management of the Company (the “Management”) have
redeemed all principals of the Funds together with portion of return
in aggregate amounted to HKD40,330,000 (equivalent to
RMB36,595,000) in March 2024. In the event the outstanding
guaranteed returns of the Funds could not be collected, such
amount would be less than RMBO0.8 million and is not expected to
have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial results
and continuing operations.

Since the carrying amounts of the Funds as at 31 December 2023
will appear as the opening balance in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2024, the auditor and
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) are of
the view that the Qualified Opinion may have carry forward effect on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ending
31 December 2024. However, the Management will continue to
proactively negotiate with the Funds to obtain the supporting
documents regarding the Company’s investment in the Funds.
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Management’s view on the Qualified Opinion

Based on the discussion with the auditor, the Management agreed to
the above Qualified Opinion on the following basis:

(1) despite the fact that the Company had been in discussion and
negotiation with the Funds and redeemed these Funds in
March 2024 and collected the investment principal together
with return amounted to HKD40,330,000 (equivalent to
RMB36,595,000), the amount of the return collected upon the
redemption of the Funds is less than the amount calculated
based on the guaranteed return rate of 5.15% and 5.10%
respectively;,

(2)  despite the Management's repeated requests, the Funds were
not cooperative and did not provide any statement nor
information about the transactions, the balances and the value
of the Funds during the Reporting Period or provide any
explanation of the shortfall in guaranteed return; and

(3 the Management noted the limitation for the auditor to obtain
sufficient supporting documents in relation to the commercial
substance as well as the accuracy, existence, classification,
valuation and presentation of the Funds, and whether the
effects of these transactions related to the Funds, including
the related cashflows, have been properly accounted for and
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as at and for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

There is no difference in views between the Management and the
auditor with regard to the Qualified Opinion.

Management’s action plan to address the Qualified
Opinion

To address the Qualified Opinion, the Management has adopted/will
adopt the following action plans:

(1) the Management has redeemed all principals of the Funds in
March 2024;

(20 from now on and up to the issuance date of the next year’s
financial statements, the Management will continue to
proactively negotiate with the Funds to obtain sufficient
supporting documents to satisfy the audit procedure as well as
request for repayment of outstanding guaranteed returns of the
Funds. The Management will also consider taking legal actions
against the Funds (including issuing demand letter to the
Funds) in order to recover the outstanding guaranteed returns
of the Funds; and
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(3)  the Company has resolved to carry out the more comprehensive
internal control measures to prevent the re-occurrence of
similar incidents relating to its future investment, including but
not limited to:

(i) strengthen treasury and investment policy, including but
not limited to require more sophisticated supporting
documents and discuss the audit requirement with the
auditor before entering into any new material investment
agreements (if necessary),

(i)  establish an investment committee consisting of
Director(s), key personnel of the financial department and
the compliance department to review investment
decisions and the implementation of investment policy;
and

(i) enhance the communication mechanism between the
investment committee, the Management and the Audit
Committee and intended to increase the frequency of
meetings between the investment committee, the
Management and the Audit Committee to identify any
unusual situations in respect of financial reports as early
as possible.

The Board (including the Audit Committee) is of the view that the
above action plan will be effectively implemented and since the
principals of the Funds have been fully redeemed as at the date of
this annual report, the Qualified Opinion is not expected to have a
material impact on the next year's financial statements of the
company.

Audit Committee’s view on the Qualified Opinion

The Audit Committee has held several meetings with the auditor and
the Management to understand the Qualified Opinion and the
judgment of the Company’'s Management. Based on the discussion
with the auditor and the Management, the Audit Committee of the
Company agreed with the Qualified Opinion and concurred with the
view of the Management as set out above. Both the Board and the
Audit Committee will endeavour to remove the Audit Qualifications
in the soonest practicable.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 6 March 2024, a subsidiary of the Group issued a cashier's
check for a total amount of HK42,000,000(equivalent to
RMB38,122,000) (the “Cashier’s Check”) with itself as the payee from
a commercial bank in Hong Kong for the purpose of assisting in
proving the financial capacity of the Group in order to meet the
capital verification requirements for a potential acquisition, which is
still in the initial negotiation stage and has not made any substantive
progress as of the Latest Practicable Date.

Other material events after the Reporting Period and details of the
events above are disclosed in note 21 and note 23 of the
Ccompany’s consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

OUTLOOK
In 2024, we will focus on the following key directions:

1. The Group is committed to continuing to enhance its sales and
marketing capabilities, to the extent of increasing and
consolidating the market share of its operations, and explore
the service potential for intelligent and digital services. The
Group will continue to deepen the service market for the
brands and distributor customers, while enhancing our
business service profit expectations in all aspects, and to lay a
solid foundation for the Group’s persistent operations.

2. The Group will continue the digital business layout of retail
distributors. (i) By further deepening the cooperation with a top
international member chain retailer and a top new retailer in
PRC, the Group will improve the integrated service of retalil
marketing with a view to its excellent brand resources to
obtain more expansion opportunities for digital marketing
business, and (i) will collaborate with 200,000 non-chain
individual stores or the Group's digital tools and products will
be launched in PRC, which is to extend the Group's digital
coverage and service scope, and also to obtain data assets
that are almost in blank blind spots.
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We will consistently strengthen the Group’s core technology
capabilities and basic research and development, continuously
upgrade and iterate the digital empowerment capabilities
adapted to market environment and apply Al tools for offline
scenarios, so as to improve and maintain our leading business
innovation and development capabilities and ensure the
implementation of the Group’s core strategy of profitability.

To be involved in new retail industries (instant retail, home
delivery service), through cooperation with senior pioneers in
relevant fields, the Group will gather its data accumulation in
distributors, stores, touchpoints and other aspects to create
higher and greater value in new fields. At the same time, it will
also deploy in advance to obtain more empowerment services
for retail stores.

In the context of industry downturn, the Group will actively seek
high-quality assets, optimise and integrate various carrier
resources through strategic investment, acquisition and other
major cooperation, so as to achieve rapid expansion of
business layout and contribute to the comprehensive
development of the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Sun Guangjun (BREE), aged 53, is our Chairman, chief
executive officer and executive Director. Mr. Sun is responsible for
overall management of our Group’s business operation, making key
operational and business decisions, financial decisions, as well as
formulating business development plans for the Group.

Mr. Sun has over 27 years' experience in marketing and business
development. He held various positions at Procter & Gamble
(Guangzhou) Ltd.* (ZZ (EM) AR F]) from September 1993 to
July 1999, including key account manager, unit manager, laundry
project manager of customer marketing (mainly responsible for
customer business development of fabric care products), market
manager and regional sales manager of the South China market.
From August 1999 to August 2001, he worked at Reckitt Benckiser
Household Products (China) Limited* (F;Z285R{E (&) BRAA]) as
a national key account manager, where he was mainly responsible
for international and regional key account business and reporting
directly to national sales director. Prior to joining Unilever Services
(Hefe) Ltd.* (B& FIERK (AE)BRAA), Mr. Sun was the
person-in-charge of Shanghai Betterway Market Development Service
Co., Ltd. Guangzhou Branch* (L8 HEBHEMBHMRRFEER QA
E M5 A7), until October 2004. From February 2004 to December
2006, Mr. Sun worked as a sales development director, a regional
general manager, a customer market director and a regional
customer development director at Unilever Services (Hefei) Ltd.*
(BtA FZER (ABE) BB A7), where he was mainly responsible for
developing business strategies and implementation plan. From
February 2007 to January 2009, he served as a general manager of
UPM Raflatac (China) Co., Ltd.* (FEERZE (RE)ERQF),
formerly known as UPM Raflatac (Changshu) Co., Ltd.* (ZFBtE =12
% (H) AR A7), where he took charge of the overall business
operation in China. Mr. Sun joined our Group in September 2008 and
principally devoted his time and resources to our Group. Mr. Sun has
held various positions in our Group. From September 2008 to June
2015, Mr. Sun held the position of executive director of Plus
Shanghai. Mr. Sun has been acting as the chairman of the board of
directors of Plus Shanghai since June 2015. Mr. Sun also served as
the general manager of Plus Shanghai from February 2009 to
October 2015, and has been acting as the general manager of the
same since January 2016.

Mr. Sun obtained a bachelor's degree in polymer physics from
University of Science and Technology of China (R Bl R} flT A ) in
July 1993 and an EMBA degree from China Europe International
Business School (7 BX B FR T /% & 6x) in September 2008.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yang Hong (#3#), aged 57, is our executive Director and vice
president. Mr. Yang is primarily responsible for overall management
and operation of our Group.

Mr. Yang has over 24 vyears' experience in the marketing and
business development. From July 1999 to May 2006 and from June
2006 to April 2008, Mr. Yang worked successively as a deputy
general manager of Betterway (Shanghai) Marketing Solutions Co.,
Ltd.* (/8 BERHmisHRERE AR A F]) and Betterway Marketing
Solutions Co., Ltd. (/BEZEBRHEEHERB AR AR respectively,
where he was mainly responsible for the business development. He
served as a vice president of Guangzhou Grey Star Echo Marketing
Communications Co., Ltd.* (BMERTEFEELEFZAERAE)
from April 2008 to September 2011, where he was mainly
responsible for the functional operation of the company such as
financial work, administration, human resource and IT.

Mr. Yang has held various positions in our Group. From October
2011 to June 2014, Mr. Yang served as the financial controller of
Plus Shanghai. Mr. Yang has been acting as a deputy general
manager since January 2013 and a director since June 2015.
Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’'s degree of science in physics
education from Suzhou University (&f/NAKZ) in June 1989.

Mr. Li Jianbo (Z#R), aged 53, is our non-executive Director. Mr. Li
is primarily responsible for supervising and providing professional
opinion and judgement to our Board. Mr. Li served as a director of
Plus Shanghai from December 2015 to June 2021.

Mr. Li has over 27 years' experience in marketing and management.
From July 1995 to April 1999, he worked at the product supply
department of Procter & Gamble (Guangzhou) Ltd. (BEMBERZERE A
Al). From April 1999 to January 2011, he served as a director/
partner of IBM China Company Limited*, Guangzhou Branch (BIBX &
XMz (FE) BRAFEMS AR, where he was mainly
responsible for running Great China Group consulting business for
the general business segment. From March 2011 to April 2016, Mr. Li
then served as an executive vice president and subsequently the
president of Yonghui Superstores Co., Ltd. Gk 3BFB T AL (D B R A 7)),
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
601933.SH). Mr. Li founded Guangzhou Yoorstore Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (BMNEBERFEAER2AR]) in November 2016, where he served
as a director until January 2020. He has been acting as the chief
executive officer of Yonghui Fresh Food Development Co., Ltd.* (5
B REERARAR) since February 2020.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor's degree of engineering in economic
management from University of Science and Technology of China (
B R E 4 4iT K E2) in July 1993, and a master’s degree of engineering
in management science from the same university in July 1995.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Zhong Jiesheng (##£4), aged 51, is our non-executive Director.
He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing professional
opinion and judgement to our Board.

Mr. Zhong has over 27 vyears' experience in marketing and
management. From July 1995 to June 2015, Mr. Zhong served at the
customer business development department at Procter & Gamble
(Guangzhou) Ltd.* (EMBEZABR AR, where he was primarily
responsible for management of sales department and overall
management of business operation, respectively. From May 2016 to
November 2021 and from May 2016 to July 2021, respectively,
Mr. Zhong served as a director and the general manager of Chengdu
Macko Macromolecule Materials Co., Ltd* (AX B8Rl m 5 FM RIS
BR A7), respectively, whose shares are listed on the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations (stock code: 836843), where he
was mainly responsible for developing business strategies and
building up the business development team. Mr. Zhong co-founded
Shanghai Baoju Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* (E/8E
FEHEEEAMAAGRAA) in October 2021 and has been serving as
the executive director and legal representative since then. Mr. zhong
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in computer science from Sichuan
University (F9)11K28) in July 1995.

Ms. Li Yingkai (ZZ#B8), aged 53, is our independent non-executive
Director and is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent advice on the operation and management of our
Group.

Ms. Li has over 17 years' experience in management. Ms. Li joined
Shenzhen Kaijiangyuan Trading Co., Ltd.* (RIITSTREEBR A
A]) (previously known as Shenzhen Yizhi Convenience Advertising
Co., Ltd.* (RYIT —4EFESHR QA in June 2006, and served
as an executive director until December 2009, where she was mainly
responsible for the general business management. From September
2008 to November 2017, Ms. Li acted as an executive director of
Shenzhen lJiayu Chuanxin Advertising Co., Ltd.* (FJITESEEES
BRRAF]). From May 2009 to June 2011, Ms. Li worked as the legal
representative of Shenzhen Lisheng Damei Advertising Co., Ltd.* (&
I FEEESERAQR]). Ms. Li has been acting as a director of
Guizhou Laymau Wine Industry Co., Ltd.* (E/MBFEZGR A7)
since October 2014. She has also been acting as a supervisor of
Shenzhen Kaijiangyuan Trading Co., Ltd.* (RINTSTREEBR A
Al) since January 2019. Ms. Li has been acting as the legal
representative, general manager and executive director of Tibet
Hanze Trading Co., Ltd.* (FEHEIHZEFEZ B R A F]), of Haorun Holding
Investment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (& REZERREE ORYI) BRAF]) and
Hangzhou Huihan Trading Co., Ltd.* (fn/NIE# R EH R R F]) since
April 2019, May 2019 and June 2019, respectively.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Li obtained a bachelor's degree of engineering in chemical
engineering in July 1992 from Nanjing Tech University (R 3R L2 AKE)
(previously known as Nanjing Institute of Chemical Technology (F3 =
{ETEBx)), and a master's degree in business administration in
December 2000 from Auckland Institute of Studies (272 RIZ6R) in
New Zealand.

Mr. Lau Man Tak (2IXfE), aged 54, is our independent
non-executive Director and is primarily responsible for supervising
and providing independent advice on the operation and management
of our Group.

Mr. Lau has over 21 years’ of experience in finance and accounting.
Mr. Lau is currently the chairman and a non-executive director of
REF Holdings Limited (stock code: 1631); and an independent
non-executive director of ISP Holdings Limited (stock code: 2340),
which are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lau was an independent non-executive director of
Kingston Financial Group Limited (the shares of which were
withdrawn voluntarily from listing on the Stock Exchange on
27 February 2023) until his resignation on 8 March 2023. He was an
executive director and chairman of TEM Holdings Limited ("TEM")
since 2015 and was re-designated as a director in January 2021
upon the withdrawal of the listing of TEM by way of privatisation. He
was also an independent non-executive director of Chinese Food and
Beverage Group Limited since February 2019 until his resignation
upon its cancellation of listing on GEM of the Stock Exchange on
13 July 2021.

Mr. Lau graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (B8 T 26t) (now
known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University (&% T A £)) with a
bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy in November 1991. Mr. Lau
is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of each of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in United Kingdom, the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, and the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute.
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Mr. Ngan Wing Ho (BEXX), aged 49, is our independent
non-executive Director and is primarily responsible for supervising
and providing independent advice on the operation and management
of our Group.

Mr. Ngan has over 23 years' experience in senior management
positions in investment banking, corporate, and entrepreneurship
areas. In November 1999, Mr. Ngan joined Lehman Brothers Asia
Holdings Limited as an analyst in the equity capital markets
department. In May 2001, Mr. Ngan joined HSBC Markets (Asia)
Limited as an associate in the equity capital markets department.
From July 2004 to August 2008, Mr. Ngan served as the head of
Taiwan equity capital markets at UBS AG. From September 2008 to
December 2010, Mr. Ngan served as the executive director, head of
equity syndicate and block origination, Asia in Global Banking and
Markets, at the Royal Bank of Scotland N.V. (formally known as ABN
AMRO Bank N.V.). From March 2014 to June 2015, Mr. Ngan served
as the managing director, head of equity capital markets at Huatai
Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited. After leaving Huatai Financial
Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited, Mr. Ngan served as a group vice
president mainly responsible for investment and mergers and
acquisitions at Sanpower Group Corporation* (ZfBEBE B R A7) in
China. From December 2016 to June 2017, Mr. Ngan served as an
executive director and the chief financial officer at C.banner
International Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1028.HK). He
was also appointed as a board member of Hamleys Global Holdings
Limited in the United Kingdom from April 2016 to September 2018.
Mr. Ngan then served as a non-executive director at C.banner
International Holdings Limited from June 2017 to April 2018. Prior to
establishing Nova Vision Acquisition Corp, Mr. Ngan served as the
co-founder and chief executive officer of QF Global Limited, the
co-founder and chief executive officer of Alchemy Global Payment
Solutions Ltd. and the global chief executive officer of ANA Neo Inc.
in Japan. Mr. Ngan has been serving as the chairman of Nova Vision
Acquisition Corp since March 2021, a company whose shares are
listed on Nasdag (NASDAQ: NOWV).

Mr. Ngan obtained a bachelor's degree of arts in accounting and
finance from University of Plymouth in July 1997 and a master's
degree of science in social science in accounting and finance from
University of Southampton in the United Kingdom in January 1999.
Mr. Ngan participated in the Stanford Ignite Programme of the
Stanford Graduate School of Business from September 2016 to
November 2016.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the biographical details of Mr. Sun Guangjun and Mr. Yang Hong,
see the biographies in the "Directors” above.

Mr. Bai Fuli (A%&#), aged 54, is our vice president. Mr. Bai is
primarily responsible for developing our go-to-market strategy.

Mr. Bai served as a supervisor of Plus Shanghai from October 2015
to December 2019. From August 2020 to January 2022, he served as
the executive director of Shanghai Chengzhi, and has been serving
as its supervisor since then. Mr. Bai has over 26 years’ experience in
marketing and business development. From July 1992 to August
2000, he served at the sales department of Procter & Gamble
(Guangzhou) Ltd. Beijing Branch* (BMEBZER QGRS R A).
From February 2002 to June 2004, he served as an associate
regional director of Colgate-Palmolive (China) Co., Ltd.* (&= 5 218
(&) B R AF), formerly known as Colgate-Palmolive (Guangzhou)
Company Limited (BN = 88 R Ex 1B AR 2 7). From July 2004 to July
2007, he served as a regional manager of Unilever (China) Co., Ltd.*
(Bt& FZE (hE) AR AF). From August 2007 to September 2009,
he served as a sales controller of Henkel (China) Investment Co., Ltd.
(E£5 (hE)HREARAQF). From July 2009 to June 2012, he served
as a marketing and sales controller of Cofco Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited* (42 7] A ] &0 BR A R]). From July 2014 to June 2016,
he served as the general manager of AMER Sports Equipment
Trading Shanghai Trading Ltd.* (S35 EERARES (L8 BRA
Al). From July 2016 to December 2019, he served as a vice
president of Shanghai Naivee Fashion Design Co., Ltd.* ()8 497k ik
FHRFTAERAFD.

Mr. Bai obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Peking University
(At K E) in July 1992. He graduated from China Europe
International Business School (FFENEIER TiG&20e) in September 2009
with an EMBA degree.
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Ms. Chen Li (BR2), aged 45, is our financial controller and is
primarily responsible for management of financial affairs. Ms. Chen
served as a senior finance manager from April 2014 to June 2014
and has been acting as the financial controller of Plus Shanghai
since July 2014.

Before joining our Group, Ms. Chen worked as an assistant to the
manager of the financial department of Shanghai Jincheng
International Shipping Agency Ltd.* (B8R MEREBR A
al) from November 2000 to April 2014, where she was mainly
responsible for assisting financial manager in the management of the
finance department and overall financial work. Since June 2020,
Ms. Chen has been acting as a supervisor of Etran (Shanghai) New
Mechanical and Electrical Technology Co., Ltd.* (R%EBE (L/8)H%E
F AR A ), where she is mainly responsible for supervising
company’s director and senior management team, as well as
company’s financial affairs.

Ms. Chen obtained a bachelor's degree of management in
accounting from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (&
B RFAERE) in July 2007. Ms. Chen was accredited by the Ministry
of Finance as a medium-level accountant in May 2004 and was
accredited as a non-practising member by the Shanghai Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in March 2014. She was also accredited
by the Institute of Certified Management Accountants as a Certified
Management Accountant (CMA) in January 2019.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Cui Yanan (ZIE#8), aged 40, is our technical controller. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing research and development.

Mr. Cui joined Plus Shanghai in October 2020 and has been acting as
the research & development controller since then. Mr. Cui has over
16 years' experience in technology development. From July 2006 to
July 2016, he worked successively as a software engineer, a
research & development team leader, a project manager and a
senior researcher of Dalian Yuan Dong Digital Co., Ltd.* (KiE&FH
AR A A]), where he was mainly responsible for leading the design
and development of various software products of the company. From
August 2016 to September 2020, Mr. Cui worked as a research &
development controller and the person-in-charge of Dalian research
& development centre of Guangzhou Cema Information Technology
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (BEMNHTHE ERITHAER A A]), where he was
mainly responsible for design and development of various software
products and daily operation of Dalian research & development
centre.

Mr. Cui obtained a bachelor’'s degree of science in information and
computer science from Dalian University of Technology (K T K
£) in July 2006, and an MBA degree from the same university in
December 2012. Mr. Cui passed the National Computer Rank
Examination in C programming language (Grade 2) in September
2003 and network technology (Grade 3) in April 2004. He obtained
the Qualification Certificate of Computer and Software Technology
Proficiency as an Intermediate Software Designer in September
2005.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Chow Kit Ting (A#E), aged 39, is one of our joint company
secretaries. Mr. Chow joined our Group in October 2021, and has
been responsible for the secretarial work of the Company since
then. Mr. Chow was appointed as the company secretary of our
Company on 12 July 2022. Mr. Chow has over 16 years' experience
in the fields of auditing, accounting, corporate finance, compliance
and company secretarial. He worked for an international accounting
firm and various private or listed companies as financial controller
and company secretary. From July 2018 to July 2021, Mr. Chow
worked as an independent non-executive director at Hong Kong
Aerospace Technology Group Limited (M AR EEER AR,
formerly known as Eternity Technology Holdings Limited (18R 12
[% & BR A |]), a company whose shares are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1725.HK). He has also been acting as
an independent non-executive director of Deyun Holding Ltd. ({=3& 7
[% & BR 2 |]) (Stock Code: 1440.HK) since December 2020.

Mr. Chow obtained a bachelor’'s degree of commerce in accounting
from Macquarie University, Australia, in November 2007, and an
EMBA degree from Chinese University of Hong Kong (&4 /1 S K &)
in November 2021. He was accredited as a Certified Public
Accountant in CPA Australia and as a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in September 2011 and May
2015, respectively.

Ms. Guo Yan (EB#), aged 36, is one of our joint company
secretaries. Ms. Guo joined our Group in June 2012. Ms. Guo was
appointed as one of our joint company secretaries on 12 July 2022.

Before joining our Group, Ms. Guo worked as an assistant to the
manager and assistant to the national business operation director of
Betterway Solutions Services Co., Ltd.* (E/8 B ERHEHEHRBEE R
A |]) from July 2010 to June 2012, where she was mainly
responsible for marketing promotion activities and collection and
analysis of business management data. From June 2012 to April
2014, Ms. Guo worked as an assistant to the general manager’s
office of Plus Shanghai. From May 2014 to June 2015, Ms. Guo
worked as a project manager of Plus Shanghai, where she was
mainly responsible for customer service and project execution
management. Since July 2015, she has been working as the
securities affairs representative of Plus Shanghai.

Ms. Guo graduated from Tongji University Tongke College ([F]i% K 2
[ #IEp7) and obtained a bachelor's degree of engineering in
mechatronic engineering in July 2010. In July 2015, Ms. Guo obtained
a board secretary qualification certificate the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

38 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Annual Report 2023

BEARWE

BABELRE 395 ARABFEATWE Y
— o B AN2021FE10AMARER - 115
—HABEARRMERBIIE - AiER2022
F7TRNBEZEARRFNARWE - Ak
ETERT - @5 DERE ERRATWE
TEFEREE16FER B THBR SR
MEBALZRALEH ETRARETTIER
EERATIME - §2018F7 A E2021E7 4 -
AREETEEMAREEEEGRAR (FITE
BERIEBRERAR) MBI IERTES
ZARMBRMO R E BB AT BT (R ASE
1725.HK) » IR B 20209F 12 8 — H & T = E
PR AR AR (B ASR © 1440.HK) H 38 3E
HITES -

AEAER2007F1MARBBNESE XSS
SFEmEEL SN WH2021FE1ARSEE
BRNAREEREEABIHERBELITSN -
#9 BI 2011499 A k201545 A ER 7] &2
MEFTRACSHESTAEEESHTMAE

Y=

B =~

BEL L 3657  BMWBFERAWEZ— °
HLLR2012F6AMAREE - B LR
20227 A2 AR Z T RAKRFNEFE A RIWE
Z— o

IIAZREEE AT - F22 R 2010F7 A = 20124
CRABEELESREBEZEHREAMR A R)LE
PERTHEBEEREYE FTEAES
HEE TS NEKETEERMWRER DN -
R2012F6 8 E2014F4 B » B 1 L 446
EBEKIB TN EE(TRNIE - N2014F58 %
201546 A » SP E L E4EM HIBERERE K
B -ITZHEEFPRBELAEENTER -8
201547 AE - HHABEE T LM EENES
EHRE -

L ER2010F7AE XN A EREREE
br » BEHETRETRES T2 - R201557
ROMEETEWE

A Ha LGRS
AREE -




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining sound corporate
governance and had complied with all the code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules (the “Corporate Governance Code”) since 1 January 2023 and
up to the Latest Practicable Date, save for the deviation from the
code provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code
disclosed below.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the roles of the chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly established
and set out in writing. Mr. Sun Guangjun is the Chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. He has been primarily involved in
developing overall corporate and business strategies of the Group
and making significant business and operational decisions of the
Group.

The Directors consider that vesting the roles of both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in Mr. Sun Guangjun
is beneficial to the business prospects of the Group by ensuring
consistent leadership to the Group as well as prompt and effective
decision making and implementation. In addition, the Directors
believe that this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Company,
given that: (i) the decision to be made by the Board requires
approval by at least a majority of the Directors; (i) Mr. Sun Guangjun
and other Directors are aware of and undertake to fulfil their
fiduciary duties as Directors, which require, among other things, that
he acts for the benefit and in the best interests of the Company and
will make decisions for the Company accordingly; (iii) the balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operations of the Board,
which consists of two executive Directors (including Mr. Sun
Guangjun), two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors, and has a fairly strong independence
element; and (iv) the overall strategic and other key business,
financial, and operational policies of the Company are made
collectively after thorough discussion at both the Board, and senior
management levels.

The Board shall review the structure from time to time to ensure
that the structure facilitates the execution of the business strategies
of the Group and maximizes effectiveness of its operation.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) under
Appendix AC3 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the requirements for securities transactions of directors set out
in the Model Code from the Listing Date to the Latest Practicable
Date.

MAJOR RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for and has the general power over the
management and operation of our business, including determining
our business strategies and investment plans, implementing
resolutions passed at our Shareholders’ general meetings, and
exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred by the
Articles of Association. The day-to-day operations and management
are delegated by the Board to the management of the Company,
who will implement the strategy and direction as determined by the
Board.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2023, and up to the Latest Practicable Date, the
Board consists of seven Directors including two executive Directors
(Mr. Sun Guangjun as chairman and Mr. Yang Hong, two
non-executive Directors (Mr. Li Jianbo and Mr. Zhong liesheng), and
three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Lau Man Tak, Ms. Li
Yingkai and Mr. Ngan Wing Ho). Mr. Sun Guangjun is the Chairman
of the Board. As far as the Company is aware, none of the Directors
has a relationship (including financial, family or other substantial or
related relationships) with each other. The Board has a balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company that need to be disclosed in this annual
report. The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed "Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report.

During the period since the Listing Date and up to the Latest
Practicable Date, the Board at all times complied with Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing one-third of the
Board, of whom Mr. Lau Man Tak is the Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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EERERME

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS EESEggRRREKRSE

During the Reporting Period, the Company held 13 Board meetings RIREEA  KARRITTI3AEETS €3
and 1 general meeting. During the Reporting Period, the attendance R1ABEAE - RIEHRN KEEMES
record of each Director at the Board meetings and general meeting €@z KLREASEFELHEMT ¢

is as follows:
Attendance/No. of Meetings held
HERE SEBITRE
Board meetings General meeting
EEg2e= BRRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Sun Guangjun BREELE 12/13 1/1
Mr. Yang Hong Gk 13/13 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Li Jianbo FERREE 11/13 11
Mr. Zhong liesheng EEHEAESLAE 11/13 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Lau Man Tak BIERE 12/13 11
Ms. Li Yingkai TRzt 12/13 0/1
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho BESK R A 12/13 1/1
Note: Mt

1. Mr. Yang Hong and Mr. Lau Man Tak attended the general meeting in 1. BRAEERBNEBLEERFLERRRE -

person. Mr. Sun Guangjun, Mr. Li lJianbo, Mr. Zhong Jiesheng and BHKEELRE FTREAE SBHREXERE
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho attended the general meeting by electronic means. KEXENEBEFARALFERRERNE - TEH
Ms. Li Yingkai was unable to attend the general meeting due to her ZTHAAEMESLZHEMARELEERRERE -

other business arrangement.
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DEEARRE

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. All Directors have been provided with
relevant guideline materials regarding their roles, duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to them, duty of disclosure of interests and business of
the Group. The Board ensures the Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance, at the Company’s expenses. The Directors confirmed
that they have complied with Code Provision C.1.4 under Part 2 of
the Corporate Governance Code on directors’ training. During the
Reporting Period, all of the Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills and provided relevant records of training to the Company.
The training record of each Director for the Reporting Period is set
out below:

EEHI
ARBAEREFLHAEEI RN
ER-2REFCHERHEEERAC RBE
REEXNBREESIME  ERRNRENEEH
FERNER  AEBENNEREBREET
EEZRHAEERT EFERREER
BEBATASKBIEXEER  BERAEN
NEESE - EFHR - REFCREFHINE
BT hEEATRIFE2ETAEXECIA - EA
BEHRAN 2REFCD2EBFERREI
R N BRI R AN N B jIEI‘?$
AREABEIEE  REERNHSHAN
ISR H T

Reading materials

in relation to Training in relation

corporate to corporate
governance and governance and
regulations regulations
HABLEELRR BEIEBLXER
Name of Directors EEpnE SE 3R B AR S 1R Y 15 5
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Sun Guangjun BREELRE YessE YessE
Mr. Yang Hong kA Yesz Yesz
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Li Jianbo FRKEE YesZ YesZ
Mr. Zhong Jiesheng EHELE Yesz Yesz
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Lau Man Tak FxXERE YesZ YesZ
Ms. Li Yingkai TEMZT Yesz Yesz
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho BEXKREE YessE YessE
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an audit committee, a remuneration
committee and a nomination committee. Please see below for the
composition and responsibilities of each committee.

Audit Committee

The Company established the audit committee (the "Audit
committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and The Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules. As of the Latest
Practicable Date, the Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors (Mr. Lau Man Tak, Ms. Li Yingkai and
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho). Mr. Lau Man Tak is the chairman of the Audit
committee. The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are
to inspect, review, supervise and provide independent view of the
company’s financial information and reporting procedure for financial
information, the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, and perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by
the Board.

During the Reporting Period, 3 meetings were held by the Audit
committee. The attendance record of the committee members at the
meeting during the Reporting Period is as follows:
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EExZEg
EXQCRUERZBS FHZESNER
HLBEE - BZRBEMNERKRBEFZHT
Xo

EREEE
ARRIEARIE EM AR A 3215 b 23 AP
BCIEEXEATARIEZZES ([&F
“ZEg]) UEEINABERE -BER
BATHY BERZES@H=-RBIUIFNT
B (BIXEat FERREREKFEE)
MK - BIVEREEEBEREZEEGER - FX
ZEENEIZRERER BEERARANM
BEM  UBAKENTBEN  EREER
WA H B EEREFREHRBIER AR
BITESSREERNEMBE MEE-

R|ERR BLRZEERTTINEH - |
THAZBEEXN BN ERLFCENT ¢

Attendance/No.

of meetings held

HERE

Directors 2= SRETRY

Mr. Lau Man Tak B ELE 3/3

Ms. Li Yingkai TRt 3/3

Mr. Ngan Wing Ho BEKZF A& 3/3
The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited annual EXZE €D EH AR RIE £2023412 731
consolidated results for the year ended 31 December 2023, and HIFEMKBRAFERAES  THERK

confirms that save for the qualified opinion (the "Qualified Opinion”)
as disclosed in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” of
this annual report, the applicable accounting principles, standards
and requirements have been complied with, and that adequate
disclosures have been made. In relation to the Qualified Opinion, the
Audit Committee has held several meetings with the auditor and the
management to understood the Qualified Opinion and the judgment
of the Company’s management. Based on the discussion with the
auditor and the management, the Audit Committee agreed with the
Qualified Opinion. The annual results for the year ended
31 December 2023 are audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
independent auditor of the Company, in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

AEERE B RBEDRE | — 80T ER
REBR((RBERD SN BB TEB SR
RN ERRHRE - AEERRORE - B
REBR BERZBEGCERBBIRERE
BUOETEZ NEBRRBERARARRE
EEHE - REAZBMLERENR W &
REZEGRERERER - BLE2023F12A3N
Etifﬁﬁif%ﬁaﬂa$@ﬁ?§ﬁﬁ§kﬁﬂi
BEBOKBEMEBMRETEGITMA
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As of the Latest Practicable Date, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the annual result announcement of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 and believes that the Company has complied
with all applicable accounting standards and regulations and made
sufficient disclosures, saved as disclosed above. The Audit
Committee has reviewed all material internal control rules, including
the financial and operational and compliance controls, as well as risk
management of the Group in 2023. The Audit Committee was
satisfied with the effectiveness and sufficiency of the internal control
mechanism in its operations. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
remuneration of the auditor for 2023 and recommended the Board to
re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company
for 2024, subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules and The
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing
Rules. As of the Latest Practicable Date, the Nomination Committee
comprises one executive Director, Mr. Sun Guangjun and two
independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Lau Man Tak and Ms. Li
Yingkai). Mr. Sun Guangjun is the chairman of the Nomination
committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and
assessing the composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and making recommendations
to the Board on appointment and removal of Directors. In
recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against
objective criteria and with due regards to the benefits of diversity on
the Board in accordance with the board diversity policy adopted by
the Company. Diversity of the Board will be considered from a
number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, industry experience, technical
and professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of
services and time to be devoted as a Director.
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The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including
overall management and strategic development, information
technology, accounting and financial management. They obtained
degrees in various majors including computer science, economic
management, polymer physics, accounting and finance, etc. The
Company has three independent non-executive Directors with
different industry backgrounds, representing more than one-third of
the Board. As of the date of this Annual Report, the Board consists
of one female and six male Directors. The Board is satisfied with its
gender diversity and will continue to maintain a diverse Board. In the
future, gender will continue to be fully considered in the selection
and development of nominees on the basis of maintaining at least
one female Board member.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 8,137 employees
of which the number of male and female employees are 897 and
7,240, respectively (accounted for 11% and 89% respectively), the
overall headcount of the Company remained stable. The Company
plans to offer all-rounded trainings to female employees whom we
consider to have the suitable experience, skills and knowledge of our
operation and business, including but not limited to, business
operation, management, accounting and finance, legal and
compliance and R&D. The Nomination Committee will also pay
attention to maintaining and strengthening the concern, selection,
and development of high-potential female talents, and nominate and
recommend competent and qualified candidates to the Board when
necessary. For details on gender diversity of employees, please refer
to ESG Report to be released on the same day as this Annual
Report.

During the Reporting Period, 1 meetings were held by the
Nomination Committee. The attendance record of the committee
members at the meeting during the Reporting Period is as follows:
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Attendance/No.

of meetings held

HERE

Directors = SERETRH
Mr. Sun Guangjun RESERE 11
Mr. Lau Man Tak 2 imaE A 1/1
Ms. Li Yingkai ESl kot 11

RBEMA - RBREZESCHEBELIFRTT
BEEMBEUMN - F2HIEESHRE — BY
FERITERHRBULIE THOMHEBERE -

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has
assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
Please refer to the relevant disclosures under “Report of The
Directors — Confirmation of Independence by Independent
Non-Executive Directors”.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the remuneration committee (the
"Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and The
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing
Rules. As of the Latest Practicable Date, the Remuneration
committee comprises one executive Director, Mr. Sun Guangjun and
two independent non-executive Directors (Ms. Li Yingkai and
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho). Ms. Li Yingkai is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration
committee are to establish and review the policy and structure of
the remuneration for the Directors and senior management and
make recommendations to the Board on employee benefit
arrangement.

During the Reporting Period, 2 meetings were held by the
Remuneration Committee. The attendance record of the committee
members at the meeting during the Reporting Period is as follows:

FMEES
ARBERE T RIS 3. 255 K £ AR BB
BCIMEMEXREARATAKNITMEZES
(IHFHEZEg))  UEEIIRBESRE - 82
REATHE FHEZEEA - 2WTES
(AMFREELLE) RMBBULIENTES (BIF
BRI REXSEE)EKX - FTERZ TR
FHEZEEeERE -FMZEENTERER
BRI R ENEENERERE A BOFHMBE
MER UHEERANLHMNESSRERZE
B

RBEHN - FTHEZESRITT2REH - W
THANZEEgXRENERLFCENT

Attendance/No.

of meetings held

HERE

Directors ) SERTRE
Ms. Li Yingkai ezt 2/2
Mr. Sun Guangjun REBLE 2/2
Mr. Lau Man Tak B iEfE 2/2

BB AT =
S B 9t 2 S R0 1 T 5B 55 T 10 3 4
MR RB T O R B E T -

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

The remuneration paid and payable by the Group to
PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of the services provided during
the Reporting Period is as follows:

Fees paid and

payable

eNRESEA

(RMB million)

Service provided 12 15t 19 AR 75 (ANREBERT)

Statutory audit service EERETRE 1.58

Non-audit services* FEEFT RG> 0.62

Total @t 2.20
* Including the fees for review of results announcement and interim  * BIEBEZTS_=FA=THLEAEAN

financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2023 EBENERTHUBHRENEESER
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of annual accounts
in order to give a true and fair view of the financial position,
operating results and cash flow of the Company for the Reporting
Period. For the purpose of the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the Reporting Period, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, adopted applicable
accounting principles, made judgments and assessments that are
prudent and reasonable and ensured the accounts were prepared on
a going concern basis. The Directors have confirmed that the
Group's financial statements were prepared in accordance with the
requirements of applicable laws and accounting principles. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the ability of the
Company to operate as a going concern.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Directors shall on a Shareholder’s requisition forthwith proceed
to convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company. A
Shareholder’s requisition is a requisition of one or more Members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than 10% of
the voting rights, on a one vote per share basis, of the issued
Shares which as at that date carry the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company. The Shareholder’s requisition must state
the objects and the resolutions to be added to the agenda of the
meeting and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the Registered
Office, and may consist of several documents in like form each
signed by one or more requisitionists. If there are no Directors as at
the date of the deposit of the Shareholder’'s requisition or if the
Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
Shareholder’s requisition duly proceed to convene a general meeting
to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all
of the requisitionists, may themselves convene a general meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall be held no later than the day
which falls three months after the expiration of the said 21 day
period.

The shareholders may put enquiries to the investor relations working
team of the Company via email (ir@plscn.com) or telephone
(86—21-60321928) as stated in this annual report.
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EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company has adopted the Shareholder Communication Policy.
The purpose of the policy is to ensure that Shareholders and
investors have equal and timely access to the Company's
information, enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and allow them to participate actively in the
Ccompany’s affairs.

The Company publishes updated information on its business
operations and development, financial data, corporate governance
practices and other information on its website for public access.
Meanwhile, the Company also receives enquiries from Shareholders
and investors, handling relevant information requests and ensuring
timely and effective communication with Shareholders and investors.
The Group had made effective development in investor relations in
2023 under the leadership and support of the Board and
management.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholder Communication Policy during the Reporting Period, and
believes that the Company’s Shareholder Communication Policy has
been properly implemented and deemed effective during the
Reporting Period.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control and risk management systems in order to safeguard the
Group’s assets and Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that internal control and
risk management systems in place are adequate. The Board has
established a risk management and internal control system in
accordance with the requirements of paragraph D.2 under Part 2 of
the Corporate Governance Code. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Company also
has an internal audit function which primarily carries out the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company's risk management and internal
control systems, and reports their findings to Audit Committee on, at
least, an annual basis. In addition to the internal control and internal
audit functions, all employees are liable for risk management and
internal control within their business scope. Each business
department shall actively cooperate with the internal control and
internal review, report to the management on the important
development of the department’s business and the implementation
of policies and strategies established by the Company, and identify,
evaluate and manage major risks in time.
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After risk assessment, the Company’'s major risks in 2023 mainly
involve business risks, financial risks, compliance risks, inside
information and internal control risks. According to the specific
situation, the Company has formulated following practical and
feasible response plans to each of the risks to effectively manage
these risks:

Business risks: The business risks the Group mainly faces in respect
of its operations in the PRC include macro-environmental risks,
competition risks and sustainability risks. The Board regularly reviews
and identifies potential risks of the Group, and adjusts strategies and
policies on a timely manner, to ensure that the business risks are
controlled and managed.

Financial risks: The Group has adopted financial management
policies to control the Group’s financial risk exposure. Also, the
Board monitors the financial results and key operating statistics with
the assistance of the Group's internal finance department on a
regular basis.

Compliance risks: The Group has adopted internal procedures to
monitor the Group’s compliance risks to ensure that the Group has
complied with the applicable laws and regulations. In addition, the
Group engages legal advisers from time to time and compliance
adviser pursuant to Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules to keep the
Group updated with the latest development in the regulatory
environments. It also arranges compliance trainings on relevant laws
and regulations.

Inside information and internal control risks: The Company
implements and strictly enforces procedures relating to inside
information in accordance with the relevant procedures set out in
the Information Disclosure Management System. Before the
disclosure of relevant information to the public, the Company will
ensure that such information has been properly kept confidential
and will fulfil its obligation to notify and monitor persons aware of
inside information.

During the Reporting Period, we continued to improve risk
management policies and procedures, specify the risk management
structure and responsibilities. We identified major risks that hinder
the achievement of objectives and controlled them within acceptable
levels to ensure the achievement of business objectives, the
improvement of operational efficiency, the reliability of financial
reports and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
other compliance requirements. The Board reviewed the risk
management and internal control during the Reporting Period and
concluded that, save for the adoption of more comprehensive
internal control measures to prevent re-occurrence of incidents
relating to the Company’'s future investment as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE REGARDING THE
QUALIFIED OPINION" in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report, there had been no deficiency in
material risk management and internal control nor any weakness in
material risk management and internal control based on the
outcome of the risk management and internal control work
implemented by the Group as of the Latest Practicable Date. Further,
the Board was of the view that the risk management and internal
control system of the Group is effective and sufficient.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND
ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group has continuously improved the whistleblowing policy (the
“Whistleblowing system”) and system, publicly released the E-mail
address for whistleblowing, and emphasized the protection of
whistleblowers. It is the Group’s policy to make every effort to treat
all disclosures in a confidential and sensitive manner after receipt of
any relevant report from an employee or a relevant third party.
Upon receipt of any report, the HR department will evaluate the
validity and relevance of the concerns raised in which report, and to
decide if the reported matter falls under the scope of the
Whistleblowing Policy and whether an investigation is necessary.

The Group has always attached great importance to the construction
and implementation of its anti-corruption policy (the “Anti-Corruption
Policy”) and system. Directors and senior management of the
Company are responsible for ensuring the effective implementation
and in particular, the monitoring and investigation of any material
corruption committed within the Group. The Anti-Corruption Policy
clearly stipulates the improper payments, kickbacks and other forms
of bribery of its employees. In addition, the Group is committed to
dealing with its customers and suppliers in a fair, honest and
professional manner, and employees must act with due care and
diligence when evaluating prospective contractors and suppliers. The
Group’s policy is not to deal with suppliers and other potential
business partners known to be paying bribes and/or engaging in
corrupt activity.

AMENDMENT OF THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

For the purposes of the initial public offering and the listing of the
Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and in light of
the issuance of the Shares of the Company, the Board proposed to
amend the Company’s Articles of Association, which has been duly
passed by special resolutions on 4 April 2023 with effect from the
Listing Date. The full text of the revised and restated Articles of
Association can be downloaded at the website of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’'s website
(https://www.plscn.com).

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

There are no changes in the information of the Directors and senior
management that are required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the customised marketing solution, task and
marketers matching service, marketers assignment service and
SaaS+ subscription in PRC.

Please refer to the sections headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report
for a review and the analysis using financial key indicators on the
Group business, major risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
and the future development of the Group’s business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the Reporting Period could
be found in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report. The review and discussion form part
of this directors’ report.

RELATIONS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The success of the Group relies on the support of important
relations such as employees, suppliers and customers. The Company
maintains a good relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers in order to ensure smooth business operation.

RESULTS

The operating results of the Group during the Reporting Period are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 76 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the changes in the share capital of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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EXEHRE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy of the Company, was adopted by the Board on
4 April 2023, is set out as follows: The declaration and payment of
dividends shall remain to be determined at the discretion of the
Board and subject to all applicable requirements (including without
limitation, restrictions on dividend declaration and payment) under
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of
Association. Board shall also take into account the following factors
when considering whether to propose dividends and determining the
dividend amount:

52

actual and expected financial performance of the Group;
shareholders’ interests;
retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and financial covenants to which the Group is subject;

possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders;

the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

liquidity position and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend;

taxation considerations;

statutory and regulatory restrictions;

general business conditions and strategies;

general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and

position of the Company; and

other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group had engaged third-party
human resources agencies to pay social insurance and housing
provident funds for certain employees of the Group from 2020 to
2022. With a view to rectifying such agency arrangement, the
Company plans to set up branch offices in not less than 25 cities in
the PRC (i.e. one branch office for one location) according to the
rectification schedule where the existing employees work and
transfer their social insurance and housing provident fund accounts
from third-party agencies to the newly established branch offices of
the Group.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group has set up over 25 branches
and the transfer of accounts for around 93.7% of the employees
whose social insurance and housing provident funds were made
through third-party human resources agencies as of February 2023
has been completed. The Group will closely monitor the situation of
the remaining employees whose social insurance and housing
provident funds are still made through third-party human resources
agencies as of 31 December 2023 and arrange to complete the
rectification actions as early as possible. The Group expect that all
rectification actions will be completed within one year after the
Listing, and progress of such rectification actions will be disclosed in
the Company’s annual report.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Board is aware, during the
Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in all
material respects.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Directors have been granted a general mandate by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
30 June 2023 to repurchase no more than 10% of the total number
of issued Shares as of the date of passing of the relevant resolution,
amounting to 12,520,040 Shares (the “"Repurchase Mandate”). From
October to December 2023, the Company had paid an aggregate of
approximately HK$21,576,000 (excluding the transaction costs) to
repurchase a total of 3,498,600 Shares on the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate, which has been subsequently
cancelled by the Company on 12 January 2024. A monthly
breakdown of the purchases of Shares are as follows:

Number of (excluding the

Highest price

BE - HERBEAQR LHES

EEDN2023F6 A30 B RITHAR TREB
FRELERER T —REE  THELOANE
BRAEAZRERBE A BITRG AR
10%H) % 17 - B112,520,0400% A% 17 ([ 88 [@ 4%
#]) > R2023F 108 212 AAAIE X
& ££4921,576,0008 T (MBEIEZ ZHKA) -
LBEBORERBE I EEDA K
3,498,600l fn « AN AR EEER2024F 1R
PHEHEEBARYD BHEBEERDNE AP
MEF| AT -

Approximate
percentage of
the Shares
repurchased

Lowest price
paid
(excluding the

paid

Shares transaction transaction as of the end
repurchased costs) costs) of the Period
XHAHES XAHHRE BEHR
BEHN E8(TEE E8(TER FBEENRG
Period HA R vl 4= RERA) RERE) WHABEDEE
(HK$) (HK$)
(B T) (Bx)
From 1 October 2023 to 2023F10A18 &
31 October 2023 202310 A31H 488,400 5.97 5.97 0.39%
From 1 November 2023 to 202311 A1HZ
30 November 2023 202311 A30H 2,254,200 6.57 6.28 1.80%
From 1 December 2023 to 2023F1281HZE
31 December 2023 202312 A31H 756,000 5.50 5.32 0.60%
Total et 3,498,600 6.57 5.32 2.79%

The repurchases of the Shares were for the purposes of benefiting
Shareholders as a whole in enhancing the return on net assets and
earnings per share of the Company. Save for the aforesaid, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities from the Listing
Date up to the Latest Practicable Date.

54  PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Annual Report 2023

e —————

BERN D ARS AR TN EEENRER

SRAF  RHERREEES - B LR
5 BEMESMEERETIEE  ARAER

HAE AN B2 A E I S B
ARF ETHES o




USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

On 11 May 2023, the Shares of the Company were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. A total of 25,000,000 Shares with
a nominal value of US$0.0002 per share were issued under the initial
public offering. The offer price is HK$10.6 per Share (exclusive of
brokerage of 1.0%, SFC transaction levy of 0.0027%, AFRC
transaction levy of 0.00015% and Stock Exchange trading fee of
0.005%). The gross proceeds from the Listing were HK$265.0 million,
From the Listing Date up to 31 December 2023, the Group has
progressively utilised the proceeds from the initial public offering in
accordance with the intended use as set out in the Prospectus.

The aggregate net proceeds from the initial public offering of the
Company’s Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, after
deduction of underwriting fees and other related expenses,
amounted to approximately HK$206.7 million (approximately
equivalent to RMB190.6 million). As of 31 December 2023, the
Company has utilised approximately HK$43.9 million of the proceeds
in total, representing approximately 21.2% of all raised net proceeds,
in accordance with the intended use set out in the Prospectus, with
the unused portion of the proceeds amounting to approximately
HK$162.8 million. The Company will continue to utilise the balance of
the net proceeds from the initial public offering in accordance with
the usages and proportions as disclosed in the Prospectus. The

details are set out as follows:
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EHABRERE

MR2023F5 A1 B - RN FIRMD BT EIR
7 o A ££25,000,000 % & B ® {E0.00023% 7T
MERNBRIBEEAAHEEHRT HEEBARE
FEAZ 15 10.68 T (TN B E1.0%&E LA S -
0.0027%EEE X HEE - 0.00015% € ¥ HR
B R0.005BH R FE) o ETATEHK
BB A2GOEEAT ALrMHBRESR
2023F12A31H - AEBEEE S IRBHERKRE
BHSRTRRERE N AMAEEMSHIE -

ENMBREEERMEMERERASE  AQF
R B FT ERE IR AR ENREBRIE
FEAHENA2067EBEE T HERHOARE
190.6 A B T) - & £2023F12A31H * &R
RIEERBRBERERMESEERARERMER
HAHEDA39BEB T (G EEBEEREFHIE
SFRELI21.2%) - W ARFEAMBRIEIL DL
BI1628EEBIL - AARIBEBIZBHEERE
RAFENRARLLOERE R RS
BRIEFENGRE - FBHYWT

Actual net  Unutilised net
amount utilised amount
as of as of
31 December 31 December
Percentage  Net proceeds 2023 2023 Expected timeline for utilising the
Use of proceeds (%) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) unutilised net amount
BE20235 BE20235
12A318 12A318
FEREFE ERCERAFE RERFH
FERERE 1ttt (%) (BEET) (BEET) (BBET) GAKRERAFENADRER
Enhancing the core technology 32.0% 66.1 2.8 63.3  will be gradually used up to
capabilities and fundamental R&D 31 December 2026
of the Company
B3R A% 2 B A9 BB AT RE 0 K BEFER - EE2026F127318
Huwra
Pursuing strategic investment, 30.0% 62.0 — 62.0 will be gradually used up to
acquisition and cooperation 31 December 2024
SREMRE  WBREHF BEFER  EZE2024F128318
Enhancing the Company’s capabilities 20.5% 42.4 49 37.5 will be gradually used up to
in sales and marketing 31 December 2026
REARRMNEEREHEED ESEE - EE2026512H31H
Repaying the bank borrowings of the 7.5% 15.5 15.5 — fully used as of
Company 30 June 2023
HEADANBITER BE2023F6A30HE 2 #MEA
Working capital 10.0% 20.7 20.7 — fully used as of 31 December 2023
EEES BZE2023F12A31HE 2 #EH
Total 100.0% 206.7 43.9 162.8
Bt
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Note:

The difference between the actual net proceeds from the initial public
offering and the previous estimation mainly represents underwriting incentive
fees, overtime payment to intermediaries and other disbursements which
were determined after the Listing.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the names, principal places of business, places of
incorporation and issued share capital of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out on note 23 of the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’'s distributable reserves
amounted to approximately RMB423.0 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ISSUED DEBENTURE

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not issue corporate
bonds.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the Reporting Period, the Group's largest customer accounted
for 39.0% of the Group's total revenue. The Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 74.4% of the Group’s total revenue. For the
Reporting Period, the Group’s largest supplier accounted for 19.8%
of the Group’s total purchase. The Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for 50.7% of the Group's total purchase.

To the best of the directors” knowledge, none of the Directors or
their associates or any Shareholders who is expected to have 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company has any interest in
the top five suppliers and top five customers of the Group.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of the related party transactions
constitutes a connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction subject to independent Shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) in relation to the director’'s and officer's
liability insurance is currently in force and was in force during the
Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of seven Directors including two
executive Directors (Mr. Sun Guangjun as chairman and Mr. Yang
Hong, two non-executive Directors (Mr. Li Jianbo and Mr. zZhong
Jiesheng), and three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Lau
Man Tak, Ms. Li Yingkai and Mr. Ngan Wing Ho). Mr. Sun Guangjun is
the Chairman of the Board.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 30 to 38 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company, under which they
agreed to act as executive Directors or non-executive Director for an
initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, which
may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either of the Director or the Company. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either of the Director or the
Company. Under the respective appointment letters, each of the
independent non-executive Directors is entitled to a fixed Director’s
fee.

The appointments of the Directors are subject to the provisions of
retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles of
Association.

None of the Directors has entered a service contract with members
of the Group that cannot be terminated by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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REMUNERATIONS OF DIRECTORS SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating,
reviewing and advising the Board on the remuneration policies and
packages for directors and senior management members of the
Company. Remuneration shall include but not limited to all salaries,
bonuses, allowances, benefits (in cash or in kind), pensions,
compensations (including compensation payable in respect of loss or
termination of office or appointment), options and gifting of shares.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are decided by the Board with reference to the
recommendation given by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. Details of emoluments of directors and
chief executive and the five highest paid individuals of the Group in
2023 are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report. Details of the remuneration of the
current senior management of the Company by band for the
Reporting Period are set out as follows:

EE oA EERRAERRSHMH
A T B Er

FMEZESRERR  BHRALRAEENSD
REBRERENFMBERGE  atikr
EEeRHER -FMERBEETRNMAE
TE& - fE4 - 28 wA CGRELEY)  RIK
T B (B AR LB S 1 B
MEvwE) - BRUE Mg E AR -

FMEZEeREEAEENEERXE BA
RARABLBNTSRABIEER RAESR
SIFHEBRZZ ESE2EREBERR
REAEBEERSNERENME - &
FEE HESTBRABRAEESHMAL
R2023F KB & FIFH N AN FHWERA M
WARMERY - RMEMME - ARFHRER
REREBRARDENFHNERET

Range Number of individuals
gE AB

HK$0 to 1,000,000 1

07 7T & 1,000,0007% 7T 1

HK$1,000,000 to 2,000,000 2

1,000,0007% 7T % 2,000,000/ 7T 2

For the year ended 31 December 2023, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director, senior management or any of the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors
has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the year ended
31 December 2023. Except as disclosed in this annual report, no
other payments have been made or are payable, for the year ended
31 December 2023, by our Group to or on behalf of any of the
Directors.
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EMPLOYEE AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration and benefits for employees of the Group are
determined with reference to the market standards as well as
individual qualification and experience, performance bonus and other
incentive systems are established.

In order to improve the Company’s incentive mechanism, retain key
employees and promote sustainable growth of the Company’s
performance, as approved by the Board on 26 June 2023, the
Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme. For details of the
Share Award Scheme, please refer to “Share Award Scheme” in this
report of the Directors below.

During the Reporting Period, the Group sticked to the
people-oriented concept, continuously optimising the business
organisational structure, and improving the efficiency of teamwork.
As of 31 December 2023, the Group had total of 8,137 employees
(as of 31 December 2022: 8,559.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT

For the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance to which the Company or
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or its connected entity has or had, in any way, whether
directly or indirectly, a material interest.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors, the
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries or their respective
associates had any interest in a business, which competes or is
likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Company and its subsidiaries which would require disclosure under
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURE

As of 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of each
of the Directors and chief executive in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of the associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which is
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or which is required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which is required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were
as follows:

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest

EERRSTHRAESNRK
ROREZNEZRAR

HZE2023F12A31H  EEE N &

BITHA
BRARBHEMBEER (EEREH LY
BIRPIEXVER) BBty - MR R EST %
ﬁ*ﬁﬂz@zmﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬂﬁﬂ%XV*B%NS&S’“* Z

MEARNR R RAE D AR (BRERE
EFRPERINZERT ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁ
RERNESELXR)  IREBEEZFRARMK
{5155 352 1R /A RE A L M5 P I & E%M@m&m
REBBERETUEMEARR 6 <2 FfT
KB IT

Number of Approximate

Shares/underlying
shares held®

percentage of
shareholding®

BER®D BB

EEHE 5 EEHtE HERGEB® BAl @
Mr. Sun Guangjun Founder of a discretionary trust® 67,460,000 53.88%

Interest of controlled corporation®
REF L& EREETTAIMAC

XA E R
Mr. Yang Hong Beneficial interest® 2,620,240 2.09%
Btk BEHEmO
Notes. it
(1) All interest stated are long positions. (1 MATERRARITE -
(2)  The calculation is based on the total number of 125,200,400 Shares in (20  ERE E2023F12HA31H 2 &7l B H

issue as of 31 December 2023. 125,200,400% 5+ & ©

(3)  As of the Latest Practicable Date, Guangjun Holdings is held as to 99% ()  EZE&& "/ 17 H #] - Guangjun Holdingsh

by Summit Plus, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun’s Family Trust and
as to 1% by Junshu Holdings, which in turn is wholly-owned by
Mr. Sun Guangjun, respectively. Mr. Sun’s Family Trust was established
by Mr. Sun Guangjun as the settlor for the benefit of Mr. Sun
Guangjun and Junshu Holdings with Trident Trust as the trustee. Under
the SFO, Mr. Sun Guangjun is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Guangjun Holdings.
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(4)  As of the Latest Practicable Date, Guangjun Sun Holdings is wholly — (4) #Z&7% A7 B - Guangjun Sun Holdings

owned by Junshu Holdings, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun fiJunshu Holdingsz & # & - mlunshu
Guangjun. Under the SFO, Mr. Sun Guangjun is deemed to be HoldingsER FREE R £ 2 B MR - RIEFEFH
interested in all the Shares held by Guangjun Sun Holdings. NERE D] - FREE S £ 148 AR Guangjun

Sun Holdings# A8 M A KD #EH #x -

(5)  As of the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Yang Hong is interested in  (5) HESBOTHEE - 5% 4 51,620,2400%

1,620,240 Shares which underlines his 18.84% equity interests in Kuwei R B R - BEBKuwel Holdings#)
Holdings. Mr. Yang Hong is entitled to receive 1,000,000 Shares 18.84% A% 4 - iR B 202343 A31H Z IR 4l
pursuant to the RSUs granted to him on 31 March 2023 under the RSU BEDEBERIETEI T PR TRSIAMDERL -
Scheme, subject to vesting conditions. 1545 58 4 B 131,000,000 8% AR 15 + BB FF

BRI IR

RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES EERSHRITHAEBERMAIE
OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 5 YRR

No arrangements to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries is or ~ RIREEAR - HEEFEALNT - EEAHBE L
was a party enabling the Directors and the chief executive of the FlARKL A:IN 2 — HEAQFEESK
Ccompany to acquire benefits by means of acquisitions of shares or & Z1TH A & @ :iBINEE AR A7) s (E A H 4 E
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate subsisted A EZEH D ESEMERHZHE

during the Reporting Period.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 3B K35 RSt 2

Details of the retirement benefit scheme are set out in note 8 to the R (ki@ FIEt BISEBE NGB B R AN 518
consolidated financial statements.
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EEgRE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF T ERRRIRAD R AE B AT A=
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND K% &

UNDERLYING SHARES

As of 31 December 2023, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, & ZE2023F 128318 BEEFFAA > 7
the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of A+ GEEFHARAZBITHAER) R EH

the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or SiiEREARD T HEAEE BH LB EEHEXV
underlying Shares, which would be required to be notified to the EFZE2R3IDEIEBEE AR 7 KB AT
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions #£zm80X R @ S BRR AR R RIRIEE & H
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be E&HIF 33615 BF E H & 0 M AR A

recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept & :
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
in the Total
Issued Share
Number of Capital of the
Name Nature of Interest Shares held™ Company®
)i NN
2R BT
BERHA BRENER
=i ERtE HEY REFSHLO
Ms. Tan Hui (E2)@ Interest of spouse 67,460,000 53.88%
BEELL0 B (B %
Summit Plus® Interest in controlled corporation 52,460,000 41.90%
Ssummit Plus® R EE R
Guangjun Sun Holdings® Beneficial owner 15,000,000 11.98%
Guangjun Sun Holdings® Em#EA A
Junshu Holdings® Interest in controlled corporation 15,000,000 11.98%
Junshu Holdings® R EE R
Guangjun Holdings® Beneficial owner 52,460,000 41.90%
Guangjun Holdings® Em#EA A
Mr. Xia lingtang® (E &%) Founder of a discretionary trust 12,170,000 9.72%
Interest in controlled corporation
ESREHEO REETRIA
AR
Ms Yan Xiaohang (& /) \fin)? Interest of spouse 12,170,000 9.72%
B/ B (B %
Jonson Xia Smile Holdings® Interest in controlled corporation 7,180,000 5.73%
Jonson Xia Smile Holdings® RpEEE R
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Approximate

Percentage of
Shareholding

in the Total

Issued Share

Number of Capital of the

Name Nature of Interest Shares held® Company®

RADFE

2B BT

BERD BRENOEQ

=x EEME BEY REBSHLO

Hannah Xia Holdings® Beneficial owner 7,180,000 5.73%
Hannah Xia Holdings® E=EAA

Trident Trust®® Trustee 59,640,000 47.64%

BREFEOO RIEA
Kuwei Holdings Beneficial owner 8,600,000 6.87%

Kuwei Holdings

Notes:

(1

@)

EmEAA

All interests stated are long positions.

Ms. Tan Hui is the spouse of Mr. Sun Guangjun. Under the SFO, Ms. Tan
Hui is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Mr. Sun
Guangjun.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, Summit Plus is wholly-owned by
Mr. Sun’s Family Trust, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun
Guangjun.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, Guangjun Sun Holdings is
wholly-owned by Junshu Holdings, which in turn is wholly-owned by
Mr. Sun Guangjun. Under the SFO, Mr. Sun Guangjun is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Guangjun Sun Holdings.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, Guangjun Holdings is held as to 99%
by Summit Plus, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun’s Family Trust and
as to 1% by Junshu Holdings, which in turn is wholly-owned by
Mr. Sun Guangjun, respectively. Mr. sun’s Family Trust was established
by Mr. Sun Guangjun as the settlor for the benefit of Mr. Sun
Guangjun and Junshu Holdings with Trident Trust as the trustee. Under
the SFO, Mr. Sun Guangjun is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Guangjun Holdings.

Friti = B I B2 »

BRI RAEFEAENERE - BEEFK
HEERY EZLTHREANERELLR
BEVRE B A s -

HERKEZATEH - summit PluslFREAER
REREZEHF MALEERKETHRE
BELEZEHES -

HZE&%AI7TAE » Guangjun Sun Holdings
fiJunshu Holdings2 & # & - mlunshu
Holdings R EE X £ 2 & HE - REFEH
REAEED) - BREE St AR AR Guangjun
Sun HoldingsFBMAMAERMD P ER L -

HZE=&% A 7785 Guangjun Holdingse
summit Plus (RREAEKIEET2EHET) ¥
£99% + @Junshu Holdings# & 1% M
Junshu Holdings R EEE L A2 EHE - &
EESREERZ T ANKRES % 4E Riunshu
Holdings A% = AR R £ REErt 0 B
REAAITA - BEFFRBERKRD - &
B = kA48 AR Guangjun Holdings# A H)
FTERMDFHEE R -
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(6)  As of the Latest Practicable Date, Hannah Xia Holdings is held as to
99% by Jonson Xia Smile Holdings, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Xia's
Family Trust and as to 1% by Jonson Xia Holdings, which in turn is
wholly-owned by Mr. Xia lJingtang, respectively. Mr. Xia's Family Trust
was established by Mr. Xia Jingtang as the settlor for the benefit of
Mr. Xia Jingtang and Jonson Xia Holdings with Trident Trust as the
trustee. Under the SFO, Mr. Xia Jingtang is deemed to be interested in
all the Shares held by Hannah Xia Holdings.

7) Ms. Yan Xiaohang is the spouse of Mr. Xia Jingtang. Under the SFO,
Ms. Yan Xiaohang is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Mr. Xia Jingtang.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2023, the Directors
were not aware of any persons (other than the Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in
the Shares or underlying Shares which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the
register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, (i) no contract of significance
was entered into by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the Reporting Period; and (ii) there is no contract
of significance in relation to provision of services by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Reporting Period, the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreement (as defined in the Section 6 of Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Cap 622D of the laws of Hong Kong).

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding during
the year ended 31 December 2023.
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LOAN AND GUARANTEE

On 23 May 2023, Mr. Sun Guangjun has entered into a loan
agreement with Plus (HK) Digital Technologies Limited (“Plus HK"),
pursuant to which Plus HK agreed to grant a loan at the maximum
limit or in full amount of HK$2,900,000 to Mr. Sun, interest-bearing
at rate of 8%. As of 31 December 2023, Mr. Sun has fully repaid the
loan. Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group had not made any loan or provided
any guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, senior
management of the Company, the Controlling Shareholders or their
respective connected persons.

RSU SCHEME

On 13 January 2022, the adoption of the RSU Scheme was approved
by the Board. The purpose of the RSU Scheme is to incentivise
employees, directors, officers, and consultants for their contribution
to the Group, to attract, motivate and retain skilled and experienced
personnel to strive for the future development and expansion of the
Group by providing them with the opportunity to own equity
interests in the Company. Robert Sun Holdings was incorporated in
the BVI for the purpose of holding Shares for grant under the RSU
Scheme. For details, see "Appendix IV — Statutory and General
Information — D. Other Information — 1. RSU Scheme” in the
Prospectus.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, all RSUs had been granted under
the RSU Scheme with the details as follows:
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ERRER

MR2023F5A8230  HEF L EEL LM (F
&) BERFBERAR ([TEMEE]) 7L
BERpE Bt EELMEBRERBRLEER
i &% = R 48 8 & 812,900,000/ T 2 B3 1%
8% MR8 - EE2023F 128318 » &k
AR RHEEBZEER BRAFTHRAMPES
Gh - B E2023F12A3MBILEE AEET
BEEREAHERNARGES S R/TEE =
% B BR ok 1 S A B BE S A L VE B SR i1
ETHELR o

5 PRl B 10 BB L 51 &

$2022F 15138  EF S ERPT R
MEBEMFTE - ZRHIRMDEMETEIEEEB
MES - #F - afBENMERREEEELRA
ARENKE  REBESEAAEEELER -
WS - FEEEBEEREHREENET
BASENRKRER RIERMSE 1 o Robert
Sun Holdings i 2 B R 2 B B s Ak L + DAFS
BREIREBOEMGTEFLHERS - B
s F2HBRERIMNGEN — ATk
—RER — D.EMER — 1.ZRHIRMHE

frstaEl] -

BESEAUTERY 2HXRARNEMLD
RIBEZR I B F 8RR L - FIBT

Number of ~ Number of
Number of Shares Shares Shares  Approximate
underlying RSUs cancelled lapsed percentage of
granted as of the Unvested RSUs as  during the  during the ~shareholding
Latest Practicable Vesting of 31 December Reporting Reporting in the
Name of the grantee Position held Grant date Date Period” 2023 Period Period Company
HERKTA BZ2023%F
AHERNZRE 12A31H BEBR KEHR RELT
RO EMHEE ABRNZRH BEHEN EFS 4 RiED
ERAEH RERL it A & ROWEE HEHO ROEL  RHEBE ROBE HOBDL
Mr. Yang Hong Executive Director 31 March 2023 1,000,000 10 years from 1,000,000 — — 0.82%
and vice president the grant date
of the Company
BHEE RNITEFHRARAE 2023F3A31H 1,000,000 #FiEAHETF 1,000,000 — - 0.82%

B

The grantee of the RSUs granted under the RSU Scheme as referred
to in the table above is not required to pay for the grant or exercise
of any RSUs. None of the RSUs were vested and all of the RSUs
were outstanding as of the Latest Practicable Date. The Company
will not issue or grant further RSUs under the RSU Scheme.

ERAARZEZR G D B ER BT
BR 1| B £ B8 iz 0 73 A B 2B ST AR 3R Bk
TEERZRHBENELCNER BERRK
ATHE RRGIRNDEMLERE - IEX
BRI B 00 B AL 15 RTTE » AR A A BRI
R DEMAEBTIARTELXRS
Betn B
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 26 June 2023, the Board resolved to adopt the Share Award
Scheme to (i) recognise and reward certain eligible participants for
their performance and contribution to the growth and development
of the Group; (i) to provide such eligible participants with incentives
in order to encourage and retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group; and (iii) to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group. Pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme, (i) employees of the Group; and (ii) any persons who have
contributed to the Group in the past and/or are in the interests of
the long-term growth of the Group are eligible to participate in, and
be granted Awards under the Scheme. On the same day, the
Company entered into a trust deed (the “Trust Deed”) with CMB
Wing Lung (Trustee) in respect of the appointment of the trustee for
the administration of the Share Award Scheme.

According to the scheme rules (the “Scheme Rules”), the Board may,
either before or after identification of the grantee(s), cause to be
paid to the Trustee or the trust holdco (a company as a company
wholly-owned by the CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) to act as the trustee)
such amount as may be required for the purchase of existing Shares
from the market as the awarded shares (the “Awarded Shares”) for
the Share Award Scheme and other purposes set out in the Scheme
Rules and the Trust Deed. The aggregate number of Shares to be
awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date (i.e. being no more than 6,260,020 Shares). The
number of Shares awarded to each grantee under the Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed the percentage cap as determined by the
Board of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption
date in accordance with the Listing Rules and all applicable laws.
The Board may at any time on any business day during the scheme
period grant an award (the “Award”) to any eligible participant, as
the Board may in its absolute discretion select. Subject to and in
accordance with and the Scheme Rules, the Listing Rules and all
applicable laws, the Board may, on a case-by-case basis and at its
discretion, impose any conditions, restrictions or limitations before
the Award can vest as it sees fit.

The Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the 10th anniversary
of the Adoption Date; (i) the date the last of the Awarded Shares
has been vested and the last of the Awarded Shares transferred to
the relevant Grantee or the last of the Awarded Shares has been
settled, lapsed, forfeited or cancelled (as the case may be) in
accordance with the Scheme Rules, and (iii) such date as
determined by the Board provided that such termination shall not
affect any subsisting rights of any grantee hereunder.

For details of the Share Award Scheme, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 26 June 2023 and 28 June
2023.
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During the Reporting Period, the Trustee or the trust holdco had
purchased and aggregate 6,208,000 Shares pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme, representing approximately 5.10% of the total issued
share capital of the Company as of the date of this annual report.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 1 August 2023 and 11 September 2023.

No Awarded Shares had been granted to any grantees under the
Share Award Scheme as of the Latest Practicable Date. 6,208,000
Shares were available for grant under the Share Award Scheme as of
the Latest Practicable Date, representing approximately 5.10% of the
total Shares of the Company in issue.

Pursuant to Rule 17.07(3) of the Listing Rules, the total number of
shares that may be issued in respect of the Awarded Shares under
the Share Award Scheme during the Reporting Period divided by the
weighted average number of shares of the relevant class in issue for
the period was 2.78.

Pursuant to Rule 17.09(3) of the Listing Rules, the total number of
Shares of the Company available for issue under the Share Award
Scheme is 52,020 Shares, representing approximately 0.04% of the
121,701,800 Shares of the Company in issue as at the date of the
annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer pre-emptive rights of new shares to existing
Shareholders on their shareholding proportion.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
as at the Latest Practicable Date and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained
the minimum public float required by the Stock Exchange since the
Listing Date and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have
any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22
of the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters,
no contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was
entered into or in existence as at the end of the year or at any time
during the Reporting Period.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year and has recommended their adoption by the Board.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environment
protection and has not noted any material incompliance with all
relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business including
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the
environment. The Group has implemented environmental protection
measures and has also encouraged staff to be environmental-
friendly at work by consuming the electricity and paper according to
actual needs, so as to reduce energy consumption and minimise
unnecessary waste. Further details of the Group’s environmental
policies and performance will be disclosed in the environmental,
social and governance report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware that any holders of securities of the
Company are entitled to any tax relief or exemption by reason of
their holding of such securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors. Based on
their confirmation, the Company considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent under the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as well
as preserving the interests of the Shareholders as a whole. The
Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code as its own code to govern its corporate
governance practices. In the opinion of the Directors, save as
disclosed in this annual report, the Company has complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the Corporate Governance
Code during the Reporting Period. The Board will continue to review
and monitor the practices of the Company with an aim to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 39 to 50 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2023, PricewaterhouseCoopers has
served as the independent external auditor of the Company. The
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The auditor of the
Company have not changed since the Listing Date.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of significant events after the Reporting Period are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board
Plus Group Holdings Inc.

Sun Guangjun
Chairman and CEO

Shanghai, the PRC
28 March 2024

Report of the Directors

EFEHRE

LEER

ARFRIRBERFOEREBHEARRAN
EENRRERREEBES LNERME - K
N E B RN B A ST RIS /0 T AR
MEACREREBHTA - EFERE - KA
FHAAPBEEI  AARRERE AR ET
EXERTAMANBEBTIGR E5g
HERRELRERANARNER  5EHEGR
BARFROERER NRARARANDEE
BEBERMBRNAFREIE0ANEEE

AR -

BB M

BE2023F12A3TB LR - BERKES
D37 PR AN R R RO JB L HM AP A B
AERABHGEE T HRRC AR ZRKE
GETEVEBMES - B LT RBR - ADFH
BB ) -

BEHENERER

BEMRNERFHEFBIANGE AP HRE
FEEE30 °

REEFE
EROEEZERERAR

FERITEAEZ
BREE

B e
202443 A 28H

ZHMETERERAT —ZS-=FFH®R 69



—

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the Shareholders of Plus Group Holdings Inc.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Plus Group Holdings Inc.
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out
on pages 76 to 188, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As disclosed in note 2.8 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group invested HKD30,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB27,187,000) and HKD10,000,000 (equivalent to RMB9,062,000)
respectively in two investments with guaranteed return rates of
5.15% and 5.10% respectively, which were both private offshore
funds (the “Funds”) newly established in the Cayman Islands. The
Funds are classified as financial assets in the consolidated statement
of financial position and measured at amortised cost. The Group did
not accrue for any guaranteed returns from the Funds for the year
ended 31 December 2023. Subsequent to the year end date, the
Group redeemed these Funds in March 2024 and collected the
investment principal together with return amounted to
HKD40,330,000 (equivalent to RMB36,595,000).

The Group’s management was not able to provide supporting
documents about the balance of the Funds, the underlying assets
held by the Funds and the value of the Funds as at 31 December
2023. The Group's management represented that they were not able
to obtain any statement nor information from the administrators and
managers of the Funds despite repeated written requests.

The amounts of the returns collected upon the redemption of the
Funds are less than the amounts calculated based on the
guaranteed return rates of 5.15% and 5.10%, respectively.
Management represented that they have requested the
administrators and managers of the Funds for explanation of the
shortfall, but no reply has been received up to date.

We were not able to obtain direct confirmations from the
administrators, managers and directors of the Funds. We were also
unable to meet the administrators, managers, and directors of the
Funds to obtain all necessary corroborative evidence to substantiate
the transactions, the classification, the balances and the value of the
Funds. Given these scope limitations, there were no alternative audit
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to the
commercial substance of the transactions related to the Funds and
to the accuracy, existence, classification, valuation, and presentation
of the Funds, and whether the effects of these transactions related
to the Funds, including the related cashflows, have been properly
accounted for and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'S
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we
have determined the matter described below to be the key audit

matter to be communicated in our report.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to revenue

recognition based on output method.

Key Audit Matter
HEETEE

BREESEE
AREAZTHIREBERMANZRHE R4
BAHRAVBRRNBARASEENSEHE o
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AREEFENER - BKRTIREEANER]
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHES R R EEIR

Revenue recognition based on output method.
ERELENBARER -

Refer to notes 4(a) and 5 to the consolidated financial
statements. \ \
BA2HRE VBRI TE4@) KM FES ©

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recognised total revenue of RMB725,948,000 over time as
the customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits provided by the Group’'s performance.
Furthermore, revenue recognition of the Group over time
were based on output method, which were recorded on
the basis of direct measurement of the value of services
provided to the customers to date relative to the
remaining services promised to be completed under the
service contracts. Significant management judgements
and estimates were involved in determination of the
value of service provided and therefore, we considered
this was a key audit matter.

B E2023F12A31MBIEFE - AR B P R FZ K EE
B OESERNREENTR At ESEER—BERA
ERARUA A RE725,948,0007T ° tHN - EEEIRIEE
HRETMARR  EREEAEEPES RIEERMERN
PR 75 48 55 7 AR 75 -6 49 7R 7 56 T 5K B0 78 2 AR 7% 80 (B (B M FE 3R
Wik - AR EEERERENEER IREREENEANH
i M Al T Bk - RAIRB R ERAETFE -
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Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition
included:
BMEWAERE BT

(@) Obtained an understanding of management’s
internal controls and processes of revenue
recognition from service contracts, and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and the level of other inherent risk factors such as
subjectivity;

(@ THEREREHRGEEOWATREREAEZES RRE
I 38 38 E Bl 5T B TR TE 1 RN EL th [E] 5 [ A 2= (10
FEM)NRE A EARBROESRER

(b)  Evaluated and tested, on a sample basis, the key
controls over the revenue recognition on service

contracts;
(b)  HAAREF il KRl 3 AR 5 & A0 MR A REE SR A L 38 422 L
i

(c)  Checked, on a sample basis, the contracts sum and
calculation basis for the total value of service
provided, where applicable, to the terms of the
contracts;

€ WBEAHER HEGRLBERREERBEED
SEAE(ER)

(d Checked, on a sample basis, the underlying
documents of services provided;
(d HERERERG S S FFE S

(e) Discussed with management and obtain
corroborative evidence to consider the revision of
revenue estimation made by management based on
supporting documents.

(e) EREIEE 51 om I HRAF AR FE #7818 LA 75 BR B 28 [ S UK
ANEE RS ET 2 E P B I M X -

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found that
the judgement and estimates adopted by management in
the revenue recognition based on output method were
supported by the available evidence.
BEEMBTHETET  BMNEREEBEREBE LA
RU AR TR AR HE RS AR ANER R



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
evidence about accuracy, existence, classification, valuation and
presentation of the Funds, and the corresponding effects of the
transactions related to the Funds, including the related cashflows.
Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the other
information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Chun Yee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REZHEWER

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLLEE

2023 2022
2023 20224F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5% ARETR ARETIT
Revenue & 5 725,948 618,110
Cost of services Bl 7% B 2 7 (631,086) (444,543)
Gross profit EF 94,862 173,567
Administrative expenses THRAX 7 (92,643) (77,874)
Selling and marketing expenses HERZHAYT 7 (21,072) (19,308)
Research and development expenses — #ff 35 &2 7 (29,284) (25,019)
Other income H bz A 6 20,271 27,894
Other gains — net Hibhres — F5 6 45,614 1,002
Impairment losses on financial assets < @& & B & 18 A(b)
(iv) (372) (553)
Operating profit ReERA 17,376 79,709
Finance income B 75 WA 10 4,920 162
Finance costs B 75 K 2R 10 (3,360) (3,073)
Finance costs — net WIS AN — 5 1,560 2,911)
Share of profit/(losses) of associates FE(REE & R BEFI
— net (E518)— 8 16 72 (200)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 i B & A 19,008 76,598
Income tax expenses Frisfif X 11 (7,506) (23,896)
Profit for the year F At 11,502 52,702
Profit and total comprehensive income 72 T)#H AEEFREF
for the year attributable to owners of RZHEHKZHEHAEE
the Company 11,502 52,702
Earnings per share attributable to the ZAATEEABESRER
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted (expressed in RMB per Z=7K Kz #58
share) (AEBRAREIIR) 12 0.10 0.53

76  PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Annual Report 2023




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
E MR R R

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2023 2022
2023 £ 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARE T ARBFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment B & 14 1,363 984
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 15 279 2,509
Investments in associates REEE DRI IRE 16 4,547 4,475
Deferred income tax assets BIEFBHEE 17 1,119 676
7,308 8,644
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets AREE 20 164,442 190,624
Trade receivables B 5 WA 19 276,346 344,902
contract costs A B AR 5 931 480
Deposits, other receivables and Re - HEMERGRIE KRB
prepayments KIA 19 21,989 19,772
Other financial assets at amortised cost & # $#45k R 5+ 8 1 H {th
EREE 21 36,249 =
Cash and cash equivalents HeMBSEEY 22 190,976 62,704
690,983 618,482
Total assets EEHE 698,291 627,126
EQUITY =
Share capital % 7% 165 130
Share premium =B 213,645 =
Other reserves H A& 23 94,283 151,994
Retained earnings REB AT 200,089 194,370
Total equity RERBE 508,182 346,494
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2023 2022
2023 £ 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® T AR T T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liability FRBEME
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 5 55
Current liabilities REBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 231 2,319
Borrowings B 26 55,000 61,273
Trade and other payables B 5 K E b FE AT IR 25 126,534 203,032
Contract liabilities AHAEE 20 7,259 6,858
Income tax payables T FRIS L 1,080 5,648
Amounts due to a related party FET— & B 77 5R0R 29 — 1,447
190,104 280,577
Total liabilities BERE 190,109 280,632
Total equity and liabilities Rk AEARE 698,291 627,126
The above consolidated statements of financial position should be A _E4RE BFF5 A 7 3 FE B2 B8 B BT ok — OF B 78 o

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

ZENBRREN2024FIA28EREZSH
o WARERKRRE -

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on
28 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf.

Sun Guangjun Yang Hong
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANFHEE AER
Other
Share capital Share reserves Retained
(Note 23(a)) Premium  (Note 23(b)) earnings  Total equity
S HitRe
(H&E23@)) RERE  (ME230)) REEF et
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PEMl AR%Tr AR®Tr AR¥Tr AR¥TR ARETxR
Balance as at 1 January 2023 R2023F1 B 1B &R 130 — 151,994 194,370 346,494
Contribution from shareholder BRLE 1.2(e) — — 1,567 — 1,567
Profit and total comprehensive FREMEEZENRRE
income for the year — — — 11,502 11,502
Shares issued pursuant to initial RERBBBRERS
public offering on the Main Board  FTBR 2 Al 1R
of The Stock Exchange of Hong BRARBERTH
Kong Limited (the “Listing") fxn (T k) 35 233,967 — - 234,002
Listing expenses capitalised upon ~ EHHEE BRI L
the Listing % — (15,733) — — (15,733)
Share repurchase REE — — (65,061) — (65,061)
Payment of special dividend TRERIRE — (4,589) — — (4,589)
Transfer to statutory reserves BREETHRE 23(b) — - 5,783 (5,783) —
Balance as at 31 December 2023  2023F12A8318 1
g3 165 213,645 94,283 200,089 508,182
Balance as at 1 January 2022 R2022F1 B1BM& 8 130 = 181,600 143,301 325,031
Capital injection from a new HRFEEE 1.2(e)
shareholder — — 3510 — 3510
Profit and total comprehensive FRGHEE2ANZRE
income for the year — — — 52,702 52,702
Transfer to statutory reserves ERELTRE 23() — = 1,633 (1,633) =
Deemed distribution RIED K 1.2(8) = = (34,749) = (34,749)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 R2022512A31AK
i 130 = 151,994 194,370 346,494
* Less than RMB1,000. * DR AR1,0007T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR®¥ TR AR T T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHFBRERE
Net cash generated from operations BEFMSH ®/F58 27(a) 28,699 95,906
Income tax paid AR IS (18,815) (24,303)
Net cash generated from operating KRB TSI S )FE
activities 9,884 71,603
Cash flows from investing activities REZTHNRESRE
Interest received 2 FE 4,920 162
Purchase of plant and equipment BEWE k& 14 (863) (392)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and & R S K 5% 1 1S 3R
equipment 20 4
Subscription of wealth management R TR S K AN FT 2 BV IR BY
products at amortised cost Em 21 (36,249) —
Subscription of financial assets at fair ~ REBEAFEFABRNS
value through profit or loss & E — (683,800)
Redemption of financial assets at fair ~ BEIZAFET ABZRNE
value through profit or loss & E — 688,553
Advance to controlling shareholder A) 422 % R R A 5Kk (2,674) —
Repayment from controlling shareholder 2 % I 5838 X 2,674 —
Net cash (used in)/generated from ®EES (FTR)/FiisRe
investing activities il (32,172) 4,527
Cash flows from financing activities METHNRSRE
Interest paid BAFE (2,003) (2,093)
Payment of listing expenses ST EWRAX (10,399) (3,340)
Proceeds from the Listing ETATBKIA 234,002 —
Repayment of lease liabilities (including EEHE&E
interest expense) (BEMBERX) (2,648) (4,991)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERFT1S IR 85,000 61,273
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIBITER (91,273) (54,800)
Dividend paid to shareholders KA F AR R A9 A% B 13 (4,589) —
Advance from controlling shareholder % & & B8 24 2% 89 1,447
Shares repurchase % B B (65,061) —
Deemed distribution to shareholders RAEM KR DR 1.2(9) — (34,749)
Capital injection from shareholder REEE 1.2(a),
1.2(e) — 3,510
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEEBAE(FTA) RS
financing activities FEE 143,118 (33,743)
Net increase in cash and cash ReELBRSEEYILMFEE
equivalents 120,830 42,387
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EX# & 7,442 —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E#3E & LIRS EHEY
of the year 62,704 20,317
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRESRBESZEEY
of the year 22 190,976 62,704
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION
AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

1.1

1.2

General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 30 September 2021 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961 as amended or supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time) of the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the
Company’s registered office is PO Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong is
located inUnit 3525, 35/F, Two Pacific Place, 88
Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the customised
marketing solution, tasks and marketers matching
service, marketers assignment service and SaaS+
subscription in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
(the “Listing Business”). The ultimate holding company of
the Company is Junshu Holdings Limited. The ultimate
controlling party of the Company is Mr. Sun Guangjun
("Mr. Sun”).

Reorganisation

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the
completion of the reorganisation as described below (the
“Reorganisation”), the Listing Business was mainly carried
out by Plus (Shanghai) Digital Technologies Co., Ltd.
(“Plus Shanghai”), a limited liability company established
in the PRC, and its subsidiaries (the “PRC Operating
Companies”). Before the completion of the
Reorganisation, the PRC Operating Companies were held
and controlled by Mr. Sun.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

1. GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION 1. —RER - EARZHEE

AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (&)
(CONTINUED)
1.2 Reorganisation (Continued) 1.2 E4 (&)

In preparation for the initial public offering and listing of
the shares of the Company on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing”), the
Group underwent the Reorganisation to incorporate the
Company as the holding company of the companies
which now comprise the Group to conduct the Listing
Business. The Reorganisation involved the following
steps:

(@ Incorporation of the Company and offshore

shareholding restructuring

On 30 September 2021, the Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, with an authorised share capital of
USD50,000 divided into 50,000 shares of a nominal
or par value of USD1.0 each. Upon the
incorporation, one ordinary share of par value of
USD1.0 was allotted and issued to an initial
subscriber at par value, and was subsequently
transferred to Guangjun Sun Holdings Limited
("Guangjun Sun Holdings”). On even date, the
Company allotted and issued a total of 19,999
ordinary shares of par value of USD1.0 each to
Guangjun Sun Holdings, Guangjun Holdings Limited
(“Guangjun Holdings"), Robert Sun Holdings Limited
("Robert Sun Holdings”), Hannah Xia Holdings
Limited (“Hannah Xia Holdings”), Sky Xia Holdings
Limited (“Sky Xia Holdings"), Kuwei Holdings Limited
("Kuwei Holdings"”), Kuzhong Holdings Limited
("Kuzhong Holdings") and Puzhong Holdings Limited
(“Puzhong Holdings") at par value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION
AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
(CONTINUED)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

(b)

()

(d

Incorporation of an offshore subsidiary in the BVI

On 12 October 2021, Channel Power Plus Inc.
(“Channel Power”) was incorporated as a limited
liability company in the BVI. On even date, one
share was allotted and issued to the Company and
Channel Power became a directly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Incorporation of an offshore subsidiary in Hong
Kong

Oon 5 November 2021, Plus (HK) Digital
Technologies Limited (“Plus (HK)") was incorporated
in Hong Kong. Upon the incorporation, 10,000
shares were allotted and issued to Channel Power
and Plus (HK) became an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Establishment of the wholly foreign owned
enterprise

On 30 November 2021, Shanghai Channel Plus
Technologies Co., Ltd. ("WFOE”) was established
under the laws of the PRC as a wholly foreign
owned enterprise with a registered capital of
USD10,000,000 and it is wholly owned by Plus (HK).
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e M |RME
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GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION
AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
(CONTINUED)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

(e)

U]

PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

Capital increase of Plus Shanghai in December
2021 and conversion into a foreign-invested
enterprise of Plus Shanghai

In December 2021, the registered capital of Plus
Shanghai was increased from RMB61,555,000 to
RMB62,177,000. Pursuant to the capital increase
agreement dated 8 December 2021, New Mercury
Investments Limited (“New Mercury Investments”)
agreed to subscribe for the increased registered
capital of RMB622,000 at a consideration of
RMB3,510,000. New Mercury Investments was
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Pun Kai Cheung
(“Mr. Pun”), before the share swap as stated
below. After such capital increase, Plus Shanghai
became a foreign-invested enterprise. Such capital
injection was fully paid by Mr Pun in February
2022.

Capital increase by WFOE into Plus Shanghai

In January 2022, the registered share capital of Plus
Shanghai was further increased from
RMB62,177,000 to RMB621,768,000, which was fully
contributed by WFOE at a consideration of
RMB559,592,000. Upon completion of such capital
increase, Plus Shanghai was held as to 6.4%, 1.1%,
1.0%, 0.7%, 0.5%, 0.1%, 0.1%, 0.1% and 90.0% by
Mr. Sun, Ningbo Kuwei Investment Management
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Ningbo Kuwei”),
Mr. Xia Jingtang (“Mr. Xia"), Ningbo Mingda
Shengrui Equity investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (“Mingda Shengrui”), Shanghai Puwei
Business Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (“Shanghai Puwei”), Ningbo Kuzhong
Investment Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (“Ningbo Kuzhong”), Ningbo Hanzhong
Investment Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (“Ningbo Hanzhong”), New Mercury
Investments and WFOE, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION
AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
(CONTINUED)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

(€]

()

Acquisition of minority interests of Plus Shanghai

Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement dated
9 February 2022, Mr. Sun, Ningbo Kuwei, Mr. Xia,
Mingda Shengrui, Shanghai Puwei, Ningbo Kuzhong
and Ningbo Hanzhong agreed to transfer aggregate
9.9% equity interests in Plus Shanghai to WFOE at
total considerations of RMB34,749,000. After the
completion of the equity transfer, Plus Shanghai
was held as to 99.9% by WFOE.

Subdivision and share swap

On 25 February 2022, each share of par value of
USD1.0 of the Company was subdivided into 100
shares of par value of USDO0.01 and thus the
authorised share capital of the Company
USD50,000 was divided into 5,000,000 shares of a
nominal or par value of USD0.01 each.

On 1 March 2022, a share swap agreement was
entered into between the Company, Channel
Power, Brand Wisdom Limited (“Brand Wisdom”)
and No.1 Mercury Holdings Limited (“No.1 Mercury
Holdings"), the holding company of New Mercury
Investments and was ultimate controlled by Mr
Pun, pursuant to which Brand Wisdom agreed to
sell and Channel Power agreed to purchase 100%
interest of No.1 Mercury Holdings with the par
value of USD1.0 at a consideration of the Company
allotting and issuing 4,008 shares with the par value
of USDO0.01 each to Brand Wisdom. Upon
completion of the share swap, the Company was
owned as to approximately 52.3%, 15.0%, 8.6%,
7.2%, 5.5%, 5.2%, 5.0%, 1.0% and 0.2% by
Guangjun Holdings, Guangjun Sun Holdings, Kuwei
Holdings, Hannah Xia Holdings, Puzhong Holdings,
Kuzhong Holdings, Sky Xia Holdings, Robert Sun
Holdings and Brand Wisdom, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

1. GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION 1. —RER - EARZHEE

AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (#&)
(CONTINUED)
1.2 Reorganisation (Continued) 1.2 E# (8\)
(h)  Subdivision and share swap (Continued) (hy DHERERGE)
Upon completion of the Reorganisation and as at REHRTKERINARE B
the date of this report, the Company had direct or B ARBRUATHERAF
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: HEEEXHEER
Equity interest held (%)
iR (%)
Place, date of incorporation/ As at the
establishment and nature of Principal activities and place of Registered/ As at date of this
Name legal entity operations issued capital 31 December report
FMAL/RAGE AH i/ RERE
R NREEERME TEEBRLEE Y ERTRA M12A318 =R
2022
20225
Direct Interests
EERR
Channel Power Plus Inc. BVI, 12 October 2021, limited ~ Investment holding in BVI usD1 100% 100% 100%
liability company
Channel Power Plus Inc. ABRAES REBRAHERTRE I
2021510A128 « &R R
EEATF
Indirect Interests
G2 4
Plus (HK) Digital Technologies Limited The PRC (Hong Kong), Investment holding in Hong Kong ~ HKD10,000 100% 100% 100%
LLE(FR) TN EERAR 05 November 2021, limited
liability company
LM (B8 BFRRARAH i (BE) - REBETREER 10,0007
0215117458 - AR
G
No.1 Mercury Holdings Limited BVI, 01 December 2021, limited  Investment holding in BVI usD1 100% 100% 100%
liability company
No.1 Mercury Holdings Limited LBRAES REBRAHERTRE I
021%12818 ' R 2R
N
New Mercury Investments Limited The PRC (Hong Kong), Investment holding in Hong Kong ~ HKD100 100% 100% 100%
MKEREERAR 08 November 2021, limited
liability company
MKEREERARA HE (F) - WEBETRERER 10047
01511788 « BR
GG
Shanghai Channel Plus Technologies Co., Ltd. The PRC, 30 November 2021, Investment holding in Shanghai USD10,000,000 100% 100% 100%
FRMEENRERA A limited liability company
FEMAERBBRAR HE '{2021@11)%305 BB REBETRARR 10,000,000 7
EEAT
Plus (Shanghai) Digital Technologies Co., Ltd. The PRC, 06 August 2004, Providing digitalised commerce RMB621,768,000 100% 100% 100%
LM (LE) BT RHEARAR* limited liability company integrated solution services in
mainland China
LM (LB BFRRBRAR B - 200458 A6H - BR RpERtRESF I ER TR ARK621,768,0007T
EfERA GESLY ]
Shanghai Winning Idea Marketing Solution ~ The PRC, 25 June 2004, limited  Providing digitalised commerce RMB20,000,000 100% 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. liability company integrated solution Services in
FERETSEHREERA R mainland China
HERBTSEERBARA R MR 004E6ABE ER  RPEMMRAST(ERGAER  AKRE20,000,0007T
EfEAR LELL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION 1. —RER - EEARZIEE

AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (4&)
(CONTINUED)
1.2 Reorganisation (Continued) 1.2 E#(\)
(h)  Subdivision and share swap (Continued) hy 2HEFRER(E)
Equity interest held (%)
Fris R (%)
Place, date of incorporation/ As at the
establishment and nature of Principal activities and place of Registered/ As at date of this
Name legal entity operations issued capital 31 December report
BMAL/ RIS A i/ RERE
£R NREGERME TEERRSE DY BRIRA M12A318 A
2023 2022
RESN  2022F
Shanghai Winning Idea Marketing Services  The PRC, 05 April 2017, limited  Providing digitalised commerce RMBS,000,000 100% 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. liability company integrated solution services in
FERBEEREERAR mainland China
LERAEHEREERAA HE 2017458  BR RABERRES P EREaBA  ARES0000007T
LN HERH%
Shanghai Harvest Marketing Solution Services The PRC, 10 June 2009, Providing digitalised commerce RMB8,000,000 100% 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. limited liability company integrated solution services in
LEBATSEERABRAA mainland China
FEBRTHEHREBRA A R 2009F6A108 BB RPBERHREETEBGARE  ARKS000,0007T
EfERT LEY U
Shanghai Mecool Marketing Services The PRC, 18 July 2012, Providing digitalised commerce RMB12,000,000 100% 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. limited liability company integrated solution services in
LEREREREARA R mainland China
PERREEREERAA B 01ETABEER RTPERSREETEBRARA  ARK12000000T
EffAR LEY U
Shanghai Retail Winner Digital Technologies  The PRC, 01 April 2017, System developments in mainland ~ RMB2,000,000 100% 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. limited liability company China
DREBANEERMERA R
PREBRAMEERHERAF* HE ’12017@1)%1 B &R B P 1T R AT AR H#2,000,00070
EfEAR
Shanghai Mecool Business Consulting The PRC, 29 June 2015, Providing digitalised commerce RMBS5,000,000 100% 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. limited liability company integrated solution services in
EREERARERAR mainland China
FEREREREAERAA HE015F6A9E FR RPEREREETERGARA  AREKS000,0007T
REAT HERH
Shanghai Chengzhi Information Technology ~ The PRC, 06 August 2020, Providing digitalised commerce RMBS5,000,000 100% 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. limited liability company integrated solution services in
LERBREERHARAR mainland China
LEEZEERMRARAR" FE 20058468 AR RAERtRER P EREaBA  AREKS50000007
NG HERB
Beijing Plus Technology Co., Ltd The PRC, 18 August 2021, Investment holding in the PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100% 100%
FRELAREERA limited liability company
FRELAMBEERAF* HE -12021¢8ﬂ185 BR R EETRERR AR %1,000,0007C
EfEAR
Beijing Ruosheng Technology Co., Ltd The PRC, 16 August 2021, Investment holding in the PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100% 100%
FREBNRARA R limited liability company
FREBHRBRA A RE202158A168  BR  RPEETREER ARH1,000,0007
AR
* The English name of certain subsidiaries referred to @ il E T B A R A&
above represented the best efforts by management FREXEZHE HEX
in translating their Chinese names as they do not ZEDERBERN#E
have official English names. HAp X ZEHE -
# Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises b B4R A BUE 2 & i Aok
under PRC law. HEERE -
ZHMEEERERAT —B-=FFK 87
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GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION

AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

(CONTINUED)

1.3 Basis of presentation
Immediately prior to and after the Reorganisation, the
Listing Business is mainly conducted through the PRC
Operating Companies. Pursuant to the Reorganisation,
the PRC Operating Companies are transferred to and held
by the Company. The Company has not been involved in
any other business prior to the Reorganisation and do not
meet the definition of a business. The Reorganisation is
merely a recapitalisation of the Listing Business with no
change in management of such business and the
ultimate owners of the Listing Business remain the same.

Accordingly, the Group resulting from the Reorganisation
is regarded as a continuation of the Listing Business
under the Company and, for the purpose of this report,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group
(“Consolidated Financial Statements”) has been prepared
and presented as a continuation of the consolidated
financial statements of the PRC Operating Companies,
with the assets and liabilities of the Group recognised
and measured at the carrying amounts of the Listing
Business for all periods presented.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
the Consolidated Financial Statements are set out as below.
These policies have been consistently applied throughout the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The Consolidated Financial Statements has been
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBBRME
2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXETHEME(H)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 fmEEE(R)

HKFRS comprise the following authoritative literature :

o Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

o Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS")

o Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants

The Consolidated Financial Statements has been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”),
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the Consolidated Financial Statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

In preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
all of the new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations are adopted and consistently applied to
the Group throughout the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and amended standards adopted by the

2. EXREBEME &)
2.2 REBEBRAEHR] RAEIEET

Group =8l

The Group has applied the following new and amended REBE 5202351818 MHBH
standards for its annual reporting period commencing FEREBFEMA TR REB
1 January 2023: AT 2ER

HKAS 17

BB EREI75R

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
(Amendments)

BEGHEAZ1RREAVBREELNEKER
F259 (BFTA)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)
BB ERE’S (BT A)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)
BB G ERE125E (BFTA)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

FREFTERFE 125 (BT A)

Insurance Contracts
REE 4

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SRR E

Definition of Accounting Estimates
R R A

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction
HRE - HEFNEERBERBERLENIE

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model
Rules
B ARAE — I8 AR
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2.

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted by the Group
The following new and amended standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 and have

not been early adopted by the Group.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M |RME

2.

Rl R ©

EREHEHEHE (&)

2.3 AEE M REAWHITR
CHELIEY
REEHARRFRA TIFET &
RIEETER 2B (HE2022F &
202312 31 B I E B EAE

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or
after

RUT B8R
ZEBBE
FEHI A AR

®

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
BBEGEERIFE 19 (IBFTA)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
BBEGEERIFE 19 (IBFTA)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

BN REERFE 1657 (IBRTA)

HKFRS 7 and HKAS 7 (Amendments)

BEYVEREERF7H L EB G2
F79 (EFTA)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)

BEREBESHE (BERD)

HKAS 21 (Amendments)

FRETERE215 (BRI A)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BEMBREENE10R L EESER
2858 (BRI A)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current
HEEIEAREIIERE

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
BRFEHIERBIEE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
EROENEERRE

Supplier finance arrangements
HERRLE 25

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

MWK IN® — ERAHRBIEEARE
ERERERNEHERN S

Lack of Exchangeability

TR F] A

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

KREEHEEBRENANEELEZBNE
EHEITE

1 January 2024
20241H18

1 January 2024
20241 H1H

1 January 2024
20241H18

1 January 2024
20241H18

1 January 2024

20241 H18

1 January 2025
202541 A1A8

To be determined

e
~F A

AEEC B EREFNT RE

BT EAIRBREBNTE - RIEE
BREETHNSIE  REEK
Ry 3 7K 5 [ O B 75 3R 3R BGiRO TR
HPIreELERTE -

impact of these new and amended standards and
interpretations. According to the preliminary assessment
made by management, no significant impact on the
financial performance and positions of the Group is
expected when they become effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

2.

92

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(@) Subsidiaries

(1)

PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated fully from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of financial
position, respectively.

Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(if)

(1f)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with
non-controlling interests that do not result in
a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is
recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

RE M |RME

2. ERASTHEME(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

2.

94

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

e -

Changes in ownership interests (Continued)
When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because of
a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or
an associate is reduced but joint control or
significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.  SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(b)

()

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 15% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised at cost.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group's share of
movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in accordance
with the policy described in Note 2.7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. ERSHHEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Segment reporting 2.5

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the chairman of the Group that makes
strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation 2.6
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The Consolidated Financial Statements
is presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within “other
gains — net".

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

96  PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.  Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

RE M |RME

2. BEXRETHBRRBE (H)
2.6 SMERE ()

(c)

EZRMEEZERERAE

[ ———

@A
BAETRNRE5E%6IhEE
BRI R (P E
BEABEBRRCERBNE
¥ HERERMBARRE
BRTIAABEREINE
W

s NEUBRAKRET
MEERABRZY
BRI K B 5 #
PEXBE

e BxHEHERMWA
&F‘fﬁ?ﬂkﬂ?i’/ﬂiﬁt}ﬁl
B (FRIFAERIW IR
ZBEHHRITEERR
RRRENAENE
EZBERT WA R
MXx&X5HE MK
8) &k

s MAHUBMELAWEXR
EZEOEHEMEE

EiR A AKRE - REBEERI
EEENOEMREFRAK
8 R IR TE BRI E
Y HE A Bh T B i A EY
PE N EBRAEE MRS T
MR - B ERINERLE
EEK— B REFENE
&R - ARREE X E A
BE¥ N @é%” ERHE
B —afo

—Bo=FF® 97



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

EXSTBEME (&)
27 kEWMEERE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

98

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment l0ss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets

(@)

(b)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

a) Those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income “OCI" or through profit or loss); and

b)  Those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’'s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes. If collection of the amounts is
expected in one year or less they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets. The Company’s and the
Group's financial assets comprise trade receivables,
contract assets, deposits and other receivables,
other financial assets at amortised cost, and cash
and cash equivalents.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(o)

100 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

e -

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial asset carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit and loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the group
classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains — net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
OCl, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains — net.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other gains —
net and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains — net in the period in
which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(d)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit loss associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 3 details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value of
all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the
financial assets.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the assets.
The provision matrix is determined based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables and contract assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date the historical observed default rate is
updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Impairment on deposits and other receivables is
measured as either 12-month expected credit
losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred
since initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

For other financial assets at amortised cost,
including amounts due from related parties, cash
and cash equivalents, management considers that
their credit risks have not increased significantly
since initial recognition with reference to the
counterparty historical default rate and current
financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M |RME

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXETHEME(H)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

29 EEemI A

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statements of
financial position where the Group has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty. There was no financial asset and liability
offset during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables from certain customers of the Group,
whose contractual cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, were factored to reputable
financial institutions under non-recourse factoring
arrangement according to the Group’s daily fund
management needs. These trade receivable’s business
model is therefore achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling of these assets and
measures them subsequently at fair value through OCI.

See Note 3.1(b)(iii) for a description of the Group's
impairment policies.

2.11 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the
Group obtains rights to receive consideration from the
customer and assumes performance obligations to
provide services to the customer. The combination of
those rights and performance obligations give rise to a
net asset or a net liability depending on the relationship
between the remaining rights and the performance
obligations. The contract is an asset and recognised as
contract assets if the measure of the remaining rights
exceeds the measure of the remaining performance
obligation. Contract assets are recognised when the
Group recognises revenue before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Conversely, a contract liability
represents the Group’s obligation to transfer the
aforesaid services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset becomes a receivable when the entity's
right to consideration is unconditional, which is the case
when only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due.

Contract assets are assessed for expected credit losses
in accordance with the policy set out in Note 3.1(b)(iii)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash at bank and
other financial institutions with original maturities of
three months or less.

2.13 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

EREHEHEHE (&)

2.15 B X

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statements of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit
or loss as finance cost.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the period-end
date.

2.16 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax
payable on the current year’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

2.18 Employee benefits

(@

Pension obligations

The Group only operate defined contribution
pension plans. In accordance with the rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC based employees
of the Group participate in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments
in the PRC under which the Group and the PRC
based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries. The
municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired PRC based employees’
payable under the plans described above. Other
than the monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of its
employees. The assets of these plans are held
separately from those of the Group in
independently administrated funds managed by the
governments.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

()

Housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurance plan. The Group contributes on a
monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees,
subject to certain ceiling. The Group's liability in
respect of these funds is limited to the
contributions payable in each year. Contributions to
the housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances are expensed as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or when an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of
terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mE KRR
2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)
(d) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including

(e)

®

non-monetary benefits and accumulating annual
leave that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable
to the Group’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Share based payment

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The difference in between the fair value of the
equity instruments to be transferred at the grant
date and the cash consideration to be received at
grant date was reorganised as “employee benefits”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBBRME
2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXETHEME(H)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.19 Provisions 2.19%1&

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.20 Revenue recognition 2.20 YRR

—

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the
goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the services may be
transferred over time or at a point in time.

Control of the service is transferred over time if the
Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

0 does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the services transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the customer obtains control of
the asset.

Contracts with customers may include multiple
performance obligations. For such arrangements, the
Group allocates revenue to each performance obligation
based on its relative standalone selling price. The Group
generally determines standalone selling prices based on
the prices charged to customers. If the standalone selling
price is not directly observable, it is estimated using
expected cost plus a margin or adjusted market
assessment approach, depending on the availability of
observable information. Assumptions and estimations
have been made in estimating the relative selling price of
each distinct performance obligation, and changes in
judgements on these assumptions and estimates may
impact the revenue recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EREFTHEME (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.20 Y= 1R (&)

When either party to a contract has performed, the
Group presents the contract in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a contract asset or a
contract liability, depending on the relationship between
the entity’s performance and the customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to
a customer. A receivable is recorded when the Group
has an unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right
to an amount of consideration that is unconditional,
before the Group transfers service to the customer, the
Group presents the contract liability when the payment is
made or a receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier). A
contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

The Group recognises costs incurred in obtaining
contracts with customers that are directly associated
with the contracts as contract costs if those costs are
expected to be recoverable. The contract costs are
amortised on a basis consistent with the pattern of the
transfer of the goods or services to which the asset
relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME
2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. BEAESHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.20 Yz 1R (&)

——

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on one of the
following methods that best depict the Group’s
performance in satisfying the performance obligation:

o direct measurements of the value transferred by the
Group to the customer; or

o the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation relative to the total
expected efforts or inputs.

The Group adopted output methods to recognise its
revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value to the customer of the services transferred to date
relative to the remaining services promised under the
contract. The Group’s service contracts for which internal
or customers’ project managers will certify the work on a
specific time interval basis over the service period.

The payment terms differed for different customers due
to the variety of projects. Tasks and marketers matching
service and marketers assignment service are charged on
monthly basis while customised marketing solution and
SaaS+ subscription services are charged on project basis.
Most of the payment is payable with credit term of 30—
180 days. The Group does not intend to give a financing
to customers and the Group make efforts to collect the
receivables and timely monitor the credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M |RME

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EREFTHEME (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.20 Y= 1R (&)

For revenue from customised marketing solution, tasks
and marketers matching service, marketers assignment
service and SaaS+ subscription that contain variable
consideration such as variations in the performance of
the labour and incentive payment, the Group estimates
the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled
using the most likely amount. The estimated amount of
variable consideration is included in the transactions
price only to the extent that it is highly probable that
such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

(@) Customised marketing solution
Customised marketing solution formulates and
implements customised sales and marketing plans
of the Group’s customers’ merchandise in offline
retail stores with a view to raising brand
awareness, promoting merchandise and driving
sales. In particular, the Group sets up venues,
arranges for marketers and event consumables and
facilitates overall project management. Typical
examples of customised sales and marketing
activities include promotional activities, marketing
events, roadshows, product launch events,
order-placing events and appreciation ceremonies.

The activities from customised marketing solution
all together form a single performance obligation as
the Group provides an integrated service. Revenue
is recognised over time as the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

()

Tasks and marketers matching service

Tasks and marketers matching service offers
standardised sales and marketing activities without
set up of offline venues and event materials. In
particular, the Group helps find suitable marketers
to promote customers’ merchandise and drive
sales by publishing tasks using the intelligent
matching recommendations. The Group offers
access to flexible resources deployment and
regularly evaluates the impact of tasks on sales
performance to enable dynamic adjustments of
suitable marketers and targeted offline retail stores
from the nationwide coverage. Typical examples of
Tasks and marketers matching service tasks include
in-store merchandise display and sales and
promotion of customers’ merchandise.

Revenue from tasks and marketers matching
service is recognised over time as the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance.

Marketers assignment service

Marketers assignment service offers manpower
assignment and management services. In particular,
the Group enables customers to reduce operating
costs associated with human resources-related
administration matters and converting offline
human resources information into data assets for
convenient management. Benefiting from marketers
assignment service, the customers can focus on
and allocate more management resources towards
their core business activities, while having access
to quality and stable workforce.

The marketers assignment service revenue is
recorded over time as the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Group’'s performance of the
monthly administration work.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d)

(e)

SaaS+ subscription

SaaS+ subscription offers customisation (on an
as-needed basis) and subscription for the
readily-available digitalised tools. In particular, the
digitalised tools support the customers to
streamline their sales and marketing process and
manage their offline retail network, as well as make
data-driven decisions.

Revenue from SaaS+ subscription service which
including data subscription and system set up is
under separate contracts and they are considered
as distinct performance obligations. The revenue is
recognised over time. When providing the system
set-up service, the Group's performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date. Besides, the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits of subscription service provided by the
Group as the Group performs. The Group generally
charges its customers with service fee for system
set up and a fixed subscription fee over the
contract period.

Principal versus agent considerations

Determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or as an agent in the provision of certain
services to its customers requires judgement and
consideration of all relevant facts and
circumstances. In evaluation of the Group’s role as
a principal or agent, the Group considers,
individually or in combination, whether the Group
controls the specified service before it is
transferred to the customer, is primarily
responsible for meeting customer specifications, is
subject to the risk associated with employment,
and has discretion in establishing prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBHRERME
2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXREBFHEME (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued) 220 WERFD (E)
(e) Principal versus agent considerations (Continued) e TESFSFTAHERARBAZE

() Customised marketing solution

Revenue for provision of customised
marketing solution is recognised on a gross
basis over time while the contract costs to
fulfil a contract, such as labour costs, event
consumables and operating costs are
recognised as cost of services. The Group
acts as a principal due to the following
reasons:

o The Group has control over the selection
and evaluation of service personnel,
such as discretion on salary package
and key performance indicators of the
staff employed and has the primarily
responsibility for the quality and
stability of the available staffing
resources.

o The Group is subject to the risks
associated with employment of the
employees. The Group has the
discretion in managing the specified
implementation of service plans, such
as promotion strategies, personnel
scheduling, and daily management plan.

o The Group is primarily responsible for
fulfilling the promise to provide the
specified commodities and services to
the customers and is subject to risk of
failure to fulfil the key performance
indicator metrics set by the customers.

o The Group has price discretion on the
amount paid to suppliers and it controls
the price setting to its customers based
on the nature and timing of individual
projects.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(e) Principal versus agent considerations (Continued)

(if)

7asks and marketers matching service

Revenue for tasks and marketers matching
service is recognised on a gross basis over
time while the contract costs to fulfil a
contract, such as operating costs and labour
costs are recognised as cost of services. The
Group acts as a principal due to the following
reasons:

o The Group acts as organisers and
project leaders in providing
standardised promotion service
implemented, such as budget
management, assisting with sales and
marketing activities, and other
day-to-day operations.

o The Group is primarily responsible for
fulfilling the promise to provide the
specified commodities and services to
the customers.

o The Group has the discretion on the
choose of supplier and resources input
in the projects and is subject to risk of
failure to fulfil the key performance
indicator metrics set by the customers.

o The Group has price discretion on the
amount paid to suppliers and it controls
the price setting to its customers based
on the nature and timing of individual
projects.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(e) Principal versus agent considerations (Continued)

(i) Marketers assignment service
Revenue for marketers assignment service is
recognised on a net basis over time which
the labour costs paid to the employees are
recorded to net off revenue. The Group acts
as an agent due to the following reasons:

o The Group provides advice to the
customers but lack of control over the
services implementation plan.

o The Group has no control over the daily
performance or work schedule of the
labour. For example, the Group has no
discretion on salary level of staff
employed.

o The Group assists the selection and
signs off the labour contracts with hired
personnel according to the final
decision made by the customers. The
Group is lack of the risk on the
recruited employees as they could get
full recovery from its customers on the
labour costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(e) Principal versus agent considerations (Continued)

(iv)

SaaS+ subscription

Revenue for SaaS+ subscription is recognised
on a gross basis over time while the contract
costs to fulfil a contract, such as operating
costs and labour costs for the set up services
are recognised as cost of services. The Group
acts as a principal due to the following
reasons:

o The Group is the organiser of the
services and primarily responsible for
fulfilling the promise to provide the
specified services to the customers.

o The Group controls the specified data
and the digitalised products before it is
transferred to the customer.

o The Group has the discretion on the
choose of supplier and resources input
in the projects and is subject to risk it
is failure to fulfil the requirement from
the customers.

o The Group has price discretion on the
amount paid to suppliers and it controls
the price setting to its customers based
on the nature and timing of individual
projects.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

ERSTTHEME(E)
220 WERFD (E)

——

()  Existence of significant financing component
The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

(g) Practical expedient

As a practical expedient, the Group elects not to
disclose the information for remaining performance
obligation of customised marketing solution, tasks
and marketers matching service, marketers
assignment service and SaaS+ subscription as the
contract have an original expected duration of less
than one year.

2.21 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at
the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the
reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

2.22 Government grant

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included
in the net fair value gains on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income as “other income”.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it
is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purpose, see Note 10 below.

2.24 Earnings per share

(@)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
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by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial years,
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shares issued during the years and excluding
treasury shares.
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(b) Diluted earnings per share by EBREBFERR
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used ERESRFNFAERRETE
in the determination of basic earnings per share to ERERZFOE T LA
take into account: K

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares; and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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e EHRRME
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXERER

3.1 BIEBER

3.1 Financial risk factors

——

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no hedging
activity is undertaken by management.

(@ Market risk
() Foreign exchange risk
The Group’s businesses are principally
conducted in RMB. As at 31 December 2023
and 2022, there was no significant non-RMB
assets and liabilities. Therefore, the Group
does not have any material foreign exchange
risk exposure.

(i)~ cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
cash at banks, amounts due from related
parties of the Group and bank borrowings.
Bank borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk which is partially offset by the bank
deposits. As the repayment schedule of bank
borrowing are all within one vyear, the
potential risk result from interest rate
amendment is immaterial. The interest rate
profile of bank borrowings is disclosed in
Notes 26. The bank deposits generate
interest at the prevailing market interest
rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(1f)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect
of financial assets at FVPL held by the Group
which are carried at fair value with changes
in the fair value recognised in profit or loss.

To manage its price risk arising from
investments, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is
done in accordance with the limits set by the
Group. Each investment is managed by senior
management on a case-by-case basis.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
trade and other receivables, contract assets, cash
and cash equivalents, financial assets at amortised
cost. The carrying amounts of above items
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to financial assets.

(1)

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with cash deposits at
banks since they are substantially deposited
at state-owned banks and large-sized listed
banks whose credit rating are AAA or AA+.
Management does not expect that there will
be any significant losses from
non-performance by these counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

(1)
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e -

Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with financial assets at
amortised cost as the Group invests in wealth
management products with liquidity and
stable return. Management does not expect
that there will be any significant losses from
non-performance by these counterparties.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies simplified approach
prescribed by HKFRS 9 to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables and contract assets are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and ageing period. The contract assets relate
to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded
that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of
the loss rates for the contract assets.
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RE M |RME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(1f)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continuead)

The Group divided trade receivables and
contract assets into two categories to
measure the expected credit loss rates.
Category 1 is for customers who have a
relatively low credit risk and no default
history. Category 2 is for customers who
have a relatively higher credit risk. With
different types of customers, the Group
calculated the expected credit loss rates
respectively.

For category 1, the Group considers that
these customers have a good credit profile
and no default history. Also, these customers
are financially capable of settling the
outstanding amount. The expected credit
losses for these customers are assessed
individually.

For category 2, the expected credit loss rates
for the trade receivables and contract assets
are determined according to a provision
matrix where balances that are mainly less
than 12 months overdue are provided for at
expected credit loss rates per below.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(1)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The historical loss rates are also adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors (i.e.,
Gross Domestic Product and Consumer Price
Index) affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables.

Based on the management assessment, the
provision for impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets is approximately
RMB3,174,000 and RMB2,753,000 as at
31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at end of
each reporting period was determined as
follows for trade receivables and contract
assets.
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REMBHRRME
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HBERERE(E)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEKREE ()
(b) Credit risk (Continued) b FERRK(E)
(i) Trade receivables and contract assets (i) B ZERFIERE L
(Continued) BE (&)

F—8 - BREBINEME
EiE BERPEER
SIRYREB W EE
#IF0BE

R 20234F } 2022412
A318 - k@ E &
PHE—BREFHEK
HRENREHNEERE
BREETWHT :

Category 1. Customers have a relatively low
credit risk and no default history based on
the external credit rating

The provision for impairment of Category 1
trade receivables and contract assets as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 by past due date
was determined as follows:

As at 31 December 2023
#2023F12A831A8

Gross carrying amount RELE
(RMB'000) (AR®T ) 1,128 139,556 206,295 59,384 133 406,496
Expected credit loss rates  FBHAE EEIER 0.02% 0.03% 0.04% 0.07% 0.75%
Loss allowance (RMB'000) i & &
(ARBTT) —* 1) (76) (44) (1 (162)
Net carrying amount REFE
(RMB'000) (AR®T7) 1,128 139,515 206,219 59,340 132 406,334
As at 31 December 2022 Total
R2022F128318 Aaa Aa A Baa Ba B
Gross carrying amount REEE
(RMB'000) (ANRETF L) 838 200,354 263,129 35,562 — 499,883
Expected credit loss rates  FEHA{EEEEX 0.02% 0.03% 0.04% 0.08% 0.95%
Loss allowance (RMB'000) 518 &
(ANREF L) —* (58) (93) (27) - (178)
Net carrying amount REFE
(RMB'000) (AR®TTT) 838 200296 263,036 35,535 — 499,705
* Less than RMB1,000. * DR ARE1,0007T °
THMEEERERAT —T-=F® 129
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mE KRR
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXEREKRERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEKEE ()
(b) Credit risk (Continued) b FERRE)
(i) Trade receivables and contract assets (i) B ZERFIERE L
(Continuea) EE (&)
Category 2: Customers have a relatively FE:BEPEER
higher credit risk B E =
The provision for impairment of Category 2 20234 [ 2022412
trade receivables and contract assets as at A318 @ k@ H &
31 December 2023 and 2022 by past due date PHE_BEFHER
was determined as follows: REREHNEERE
BEBEENT :
Up to 31 to 61 to 91 to 121 to 151 to Over
As at 31 December 2023 Current 30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 150 days 180 days 180 days
91% 121Z  151Z  180H
M2023F12A31H BE 30ALA 31ZF60H 61F90H 120H 150H 180 A HE

Gross carrying amount BRI 4858

(RMB'000) (ANRETF L) 19,030 10,108 5,556 2,429 11 13 38 281 37,466
Expected credit loss ~ FEHIEEEREXR

rates 6.33% 6.34% 9.58%  12.43%  27.27%  76.92% 100.00%  100.00%

Loss allowance BERE

(RMB'000) (ANRETF L) (1,205) (641) (532) (302) 3) (10) (38) (281) (3,012

Net carrying amount  BREDHE

(RMB'000) (AREBFT) 17,825 9,467 5,024 2,127 8 3 — — 34,454
Up to 31to 671 to 91 to 121 to 157 to Over

As at 31 December 2022 Current 30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 150 days 180 days 180 days Total
INE 121z 151 180H

R2022%12A31A B 30BLAA 31E60H 61ZE90H 1208 150 B 1808 JAE @t

Gross carrying amount BRI 4858

(RMB'000) (ANR®FTT) 26,157 8,589 1,645 1,315 445 — 177 68 38,396
Expected credit loss ~ FEHIEEEEXR

rates 5.75% 5.75% 7.96% 9.58% 17.08% 61.03%  100.00%  100.00%
Loss allowance BERE

(RMB'000) (ANREF L) (1,503) (494) (131) (126) (76) - (177) (68) (2,575)

Net carrying amount  BREF(E
(RMB'000) (AREBFT) 24,654 8,095 1,514 1,189 369 = = = 35,821
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RE M |RME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

Other recelvables at amortised cost

Other receivables at amortised cost mainly
represents other receivables and deposits in
well-known companies. The Group uses the
expected credit loss model to determine the
expected loss provision for other receivables.
Management considers that its credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the
counterparty historical default rate and
current financial position. All other
receivables are performing and credit risk is
in line with original expectations. Thus, the
Group used the 12 months expected credit
losses model to assess credit loss of other
receivables.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

132 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.
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BB RERER ()

3.1 MBEBREE(E)

Credit risk (Continued) b FERRE)
(iv)  Other receivables at amortised cost () IZ#EsEK AT E R E
(Continuea) 1 JE W IR (48
The loss allowance provision for trade R 20234 K& 2022412
receivable, contract assets and other A318 ' B 5 EKK
receivables as at 31 December 2023 and H AHNEEREM
2022 reconciles to the opening loss FEWGRIA R BIE R E
allowance for that provision as follows: Bz B ENHYEER
BEHERAT -
Trade Contract Other
receivables assets receivables Total
ESEWY H f FE IR
IE EHEE IE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®BTR AR®TR AR%Tx
As at 1 January 2023 ®2023F181A8 1,186 1,567 141 2,894
Impairment losses/(reversal of & BB ERERFE,/
impairment losses) on (REEERR)
financial assets 725 (304) (49) 372
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12H31H 1,911 1,263 92 3,266
As at 1 January 2022 720221818 3,606 832 106 4,544
(Reversal of impairment SREE(REEBR
losses)/impairment losses B,/ REEE
on financial assets (217) 735 35 553
Written off of bad debt AR (2,203) — — (2,203)
As at 31 December 2022 R2023F128318 1,186 1,567 141 2,894
Liquidity risk (© HBESER

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due, resulting
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets
and liabilities.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and the availability of funding. Due to the nature of
the underlying businesses, the Group's
management responsible for treasury function aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
sufficient cash and committed banking facilities
available.
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GEMBBRME
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HERRKRERE(E)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIERREZE (&)
(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued) (o RBEZRM(H)

TRAGREFBARMRE B H
ERKNTHBORIRIES
A BAKENSRAE
20 RAEBIEER - KA
BENSERBAREAR

Y-Sk
EILE °

The table below analyses the financial liabilities of
the Group into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the date of the
consolidated statements of financial position to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows.
Within 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 year 3 year 3 year Total
15/ 1228 2Z3F 3ENE b
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB000  RMB’000
ARETT AR®TRE ARBTR ARBTR AR%TxR
Financial liabilities cHAE
As at 31 December 2023 $2023%12A31H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTKIE
(excluding non-financial (TEEFERAn)
liabilities) 48,197 — — — 48,197
Bank borrowings and interest BT R KA B X
payments 55,504 — — — 55,504
Lease liabilities (including HEEE(BREFE
interest payments) R 236 5 — — 241
103,937 5 — — 103,942
As at 31 December 2022 $2022%12A31A8
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E A B
(excluding non-financial (TREEERERE)
liabilities) 106,606 — — — 106,606
Amount due to a related party FEff— & BEEE S 0B 1,447 = = = 1,447
Bank borrowings and interest  #RITE R KA B K
payments 62,033 - - - 62,033
Lease liabilities (including HEARE (BIEFES
interest payments) 30 2,379 56 = = 2,435
172,465 56 — — 172,521
ZRMEEERERAT —T_=FFRH
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e EHRRME
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXERER(E)
(CONTINUED)

3.2 EXEKRER

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group uses equity to finance its operations. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.

AEENEAEREBREREH
FEEENERS  ARRREH
(0] 7 K A E 4 ) 25 46 BE & 5 SRR
@ MR REERRBIRD
BE A o A5 BB B
HEXBLEMBES - RiEFN
HABEARE  AKHEAARIK
NTFRRORESHE REEX
THRR BIHFBROILEEE
PR D BT

HENEMRF K NEEF
REERBLREREAN I
T AME 75 % B BR DA & AN A8 B AT

Net debt is calculated as total borrowings, lease liabilities HoBHRFHUER HEAR
and amounts due to related parties less cash and cash NER AR T RIH AR AR S

equivalents and financial assets at amortised cost. Total
capital is calculated as "total equity” as shown in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

The Group's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio at a
minimal level. The gearing ratio at 31 December 2023
and 2022 were as follows:

KR & FE WA RIR SR A 5T
ENSREENE - BEAREN
RAEMBARRRAIIRE [
BIFE -

58 D 5 B 2 MR L
2022412831 A AR R ELLE
R

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2023 2022
2023 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5E AR® TR ARBTTT
Borrowings & 26 55,000 61,273
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 236 2,374
Amounts due to related parties &S REEE 5 A 29 — 1,447
Less: Cash and cash equivalents J& : I& MRS EEY 22 (190,976) (62,704)

Less: Other financial assets at & : 1R EE SR AT B &Y

amortised cost HEthemEE 21 (36,249) —
Net debt EEE (171,989) 2,390
Total equity AR 508,182 346,494
Gearing ratio EESMELX N/A T iE 0.7%
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

(@)

Fair value hierarchy
The Group analyses its financial instruments’ fair
value by level of the inputs to valuation technigues
used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value
hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The financial department of the Group performs the
valuation of level 3 financial instruments for
financial reporting purposes and manages the
valuation exercise of the financial instruments on a
case by case basis. At least once a year, the
financial department uses valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of level 3 financial
instruments and reports to senior management and
the directors of the Company.

The following table presents the Group’s assets that
are measured at fair value.

RE M |RME

3 BXERERE(E)
3.3 AFEMEE

(a)

AFEER
AR AR R A TFAE
T PR P 8 A B0 B
B HFEEBIAHAT
B RERABEB AT
AFERBEANH=EER

s HREEXBEHER
BTi5 _ERRE R
HEB)(F—R) -

o WIFMAE —RHIR
(& MR EE (BIER
ER) S HE (BUR A
ER) BIRMEERA
BEEEABE(F =
)

s  WHKEABEMS
BENEELREN
BABUR (AR B
BABE)(F=M) -

AEBEMB A AA B HRE
M E=RerR T EETH
BN EAREEEESHRT
HENEETIE - BBHED
BE-RERBEITEEE
AEBE=FEeRTENQ
FE - RARAXRRNEH
EREREFER-

TRENAEERAFER
ENEE -

Level 3
E=MR

RMB’000
AR®T T

As at 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVOCI: trade receivable

M2023512H31H
BAFEFAEME RS

ERMEE : B HEWGIR 98,632
As at 31 December 2022 2022%F12831H
Financial assets at FVOCI: trade receivable & A F(EF A E M2 mIEH

SHEE: BEHEWKIE 239,296
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mE KRR
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BBERERE(E)
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AF¥EME (E)
(b)  Fair value measurements using unobservable inputs (b) EATAEERABBEST
WAFETE
Quantitative information about fair value EI(F AT A] B AR g A B
measurements using unobservable inputs TR FlEFFE B BRZE
BH
(i)  FVOCI () BAFEFAHME
W2k

As at 31 December
W12A31R

Relationship of
unobservable

136 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

Valuation Unobservable inputs to fair
Description 2023 2022 technique input value
TABE THEZHABE
Bk 2023 2002% HERE BAHE BAFENERE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Fair value 98,632 239,296
KA
Range of unobservable 3.24%-3.69% | 3.23%-3.95% Discounted Discount rate  The higher the
input cash flow discount
rate, the
lower the fair
value.
AU B AHBEHE BRBERE WRE MEEYE D
TEME-
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, a change 20234 K 2022512

in discount rate per annum by 100 basis
points will result in a change in fair value by
approximately RMB986,000 and RMB2,393,000
respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below:

(@) Revenue recognition

The management measures the value of services
provided based on output method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of direct measurement of the value
of services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining services promised to be completed under
the service contracts. The services contracts normally
complete within a year. Management estimates the
revenue at the commencement of the service contracts
and regularly assesses the progress of projects as well as
the financial impact of cost incurred, scope changes,
claims and disputes. The management’s estimation on
the value of services provided requires significant
judgement and has a significant impact on the amount
and timing of revenue recognised. There are internal
project managers to measure the value of the services
provided for each project periodically. The Group
regularly reviews and revises the revenue estimation
based on supporting documents and communication with
customers’ project managers.

—
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

()

Principal versus agent considerations

The Group follows the accounting guidance for principal
and agent considerations to assess whether the Group
controls the specified service before it is transferred to
the customer and also the indicators of which including
but not limited to: (a) whether the entity is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the
specified service including whether the entity has
discretion in selecting suppliers; (b) whether the entity
has inventory risk before the specified service has been
transferred to a customer; (c) whether the entity has
discretion in establishing the prices for the specified
service. The directors of the Company consider the
above factors in totality, as none of the factors
individually are considered presumptive or determinative
and applies judgement when assessing the indicators
depending on different circumstances.

Impairment loss of trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to determine
whether trade receivables and contract assets are
impaired. Significant judgement is exercised on the
assessment of the risk of default and expected credit
losses from each customer. In making the judgement,
management considers a wide range of factors such as
results of follow-up procedures, customer payment
trends including payments schedule, customers’ financial
positions and expected future change of credit risks,
including consideration of factors such as general
economy measure, changes in macro-economic
indicators, etc. Details of assumptions and inputs used
are discussed in Note 3.1(b)(iii).
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RE M |RME

EREaH et R H & (&)
B8 % 3 5 AT 18 B0

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Current and deferred income taxes (d)

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are some transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.
Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary

AEBEETZAMATREMAEH -
EEMERBERAED L -
EREBXEBBET AETRS
Rt B RZRBIRE R TH
M- AREFHRNRRREER
HEREENERTR - AIZF
ERBFERELZREHREA AR
BUkEE RETEREEE
EBEEBEREBNEEMSHE
ERNEEEBRRRAIERRKE
R ) AT 3 8 T B 1 R B
BEENGER HERERER
AR TR -

differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

72 & o 2R &

AARAEEBREAFREEBLER
HE  ARBRAEERBEEUTE
BRRARER - AAREHISAEE
EBRAE ML  WIERLEN

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

The chairman of the Company has been identified as the chief
operating decision maker of the Group who review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. The chairman of the Company regards the Group's

business as a single operating segment and review IREPBRE -
consolidated financial statements accordingly.
(@) Disaggregation of revenue (@ W=HBAH
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREBF T
Revenue from: KB AT FIER Y
Customised marketing solution JE il & SH AR A 5 &R 567,647 459,623
Tasks and marketers matching 75 B & 85 A B U it AR 7%
service 114,303 82,062
Marketers assignment service &35 A BT AR 75 32,173 48,713
SaaS+ subscription SaaS+&] 11,825 27,712
725,948 618,110

# Z 20234 K2022412 8318 1k
F[E - ANEBE A UL = BE b R

=7
7 e

All revenue of the Group is recognised over time during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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mE KRR
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WmkoiER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) HIEER
All the revenue and assets are based in the PRC during FrE s & ERE2023F &
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. 202212 A31H IEF E B A
o
(c) Revenue from major customers (0 REXEZFHWE
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for R B ik 78 & B ] 220234 %2022
10% or more of the Group’s revenue for years ended F12A318 1 F E W z510%3K LA
31 December 2023 and 2022 is set out below: EREFERFPAUEEHSIAT
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31B8LLEE
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
Customer A EFEA 283,346 166,757
Customer B ZFB 124,890 N/A* 3@ A *
Customer C EFEC N/A* T 38 3 * 85,954
Customer D ZFD N/A* T 38 3 * 80,317
* Represent less than 10% of revenue for the respective years. * (HIEEEE WS D R10% °
(d) Revenue recognised in relation to contract d) BENEEEIANKE
liabilities
The following table shows the revenue recognised during N3R5 R E 20234 & 20224F 12
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 related to ANBLEEERAEAHNAER
carried-forward contract liabilities. REU S ©
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B831HLLEE
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AR F T
Revenue recognised that was FFAFYIE VB EEHNE
included in the contract liability TR =
balance at the beginning of the
year
Marketers assignment service =88 A Bk AR 1% 4,487 3,297
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REMBHRRME
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WHEKkoHER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Unsatisfied performance obligations () REKEHNEME
As disclosed in Note 2.20(e), the Group elects not to FaNFT FE2.20) TR IERE
disclose the information for remaining performance RO TR L AEBIEE
obligation of customised marketing solution, tasks and THEES S HBRT R £
marketers matching service, marketers assignment B ABICRERE R EHEAR
service and SaaS+ subscription as the contracts have an IREEARFS & SaaS+s BRI BN &
original expected duration of less than one year as a THHEBEER BAZEAAN
practical expedient. [RIBEAEARR D —4F o
(f) Assets recognised from costs to fulfil a contract H BIRLTEINEE
As at 31 December
MW12831H
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR AR T IT
Asset recognised from costs R12A318 B B LKA
incurred to fulfil a contract as at ~ RHEE
31 December 981 480

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREEF T

Amortisation recognised as cost of FRFER AR AR A HY
providing services during the 5
year 480 712
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6 OTHER INCOME AND GAINS — NET 6 HtARWK=RFHE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HILEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®¥T T ARET T
Other income Hibug A
Government grants (note (a)) BISfBh (K7t (@) 18,977 26,090
Gain on additional deduction of value- AR NET R & =
added tax 1,294 1,804
20,271 27,894
Other gains — net Hiism — B
Reversal on pension return to customers [[& PR IE & % b & [0
(note 25(b)) (H15#25(b) 38,549 —
Net foreign exchange gain HINE i 2 5 KR 7,069 —
Fair value gains from FVPL BAFEFABENAFEE
g — 753
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment H &R E MR EH EE 4) (39)
Gains on termination of leases HIEHEERN K — 292
Others Hfb — (4)
45,614 1,002

(@ The government grants were mainly consisted of
job-subsidy programme and companies registration
subsidies for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attaching to these grants. The Group did
not benefit directly from any other forms of material
government assistance.
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M |RME

7 BRUHEHIAITHEX

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLLEE

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREBF T
Employee benefit expenses (including EERNASZ (REES
directors’ emoluments) (Note 8) <) (412#8) 486,999 297,338
Labour service fees BisE 194,544 166,059
Research, development and technical T 2% R B 1T AR 75 7 =2
service expenses 24,286 25,754
Office expenses WARERZ 15,619 8,727
Event consumables V& B E FE oo 15,167 22,320
Travel and transportation expenses ERRZBAKL 13,377 13,349
Listing expenses EmRZ 10,709 17,853
Other taxes and levies BB REE 5,495 6,690
Amortisation and depreciation B RITE
(Note 14, Note 15(a)) (K12t 14 ~ B1a£150@)) 3,135 6,004
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B R % B
— Audit services — B R 1,580 =
— Non-audit services — FEEFIRT 620 =
Other expenses HEi 2,554 2,650
774,085 566,744
Representing: Rk :
Cost of services Bk 7% B 2N 631,086 444,543
Administrative expenses THRAX 92,643 77,874
Research and development expenses HERx 29,284 25,019
Selling and marketing expenses HE REIHAZ 21,072 19,308
774,085 566,744
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EERAMX
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREBF T
Wages and salaries TERF© 354,490 218,354
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 4,979 1,172
Contributions to pension plans (Note (c) ERRE &I (A7 () 85,538 51,718
Housing benefits and other expenses FEREMNEREMAS 41,992 26,094
486,999 297,338
Representing: Rk :
Cost of services Bk 7% B S 427,203 248,792
Administrative expenses THRAX 31,380 22,696
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHEAS 18,703 17,762
Research and development expenses R 9,713 8,088
486,999 297,338

(a) Employee benefit expenses increased significantly for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was mainly because
some of the Group’s customers switched their service
type from marketers assignment service to customised
marketing solution and thus, the employee benefit
including wages and salaries, contributions to pension
plans, housing benefits in relation to the employee
marketers were recorded in full in employee benefit
expenses for customised marketing solution (instead of
being recognised on a net basis under marketers
assignment service).
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 8 {EERBFBEX (&)

(b) Five highest paid individuals by EEEEHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest B 2£2023F K 2022912 4318 1E
in the Group include two directors for each of the years FEEZF AEEBRE&E 5O
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 respectively. Their ATBEEMEBES -BENME
emoluments were reflected in Note 9(a). The WERH @) - BN FEMIES
emoluments paid to the remaining non-director EATHBSNT

individuals are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREET T
Wages and salaries IERE® 2,193 2,328
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 3,459 25
Contributions to pension plans BRIREETEIH R 324 251
Housing benefits and other EEBAN R EMFAX

expenses 85 98
6,061 2,702

The emoluments fell within the following bands: esEmT :

Number of individuals
Year ended 31 December
A8
BZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022
20235 20224

Emolument band B < & E (& T)
(in Hong Kong dollars)
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 7T 2 1,000,0007%5
(equivalent to approximately T (HHERHNARK
RMB453,000 to RMB906,000) 453,0007cE A R ¥
906,0007T) — 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t & 1,500,000
(equivalent to approximately B (HERHARE
RMB906,000 to RMB1,359,000) 906,000 = A R #&
1,359,0007T) 1 1
Over HK$1,500,001 1,500,001 ¢ (B E R4
(equivalent to approximately AR #1,359,0007T) A £
over RMB1,359,000) 2 —
3 3
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

()

Contributions to pension plans

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to participate in a defined contribution retirement
scheme administrated and operated by the local
municipal government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries
contribute funds which are calculated on certain
percentage of the employee salary to the scheme to fund
the retirement benefits of the employees.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
forfeited contributions were utilised by the Group to
reduce its contributions, and no forfeited contribution
was available as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 to
reduce future contributions.

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(@)

146 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

Directors’ emoluments

Mr. Sun was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 30 September 2021. Mr. Yang Hong (Mr.
Yang) was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 1 July 2022.

Mr. Li Jianbo and Mr. Zhong Jiesheng were appointed as
the Company’s non-executive directors of the Company
on 1 July 2022.

Ms. Li Yingkai, Mr. Lau Man Tak and Mr. Ngan Wing Ho
were appointed as the Company’'s independent
non-executive directors of the Company on
23 September 2022.

Annual Report 2023

8 EEENRAX(E)

(0

RSB
AEETBENBARNERRS
HEAR T HRFEEREENTE
BEFTORAKG & - AEBE R
HEBARZERHENETED
EeREt SR BEBHRKRE
MEHES -

B 220234 k202212 H318 1E
FE - AEEY EB) AR KK
AR E R - B R 20234 &
2022412 A31H - I & 7] A LA
DR R WK -

9 EERANEKER

(@)

EEME

R R2021F9A30H EZ (E
BADNRITES - BAELE (B
EAE)R202267 1B EEZ T A
RABRITES -

R S A B A S A 02022
F7TA1BEZERARRFERT
%

FERT L BIXEEEREAK
TR HEN2022F9H23B B & E
RARBBUIFHITES -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M |RME

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9 EEENREZR(E)

(CONTINUED)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EE=M< (&)
The remuneration of each director paid/payable for each B = 2023F K2022% 123318 1
of the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were FEEN HBASESHFH MR
set out below: FmT
Allowances
Contributions  and benefits
Discretionary  to pension in kind
Name of directors Salaries bonuses plans (note (i)
BER
BHREE ENEAN
EEpg ok e EERA it (Hraz i) @i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTr AR®Tr AR%Tn AR¥Trn
For the year ended BZ2023F12831
31 December 2023 BLEEE

Executive director and chief — ${TEE#THER
executive officer:

Mr. Sun BrE — 998 900 114 30 2,042
Executive director: WIES:

Mr. Yang BRE — 585 900 114 30 1,629
Non-executive directors: FHITES:

Mr. Li Jianbo FEKEEE 80 — — — — 80
Mr. Zhong liesheng ERETE 80 — — — — 80

Independent non-executive  BUFEHTEES

directors:
Ms. Li Yingkai FEHLT 146 — — — — 146
Mr. Lau Man Tak AEEE 146 — — — — 146
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho BXREE 146 — — — — 146
Total Foh 598 1,583 1,800 228 60 4,269
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9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9 ESEAMRER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EEM£ (&)
Allowances
Contributions  and benefits
Discretionary  to pension in kind
Name of directors Fees Salaries bonuses plans (note (ii)) Total
AR
RIKEEE EMEF
ESng we e [lER xR (Fia () @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
For the year ended BZ2022F12831
31 December 2022 AIEEE
Executive director and chief — {TEEFR{THES :
executive officer:
Mr. Sun Bt — 843 — 96 27 966
Executive director: HIES:
Mr. Yang BEE — 585 — 96 27 708
Non-executive directors: FHITES :
Mr. Li Jianbo FRELE — — — — — —
Mr. Zhong liesheng EREEE — — — — — —
Independent non-executive B FHTEE :
directors:
Ms. Li Yingkai FERRT = = = = = =
Mr. Lau Man Tak BEL s — — — — — —
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho BXREE — — — — — —
Total @it = 1,428 = 192 54 1674

rt 2023




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

() The remunerations of executive directors represent
remunerations received from the PRC Operating
Companies by these directors in their capacity as
employees to the PRC Operating Companies.

(i) Allowances and benefits in kind mainly represent
the Housing Provident Fund regulated by Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC.

(iiy ~ During the period from the date of respective
appointment to ended 31 December 2023, the
non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors did not receive any
remuneration from the Group. No directors waived
any emoluments during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to the directors as compensation
for the early termination of the appointment during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of the
directors for making available the services of them as a
director of the Company or PRC Operating Companies
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

RE M |RME

9 EEREAR#EZ(A)

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

EZRMEEZERERAE

EEME (R

() WTESMFHIERSES
PAFR B B 1A RIE B # & 15
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A o

(i) EHREVENEEEHP
BANE R S REEDE
ENERAEE -

@iy BSEERBBE2023F
12 A31H ILHAR - JEFTTE
EREIEHITE I A
AEBWEEREHE - EHZE
20234 22022412 A318
LEFE  BEEEHETM

EEERBERN

H 220234 22022412 A31H 1
FEBERAES I EMKE
ERIEFRIERENRE -

@56 =F REMERES R
BHRE

B E 20234 k202212 A318 1k
R BEAEENELELE
AT 30T DA R AR 80 25 B AE AR R A3
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ZEREENHEERSS
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9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in Note 9 and 29, no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or PRC Operating Companies were a party and in which
directors of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
each of the two years or at any time during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

10 FINANCE COSTS — NET

9 EEEMNKEZ(HE)

(e) EERXS » ZPHEHHN
EXER
BRISFEO R 29PR I EEE SN - BEEAR
ARAEPRELERR R M
ARREFHERXBERESTH
BEARNZBEEANEEXBEAE M
MBEARS THEANEBE
20234 2022612 A31H IEFE
8 F 2 & FFEIE P EMAE
BFE -

10 FBERE — FH

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETFTT

Finance income RN
— Bank interest income — RITF B WA 4,813 162

— Interest income from a related party — KB —&@EHHFE

WA 107 —
4,920 162

Finance costs B 75 B AR
— Interest expenses for bank borrowings — $R17& A B X (2,003) (2,093)
— Interest for trade receivables factoring — & 5 & YR IE (R IE F B (1,292) (715)
— Interest expenses on lease liabilites — AEBEMNEMX (65) (265)
(3,360) (3,073)
1,560 (2,911)
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(@)

(b)

()

Cayman Islands and BVI Income Tax

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in
which members of the Group are domiciled and operate.
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and British Virgin Islands, members of the Group
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin
Islands are not subject to any income tax.

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5%. No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax was provided as the Group did not
have assessable profits in Hong Kong during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The PRC withholding tax

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations,
dividends distributed by a company established in the
PRC to a foreign investor with respect to profits derived
after 1 January 2008 are generally subject to a 10%
withholding tax. If a foreign investor incorporated in Hong
Kong meets the conditions and requirements under the
double taxation treaty arrangement entered into between
the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant withholding tax rate
will be reduced from 10% to 5%. The applicable
withholding tax rates of the group company in Hong Kong
is 10% after the completion of the Reorganisation (Note
1.2).

RE M |RME

11 FEHEX

(@)

(b)

(c)
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Bio
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e ——————

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(d) PRC Enterprise Income Tax

PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate
of 25% on the taxable profits of the Group’s PRC
significant subsidiaries during the vyears ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

Shanghai Retail Winner Digital Technologies Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Retail Winner”), a subsidiary of the Company,
had applied to the relevant tax bureau and was granted
the qualification as High and New Technology Enterprise
("HNTE") in 2022, which will expire in November 2025. It
is subject to a preferential income tax rate of 15%.
Based on management’'s assessment, it is highly
probable that Shanghai Retail Winner will continue to
meet the requirements of High-tech Enterprise.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC were
qualified as “Small Low-Profit Enterprise” since 2019.
“Small Low-Profit Enterprise” was entitled to a
preferential income tax rate that was calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
From 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2023, the first
RMB1,000,000 of the taxable income of qualified entities
are taxed at 20%, and the taxable income above
RMB1,000,000 are taxed at 25%. From 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2022, the first RMB1,000,000 of the taxable
income of qualified entities are taxed at 2.5%, and the
taxable income above RMB1,000,000 and less than
RMB3,000,000 are taxed at 10%. Thus, the subsidiaries
were subject to a preferential income tax rate of 20% in
2023 and 2.5%, or 10% in 2022.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(d) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBBRME
11 SR (8&)
d PELERSH (E)

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ12831HLLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARBFIT

Current income tax BN ERFT1S 2% 7,949 22,476
Deferred income tax (Note 17) RIEFTISEL (HaE17) (443) 1,420
Income tax expenses FrEBiAx 7,506 23,896

PREmMx BRERRETEDN
P15 35 1k A RO 1 B

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and profit
before income tax at applicable tax rate:

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLLEE

2023 2022

2023 £ 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBFIT

Profit before income tax B BT 15 A4 Al g A 19,008 76,598
Tax calculated at the statutory PRC 271 B 3K i F5 R 25% =1 & HY

tax rate of 25% I8 4,752 19,150

Tax effect of expenses not DA B AT RS &

deductible for tax purposes 665 1,033
Tax effect of expenses additional A EBHMOFFE X TS 2

deductible for tax purposes (180) (95)
The impact of difference in tax rate ERRMBARHNHERER

applicable to subsidiaries of -7 2,269 3,808

7,506 23,896
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REMBHRRME
12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BREF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit B E2023F &2022F12H31H IE&F
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted B BREXNRFIRAQRESE AEMN
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the years AR AR BT SRR IE O EGTH -
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
In determining the weighted average number of ordinary R TE B 20234 K&2022412H318
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December, 2023 1EF SR B 37T 8 AR hn i S 35 800
and 2022, the 1 share issued on 30 September 2021 (the date 1202199 A30H (K2 Al st 5k 32 B
of incorporation of the Company) and 19,999 shares issued on ) BEITMIRERGD - KRB AEH £
even date under the Reorganisation in preparation for the ™ M AR 5 5 48 B 1T H919,999 8% B 15 (Bt
Listing (Note 1.2(a)) were deemed to have been issued on F£1.2(a)) #15 A1R2020F1 A1 BEE 3%
1 January 2020 as if the Company has been incorporated by 17 BOARRERBEEFMAT - M
then, and the effects of share subdivisions on 25 February 12022492 A 258 (Kt 3E1.2(h)) %2023
2022 (Note 1.2(h)) and 4 April 2023 (Note23(a)) have been FAR48 (M 7£23()) B 17 #r 48 5 52 £
retrospectively adjusted for the purpose of earnings per share ERATESRABNMETENHE -
computation. In addition to the aforementioned, in determining s REEFEE E2023F12 A31H 1k
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FEMNBBITTRRMETHHE - B
during the year ended 31 December 2023, the effect of 200 202241 A 18 B W EX #9200 % & 17 A% (B
treasury shares received on 18 January 2022 (Note 24(a)) and FE24(a)) MR 2 RN 2022F3 A1 8 #17
4,008 shares issued on 1 March 2022 (Note 1.2 (h)) have also 794,008 8% i 17 (Ff7E1.2(n) I ZINE
been adjusted by a time-weighting factor. R RN R SUE TR o
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224F
Profit attributable to owners of the RNNFGEB ARG F
Company (RMB'000) (ANREFTT) 11,502 52,702
Weighted average number of ordinary B 31T i AR N 19 2
shares in issue 112,574,824 99,218,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share ERERNREERT
(in RMB) (AR¥) 0.10 0.53
Diluted earnings per shares for the years ended 31 December H £20234F K2022F12A318 1L F
2023 and 2022 were the same as the basic earnings per share B -SREFSRNEGRERNZFNE
as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding B REASFAWM/ETENNEE
during the years. R E R T E AR
13 DIVIDENDS 13 RE
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Dividends of RMB4,589,000 during the year ended
31 December 2023 represented dividends paid by the
Company to its shareholders (during the year ended
31 December 2022: Nil). No final dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 December, 2023 was proposed by the Board.
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14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M |RME

14 BMERZRE

Leasehold Office
improvement equipment  Motor vehicles Total
HEMELEE WARE "E fst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR® TR
At 1 January 2023 RN2023F181RH
Cost B AR 1,545 3,085 780 5,410
Accumulated depreciation Riti e (1,545) (2,411) (470) (4,426)
Net book amount BREFHE - 674 310 984
Year ended 31 December 2023 #H ZE2023F12A31HILEE
Opening net book amount FREFE — 674 310 984
Additions for the year FRNRE — 484 379 863
Disposals HE — (13) (an (24)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) WERX (Hit7) — (324) (136) (460)
Closing net book amount FRIEMEFE — 821 542 1,363
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12H31H
Cost B AR 1,545 3,311 937 5,793
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE (1,545) (2,490) (395) (4,430)
Net book amount IREFE — 821 542 1,363
At 1 January 2022 M2022F1H18
Cost AR 1,545 3,958 780 5,878
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE (1,545) (2,905) (364) (4,814)
Net book amount HREHE = 648 416 1,064
Year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE2022F12A31HILEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE = 648 416 1,064
Additions for the year FRARE = 392 = 392
Disposals HE — (43) — 43)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) WERZ (Hiz7) — (323) (1006) (429)
Closing net book amount FRE@FE = 674 310 984
At 31 December 2022 20225128318
Cost B AR 1,545 3,085 780 5,410
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (1,545) (2,411) (470) (4,426)
Net book amount BREFHE = 674 310 984
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e M |RME

14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

14 BEREEE)

Depreciation expenses were charged to the following WERIERGEEZARERNEBUT
categories in the consolidated statement of comprehensive A RIH0RR -
income:

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREEF T

Administrative expenses THRAX 436 381
Selling and marketing expenses HERZHEAY 24 48
460 429

.I ii||i iIIIi IIIIIIII ‘Iil iiiial Reirt 2023 P ——




15 LEASES

Right-of-use assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M |RME

15 HE
@ FHEEE

Leased premises

HES A

RMB’000
ARBTT

At 1 January 2023

M2023F181H

Cost AR 19,264
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (16,755)
Net book amount REFE 2,509

Year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12831HLEFE

Opening net book amount FHREFE 2,509
Additions for the year FARE 445
Depreciation charge (Note 7) WeERZ (#i77) (2,675)
Closing net book amount FREEFAE 279

At 31 December 2023

72023512H31H

Cost AR 19,709
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (19,430)
Net book amount REFE 279

At 1 January 2022

®2022F181H

Cost BN 21,555
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (15,943)
Net book amount BRAVEE 5,612

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE202251283181LEE

Opening net book amount FHREFE 5,612
Additions for the year FARE 3,143
Disposals for the year FAHE (1,662)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) WeERX (Wit7) (4,584)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 2,509

At 31 December 2022

A2022F12A31H

Cost BN 19,264
Accumulated depreciation RErinE (16,755)
Net book amount BREFE 2,509
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e M |RME

15 LEASES (CONTINUED)
(@) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The right-of-use assets represent the Group's rights to
use underlying offices under lease arrangements over the
lease terms from 1 to 2 years. They are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation.

No contract terms specifically arranged for variable
payment, residual value guarantees, extension and
termination options were embedded in the lease
arrangement.

Depreciation charges were included in administrative
expenses for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

(b) Lease liabilities

15 & (&)

(@)

(b)

EHREEE (&)
ERRAEEAEEREEER
PETE — Z M 4F M AR 2R P 52 PR 4R
WAEEBR - BRAR R
18R -

MERTENR RBREEE

R R IDERERE IR B
A NERIRARER -

B = 2023F 20229124318 1
FE - FEATRERTRMX
Hep o

HESE

As at 31 December

Mm12H831H
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFTT
Lease liabilities HEAE 236 2,374
Less: Non-current W : FEENHR (5) (55)
Current portion BN ERE8 5> 231 2,319

As at 31 December

MW12H318

2023 2022

2023 F 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ TR ARETTT
Interest expenses on lease liabilites 4 AEE & & B 5%

for the year (Note 10) (HtaE10) 65 265
Expenses relating to short-term EEHHEEEMNMAX

leases (included in administrative (Gt AfTEZFI )
expenses) 4,869 1,982

The total cash outflows for leases including payments of
short-term leases, principal and interest payments of
lease liabilities for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 were approximately RMB4,721,000 and
RMB7,375,000, respectively.
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M |RME

16

RBERTANRE

31 December

12831H

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBET T

As at 1 January M1BA1R 4,475 4,675
Share of profit/(losses) of FEfL B & A Rl R,

associates — net (Es18)— F& 72 (200)

As at 31 December MW12H31H 4,547 4,475

The details of the associates of the Group are as follows:

FREAEEBRERARNFHBOT

% of ownership interest
As at 31 December

EHRERRDL
R12A31H

Name Nature of business Place of operations 2023 2022
=78 EBME =3k 2023 F 20224
Beijing Aikaka Digital marketing The PRC 19% 19%

Information system

Technology Ltd. development

("Beijing Aikaka")
EREWRRERKN BFEHERGRAE H

BREFERA

(THE R EARAR )
Guangzhou Cema Digital marketing The PRC 15% 15%

Information system

Technology development

Consulting Co., Ltd.

("Guangzhou

Cema”)
&M SR A (5 SRR AT LER PSS aale

AR AR

(TEMERH )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE

16

17

B RS ER AR MY

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Through the agreements, the Group is respectively guaranteed
one out of three seats on the board of Beijing Aikaka and one
out of three seats on the board of Guangzhou Cema to
participate in all significant financial and operating decisions.
The Group has therefore determined that it has significant
influence over Beijing Aikaka and Guangzhou Cema, even
though it only holds 19% and 15% of the voting rights
respectively. Both of the associates are accounted for using
the equity method.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, no material commitments
and contingent liabilities were imposed in the associates and
there is no unrecognised share of losses for the Group.

Management has assessed the associates’ future operating
strategy, investment plan and financing arrangement by
performing financial forecast. No impairment was made during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 as the
forecasted recoverable amount of associates is estimated to
exceed the carrying amount as at 31 December 2023 and
2022.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS
The analysis of deferred income tax assets is as follows:

16

17

REE RARHNRE (K)

BB « AEE D AR B RE MR
EEG=REEL —WEREN K
EER=REE L M AB B
BEAR B REERE - it BEX
S5 18 95 512 4 5 19% 2 15% 9 1% B 4 -
{BERTE HHE RE IR RN BB AR
BEAREN - HMEBEARRABE
HENE °

20234 2022512318 @ Bt & R~
A EEmMEAAERKAAE B
AREE W EREREGEE -

EEEDEGETHBRANGEEQ
AIH ARG LR  REFEMRER
HE o B 20234 K&2022512 4311 1E
FESERRE @ ML RRNTRR A
Uit [ I8 fil 518 B 7 2023 6 2 2022 12
A3TEMREE -

EEFSHERE
BELFGHAES M -

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT

To be realised after more than 12 RiEBB121E A & 218

months — 710
To be realised within 12 months RI121E8 A A& 1,119 (34)
Deferred income tax assets REFTSHEE 1,119 676
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M |RME

17 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, without taking
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same
tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

17 BERESHREE (&)

B E2023F 2022 12A318 I F &
WRLEFRGEHEEREGEESH (TEE
HERS AT & A 8 4 R 8H) 2
™

Deferred
income tax
Deferred income tax assets liabilities
BEFB
REFIEHEE &
Deferred
Lease Right-of-use  income tax
Tax losses Bad debts liabilities Sub-Total assets assets — net
BEFMBEH
HEFE 2R HESE Mt EREEE BE — B8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%Tn AR%Trn AR¥TR ARETx AR%ETx:
At 1 January 2023 M2023E181H — 710 592 1,302 (626) 676
Credit/(Charged) to the A/ (NERE) RE
consolidated statements of 2ERAEX
comprehensive income 316 104 (535) (115) 558 443
At 31 December 2023 MW2023&E12831R 316 814 57 1,187 (68) 1,119
At 1 January 2022 M2022F1R1H 892 1,130 1,476 3,498 (1,402) 2,096
(Charged)/credit to the (M 8)/GtALRE
consolidated statements of 2EkEE
comprehensive income (892) (420) (884) (2,196) 776 (1,420)
At 31 December 2022 ®2022%12A31H = 710 592 1,302 (626) 676

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had unrecognised
deferred income tax liabilities of RMB22,817,000 that would
otherwise be payable as withholding income tax in respect of
the undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries. Unremitted
earnings in this respect amounted to approximately
RMB228,173,000 as at 31 December 2023. Deferred income tax
liability is not recognised where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and the
directors have confirmed that such earnings will not be
distributed out of the PRC in the foreseeable future.

R2023F12 A318 » REEAFRERIE
EFTIS T B E AR E22,817,0007T @ 5%
TR R ERH BB R R & D RS F S
NIERTBMETEH - 202312 A31
A EEAEHBRINNOBEARE
228,173,0007T ° fis B BeF 2 58 2 [0 A B i)
MASEBZEG RESEREBAEFNA
ERARRETEERBRIINDIK - BIT
FHRRELCHEHAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M EE

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES 18 ZRENETHEM T A

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREET T

Assets as per consolidated statements of FEHMBMRRRMATEE
financial position
Financial assets subsequently measured —H B IR AT S 1% R/t

at amortised cost BE
— Trade receivables — B S RWFIE 177,714 105,606
— Deposits and other receivables — &e R E A EKEIE
(excluding prepayments) (Note 19) (TRIEEMNKE)
(H1aE19) 11,199 12,949
— Other financial assets at amortised — RBHER AT EREM
cost (Note 21) SREE (KiE21) 36,249 —
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) — R&RIEELEEY
(H1at22) 190,976 62,704
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEFAE MR
Mo REE
— Trade receivables — B S RWFIAE 98,632 239,296
Total st 514,770 420,555

Liabilities as per consolidated statements #R& M BEMRR KA TAR
of financial position

Financial liabilities subsequently HBEBHBEEXNATENS R
measured at amortised cost =K

— Trade payables (Note 25) — B S ENFIE (M 7725) 35,145 52,066
— Other payables excluding non-financial — £ {th & ft ZL8E

liabilities (TEiEEERBE) 13,052 54,540
— Borrowings (Note 26) — &R (K7 a226) 55,000 61,273
— Lease liabilities (Note 15) — HEBEHFE15) 236 2,374
— Amounts due to related parties — FETREEE 5 5RE

(Note 29) (H1a£29) — 1,447
Total #Et 103,433 171,700

162 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Annual Report 2023




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBBRME
19 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, OTHER 19 ESREWFKIE  &E > HittfE
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS WRIE R B RE
(@) Trade receivables (@ EBEZREWFEE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFIT
Trade receivables B 5 WA 278,257 346,088
Less: allowance for impairment of & : & 5 W FIBRERE
trade receivables (B15£3.1(b)(ii)
(Note 3.1(b)(ili) (1,911) (1,186)
Trade receivables — net B S RWHRIE — F5E 276,346 344,902

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on
invoice date is as follows:

BIRWHIBEENEREBHNER
BT :

As at 31 December

M12831H
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ET T
1-60 days 1£260H 188,884 172,636
61-120 days 61£2120H 74,919 135,145
121-180 days 121£180H 11,547 31,732
Over 180 days 180H A £ 2,907 6,575
278,257 346,088

The ageing of trade receivables is mainly within 180 days B RWBHRIBERNRREZENRFH

after invoicing depending on the nature of services. The B2 Z1%180A R FARBEE M

Group’s trade receivables are denominated in RMB and TE) A o AEE R E 5 EWERIA A

initially recognised at transaction price on gross amount. AREFERINFZ AR ZERE
RERER o
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REMBHRRME
19 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, OTHER 19 BZEWNIE  Re - At
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS Wk IE K FE A RE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deposits, other receivables and prepayments (b) 1’%% - Hit B IB R FE A
IE
The Group AEE

As at 31 December
M12831H

2023 2022

2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREFTT

Value-added tax receivables from KB &P H)E BUIZE R

customers 9,437 11,026
Deposits — third parties e — =7 1,693 1,943
Other receivables — staff HEMERHRE — BT 161 121

11,291 13,090

Less: allowance for impairment of & : E b fE UL ZRIERE B

other receivables (92) (141)
Other receivables — net Hib U RIE — F5E 11,199 12,949
Prepaid income taxes BEMEH 6,298 —
Prepayments to suppliers TE T e 7 SRR 4,492 976
Prepayments for listing expenses & B sz F& 1+ HUE — 5,847
Total BEr 21,989 19,772
The Group's deposits, other receivables and prepayments REBEMZS - HiEKHRIER
are mainly denominated in RMB. FENRBEBIEUARKE -
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits and B 5 RKEIE - 12e & H M FE R
other receivables approximate to their fair values. The REMEMEEEAFEES -
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of each REFREHERBENZAEER
reporting period is the carrying amount of each class of et ALl S EE SRR
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables 1B e REAMEWRIBENRE
mentioned above. (=
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19 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, OTHER

20

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Deposits, other receivables and prepayments

(Continued)
The Company

19

e BRI
EZREWAE S - HIfE
TEESE BEEEI0)

(b) #E - A EWROIE R TS
a')\ (?ﬂﬁ)
AAT

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AR¥BTIT
Prepayments to suppliers TE T e v SRR 1,598 —
Prepayments for listing expenses b 5 s 78 14 58 — 5,407
1,598 5,407

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related

contract assets and liabilities.

20 EHNEERGHERE

AEBECHERATEESEENANE
ENAE-

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Customised marketing solution JE ] & 58 AR R 5 B 86,236 123,054
Tasks and marketers matching service 75 B 35 A B T I iR 75 11,648 14,451
Marketers assignment service &35 A BB AR 75 64,749 52,439
SaaS+ subscription SaaS+5] B 3,072 2,247
Contract assets — gross carrying AREE — RHEBE
amount 165,705 192,191
Less: allowance for impairment of B ANEERBERE
contract assets (Note 3.1(b)(iii) (Bt #£3.1(b)(iT)) (1,263) (1,567)
Contract assets — net BREE — 164,442 190,624
Contract liabilities AHEE
Marketers assignment service & A Bk EE RS 7,259 6,858
EAFEEMBERERAT —B-SFFH 165
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e M |RME

20 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(@)  The Group’s contract assets are denominated in RMB and
initially recognised at transaction price on gross amount.

(b) The Group expects that contract assets have the same
risk characteristic as trade receivables. The impairment

of contract assets is disclosed in Note 3.1(b)(iii).

()  Movement for the gross carrying amount of contract
assets during the years ended 31 December 2023 and

2022 are as follows:

(i)  Customised marketing solution

166 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

20

BRNEEREGHNEE (B)

@ AEBENHNAVNEENARKFE

MINFIANRZ B EEBEER -

b)) AEBEREHMANEELEBHREW
REEBHRARREZS - 20E

FE R B R 5E3.1(D) (1) #E & -

() MEZE2023%F &2022F12831H

LEE  ANEENREARE
B TAR

() TEHREHEFBRIR

31 December

R12A31H

2023 2022

2023 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETIT

As at 1 January B1A1H 123,054 62,059

Contract assets recognised  EHERAMNEE 567,647 459,623
Transferred to trade A E 5 EWGIE

receivables (604,465) (398,628)

As at 31 December M12A31H 86,236 123,054

(ii) Tasks and marketers matching service

(i) EBREFASTERR

31 December

M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREEFTT
As at 1 January MW1A1H 14,451 4,396
Contract assets recognised  BERRALNEE 114,303 82,062
Transferred to trade & A\ B 5 W FIE
receivables (117,106) (72,007)
As at 31 December M12A31H 11,648 14,451
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RE M |RME

20 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(c)  (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Marketers assignment service

20 EHNEERGHAERE (B

© (&)

(i) EHABIRKERY

31 December

RW12H31H
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARMET T
As at 1 January RB1A1H 52,439 112,137
Contract assets recognised  EERANEE 437,070 763,128
Transferred to trade A B 5 EWIE
receivables (424,760) (822,826)
As at 31 December M12831H 64,749 52,439
SaaS+ subscription (iv) SaaS+=I B3
31 December
MW12H31H
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ET T
As at 1 January W1A1H 2,247 5,496
Contract assets recognised ERRAENEE 11,825 27,712
Transferred to trade #AEFEWRIA
receivables (11,000) (30,961)
As at 31 December M12831H 3,072 2,247
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SEMBHRERME
21 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 21 REBERATENEMESHE
COST E
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEFTT
Investment in private funds KRELERES
— Wealth management product A — BEERAN Za)
(Note a) 27,187 —
— Wealth management product B — B EMB(Kith)
(Note b) 9,062 —
36,249 —

168 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

In September 2023, the Group invested HKD30,000,000
(equivalent to RMB27,187,000) in a private fund (“Private Fund
A"), which is a offshore private fund established in the Cayman
Islands. Pursuant to the subscription contract, the annualized
guaranteed return rate is 5.15% with guaranteed repayment of
investment principal. The investment objectives of the fund are
to invest in bank deposit, bonds, notes, national debt, and other
similar financial instruments. The Group recognised this
investment as financial assets measured at amortised cost since
initial subscription. Subsequently in March 2024, the Group had
redeemed all investment from this private fund and collected
the investment principal together with return amounted to
HKD30,231,000 (equivalent to RMB27,431,000). The amount of
the return collected upon the redemption of this fund is less
than the amount calculated based on the guaranteed return rate
of 5.15%. Up to the date of the financial statements, the Group
has requested for, but has not been able to obtain from, the
administrator and manager of the fund for explanation of the
shortfall.

In September 2023, the Group invested HKD10,000,000
(equivalent to RMB9,062,000) in a private fund (“Private Fund B"),
which was a private fund established in Cayman Island.
Pursuant to the subscription contract, the annualized
guaranteed return rate is 5.10% with guaranteed repayment of
investment principal. The investment objectives of the fund
were to invest in short-term money market instruments,
including banker's acceptance draft, bank deposit, national debt,
etc. The Group recognised this investment as financial assets
measured at amortised cost since initial subscription.
Subsequently in March 2024, the Group had redeemed all
investment from this private fund and collected the investment
principal together with return amounted to HKD10,099,000
(equivalent to RMB9,164,000). The amount of the return
collected upon the redemption of this fund is less than the
amount calculated based on the guaranteed return rate of
5.10%. Up to the date of the financial statements, the Group has
requested for, but has not been able to obtain from, the
administrator and manager of the fund for explanation of the
shortfall.
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7202349 F -+ 7N 5% 4% & 30,000,000
7 7T (& N A R #27,187,0007T) K
—EHAEES ((AEEEA])  HEAE
RESHEEXIHBEELEES R
BERBEAH FLERERBUEXRE
5.15% @ WRBEMNBERE - ZES
WIREBIEAREARITER &EF
ZE BEEREMEUSRHIA.H
A RIE A - NEB K ZIBIR A
REEBEXNNTENSREE - B
1%M2024F3 8 - REB B BRIZILE
EELWAAERE  YTWEIREAREE
[ @ #530,231,000/8 7T (HHERARE
27,431,0007T ) ° B B 3% 5 & B W BL A
B3R & 56 DA R 18 5.15% MR & U 2 &
AERBEE - EERMBHREBS
AEBEEREEANCIEREEZ
FRA - MRS U B A7

7202399 B - A& B K & 10,000,000
77T (FHE R AKR9,062,0007T) B Fh
SEZ((MHEEEB])  EARA=
HERYNILEES RERBA
2 FEREWREER5.10% © WIRE
BNRERS ZESHWREERR
REMMER TS T A - BHERTE
HER RITEX BEZ- 898
REUAR  AEB B ZAREERR
REBHEKATAENSREE - BEERR
202453 H - AEECEOZLEES
MRERE  LREIKE RS ER D
#210,099,0007% 7T (H & N AR
9,164,0007T) © f [0 3% £ 5 i YR A [
R R RIRIRS.10% KR FE Uz 5T
B sE -BEEVBHRREH &
SEEEREEARKEREZRR
R B ENEMETE -
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RE M |RME

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22 BERBESEEY

As at 31 December

M12831H
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T

Cash at bank and other financial TR IRIT R E M £ mkiE

institutions o 190,957 62,683
Cash on hand FHEIR® 19 21
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEYD 190,976 62,704

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following

currencies:

ReERREeFEMAATERE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR F T
Denominated in RMB RARETE 99,628 62,539
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 91,348 165
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEED 190,976 62,704

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the balances of cash and
cash equivalents are subject to rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

20234 k2022412318 - & &k
ReHFEMERARTHBEBFEME

SINEE B B AR Bl BOER AR

ZUMEEZERERAE —T-=FFRK
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e M |RME

23 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital of the Company

23

A K fit e

@@ ERABRERAK

Equivalent

Number of nominal value of

ordinary shares

ordinary share

ZERN
EEREE HEEE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Authorised: EIE
At 1 January 2023 MK2023%F1H1H 5,000,000 324
Subdivision of shares (Note (i) B&AD o 3% (M () 245,000,000 —
As at 31 December 2023 202312 A31H 250,000,000 324
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1 818 50,000 324
Subdivision of shares (Note 1.2(h)  B&3 D 4% (K1a£1.2(h) 4,950,000 —
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 5,000,000 324
Issued: BT
At 1 January 2023 20231 H1H 2,004,008 130
Subdivision of shares (Note (i) B 2 3 (B aE()) 98,196,392 —
Issue of shares pursuant to A EmmE&ETRA
the Listing 25,000,000 35
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12 A31H 125,200,400 165
At 1 January 2022 R2022%F1 818 20,000 130
Subdivision of shares (Note 7.2(h)  R&1n o ¥ (Ba£1.2(h)) 1,980,000 —
Issue of shares (Note 1.2(h)) BATRRAD (M1 aE1.2(h) 4,008 —*
As at 31 December 2022 202212 A31H 2,004,008 130

* Less than RMB1,000

(i) On 4 April 2023, each issued and unissued shares of par
value of US$0.01 of the Company was subdivided into 50
shares of par value of US$0.0002 each and, following
subdivision, the authorised share capital of the Company
became US$50,000 divided into 250,000,000 shares at a
par value of US$0.0002 each and the issued share capital
shall be US$20,040 divided into 100,200,400 shares of par

value of US$0.0002 each.

Annual Report 2023

* LR AR1,0007T

(i) MR20235F4 A48 - AR RIER
E{E0OIETWE BT R ARE
7 B 10 o ¥ B500 & IR (B

0.00023& 7T &9 ik 15

DFE

AR #YE TE IR A & 350,000
% 7T 9 £250,000,000% &F fx
[ {£0.00025 7T &) B 9 - e 7R
A A B AT A /20,0403
JT * 9 /100,200,400 % & i
{E0.0002& T K AR 15 °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME
23 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23 BRARE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Other reserves of the Group (b) XEBEMGEE
Capital Statutory
reserve reserve Total
=N EEEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®TRT AR®Tx

At 1 January 2023 M2023F1H81H 111,359 40,635 151,994

Contribution from shareholder REFE 1,567 — 1,567

Share repurchase (Note (i), (i) READBE [ (M) ~ (7)) (65,061) — (65,061)

Transfer to statutory reserves BT R

(Note (iii)) (KT 3£ (i) — 5,783 5,783

At 31 December 2023 "2023F12831H 47,865 46,418 94,283

At 1 January 2022 202251818 142,598 39,002 181,600

Capital injection from a new —(IFREEE

shareholder 3,510 — 3,510
Deemed distribution (Note 1.2(g) BIED IR (B17+1.2(2) (34,749) = (34,749)
Transfer to statutory reserves BB EETE RE

(Note (iii)) (B 77 i) = 1,633 1,633

At 31 December 2022 72022%12A31H 111,359 40,635 151,994

(i) During the period from July to September in 2023, the (i) 20237 R E9RA B - ANEH
Group repurchased an aggregate of 6,208,000 shares at A ZRRS.01VEB TR AT
average HK$8.01 per share on the open market for the % 88 B & ££6,208,0008% i 17
purpose of a share award scheme (note 24(b)). The AR H ZE s 8 (K
purchased shares, with total consideration (including 24(b)) - FTEER O EARE (B
transaction costs) of approximately HK$ 49,702,000 FER SR AN) #) /49,702,000
(equivalent to RMBA45,222,000), were considered as 7t (A8 & W A R #45,222,000
treasury shares of the Company. JC) R ARRNBEFR -

(i)  During the period from October to December in 2023, the (i)  2023%E10A =12 A HAM - A&
Group repurchased an aggregate of 3,498,600 shares at B LA %6188 TR A F
average HK$6.18 per share on the open market for the 5 M B A& 3,498,600 8% A%
purpose of cancelation in the future. The purchased B AHBEFHEZA B
shares, with total consideration (including transaction BHNRRE(BEXHKR)
costs) of approximately HK$ 21,630,000 (equivalent to #9 521,630,000 7T (A8 & A A
RMB19,839,000), were considered as treasury shares of R #19,839,0007T) * 8 AR A
the Company. Subsequently on 12 January 2024, the AIETF AR - BE1& PR20244F1 R
aforementioned shares had been cancelled. 128 - iR B o
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e EHRRME
23 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23 BARfFE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Other reserves of the Group (Continued) by AEBHMFEE (E)

(i) Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Companies Laws of the PRC and
the stipulated provisions of the articles of association of
subsidiaries with limited liabilities in the PRC,
appropriation of net profits (after offsetting accumulated
losses from prior years) should be made by these
companies to their respective Statutory Surplus Reserve
Funds and the Discretionary Reserve Funds before
distributions are made to the owners. The percentage of
appropriation to Statutory Surplus Reserve Fund is 10%.
The amount to be transferred to the Discretionary
Reserve Fund is determined by the equity owners of
these companies. When the balance of the Statutory
Surplus Reserve Fund reaches 50% of the registered
capital, such transfer needs not to be made. Both the
Statutory Surplus Reserve Fund and Discretionary Reserve
Fund can be capitalised as capital of an enterprise,
provided that the remaining Statutory Surplus Reserve
Fund shall not be less than 25% of the registered paid in
capital.

Also, in accordance with the Law of the PRC on
Enterprises with Foreign Investments and the stipulated
provisions of the articles of association of wholly owned
foreign subsidiaries in the PRC, appropriation from net
profits (after offsetting accumulated losses brought
forward from prior years) should be made by these
companies to their Respective Reserve Fund. The
percentage of net profit to be appropriated to the
Reserve Fund is not less than 10% of the net profit.
When the balance of the Reserve Fund reaches 50% of
the registered capital, such transfer needs are not made.
With approvals obtained from respective boards of
directors of these companies, the Reserve Fund can be
used to offset accumulated deficit or to increase capital.

(i)  SEEME

RB B A BDE K5 B & B
BEREEAREBEZAMAAR
AR RANBRBEFE R
BIRENATN  BARZEAT
ETERTEERNEERKRA
BeEREBEAEE  EE&GA
DETHEEAN - DETEER
BATEEHE D L A10% ° B
AEERATRENERAZFA
BIMEEBEA ANRTE © BIEE
BANTEEREIZIMER
50%F5 B 5 78 8 5% < 5 E & #R
REEREBRESATBER
EWER EFBREERBRA
BMEMBIREHEMELRD
25% °

o REBEFEERIERE
1 ZE A K R B S 08 A B
BRARERARGERE
REEFEAENRITBERR
EVAER - R ZE QA LT
RTEREE - DETRES
AR B DD RI10% - &
NIE & A R E B T & AR50%
BABAER - FEEZER
AXEEEENIER A
SR AIEEHERETBESIEE -

24 RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME AND 24 SREBOEMSEREEGE
SHARE AWARD SCHEME Bt
(@ RSU scheme (@ ZRFRHEMLE

The Company adopted a Restricted Share Unit Scheme
on 13 January 2022 (the “RSU Scheme”). On 18 January
2022, Mr. Sun, through a series of transactions, indirectly
transferred the entire issued share capital of Robert Sun
Holdings, which held 200 shares of the Company (the
“Underlying Shares”), to Kastle Limited (as the trustee),
for the execution of the RSU Scheme without
consideration. The Underlying Shares were subsequently
subdivided into 20,000 shares of par value of USDO0.01
each (Note 1.2(h)), representing approximately 1% of total
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2022.

172 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Annual Report 2023
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RKRABR2022F1B13B AR F
B HIR% 1 B st &) ([ 2R HIR% 1D
BETE]) o B2022F 1818
B BREEBEB RIS M
# ¥ ZERobert Sun Holdings (3% &
XA B 20088 A& ([AEEER% 13 1))
2B 77 AN E=Kastle Limited
(EAZFEAN)  UWEBEEHTR
PR HIR (D BEMI s 3 - B E
1% 4% 520,0000% F AL EE0.013=
TH 5 (H3E1.2(h) - EE R
2022F 12 A31B AR R B #ITHR
3 BBEEHI1% °
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REMBHRRME
24 RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME AND 24 ZREIRMEBMALTERKRMG R

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) Bhat &l (&

(@ RSU scheme (Continued) (@) ZREIRMEMTE (H)
According to RSU Scheme, each restricted share unit RBEZRGIRGDEMETE - &)
(“RSU") represents one Underlying Share, and represent a 2R H AR B ([ =R 6D B
conditional right granted to any selected person under UDREX—RBEBARGD  KKZ
this scheme to obtain shares of the Company (i.e. SPEIE T AR A TR HA
equity-settled scheme), less any tax, stamp duty and BIEGER (B A =& E 5T
other charges applicable, as determined by the Board in ) - ABAS AR D R HBR (E ] B
its absolute discretion. B PEREEMERERHR

H(BESEE2EMNBEAE) °
Pursuant to the RSU Scheme, the Underlying Shares were BEZR G MDECMTE - &
within the Company’s control until the shares are vested MEKEEBNR2HEHE 2 H
unconditionally to the participants and hence were BRHBEARRIRNIZESZT
considered as treasury shares of the Company in WEE W RAEARFNETR
substance. On 31 March 2023, the Company had granted B o 20233 H318 * AR 7
all RSUs to Mr. Yang, one of the directors of the BEMARFIER —BESHEAE
Company. The fair value of each RSU HK$10.6 was REFBXBREIRG BN - T
estimated by taking reference to the market price of the ZRRFIR D B AFER10.6/5
Company's shares on grant date under market approach. UL B MISEK 2 ZER QAR
The market price is less the present value of expected MR B BRI TE M (G5 o B
dividends as the grantee has no right to them. The RSU RAERAEEESRE  WMi%
Scheme are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 10% BEAEHRENIRE - ZRH
of the Underlying Share respectively on each anniversary AR fn B8 5T EIZR A IR HH B HA B 5t
dates of the grant date (i.e. 31 March of each year from £ FE B (B120234F £20334F
2023 to 2033) provided that the grantee has completed B 43H310) & H B A (9 10% 8
his services up to each of vesting schedule. HEERAESIEL - Al AER
AB TR E S HE R E &R
% o
The Details of the RSUs granted to Mr. Yang for the year HZE2023F 12831 ILFE @ [
ended 31 December 2023 are set forth in the following BREREZRERMEMFRE
table. As at 31 December 2023, none of shares are R T ERET - R20234F 12 A 31
vested, forfeited or exercised. B #MEROCESS - #L Wk
AT o
Number of share options
BREHE
Lapsed/ As at
exercise As at Granted cancelled 31
Name or category price per 1 January during Options during  December
of participant Date of grant Vesting period share 2023 the year  exercised the year 2023
SEEME R R2023F BT FRE  R2023F
= & 5l # i A8 BELH TEERK 1818 FARH BRE AW S 128318
Director
)
Mr. Yang 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 to = — 1,000,000 = — 1,000,000
31 March 2033
BrsE 2023534318  2024F3A31BZ
2033438315
EUFEMERERAT —B-=FFHR 173
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e M |RME

24 RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME AND 24
SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

(b) Share award scheme

H IR A0 BB 5T 8 K IR 40 88
2 (%)
(b) BHREEE

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 26 June 2023, a
share award scheme was adopted (the “2023 Scheme”).

The Company operates the 2023 Scheme for the
purposes of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants. The 2023 Scheme became effective on
26 June 2023 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Under the 2023 Scheme, the Board are authorised,
at their absolute discretion, to invite any employees of
the Group and any persons who have contributed to the
Group in the past and/or are in the interests of the
long-term growth of the Group. Pursuant to the 2023
Scheme, each award gives the holder the right to
subscribe for ordinary share in the Company, which
constitutes as a equity-settle scheme.

On 26 June 2023, the Company has appointed a trustee
to assist with the administration for the scheme. As at
31 December 2023, the vesting condition has not yet
declared by the Board and no share awards were

RIR X 2023F6 A26 H 3 B Y R
A DR — IR R R 2
([20235 5t 811) -

ARBEE2023F5 8 - HAR
Y RNREAER2EE - 2023F
5T 217 2023F 6 A26 B £ - &
ERTTBUBSERT - TRAIE KA
ZEHMETFRABER - RE
2023458 EFGERELE
RENBSEBFASEITMIE
B -URBEHAKEESE &R
R/BRBREHAERAREERE
M #) E [ A £ o R E20234F &t
g SNEBETHEAREAR
REEBROERN  EEKER
4

|
-
mEEE -

M2023F6 8268 AR A B &
E—R2ZTEABEEARTE -
MN2023F12A31H - EEEH ok
EHEBIEM - B IR 52023

granted under the 2023 Scheme. FE B8R LRI 228/ -

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 BEZRHEHMENKIE
The Group rEE
As at 31 December
M®12H318
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
Trade payables (Note (@) B 5 N FRIE (H i @) 35,145 52,066
Other payables: H fib B 5K78 ¢
— Accrued staff costs — EETEITA 65,652 79,977
— Other tax payables — Hih I HIE 12,685 16,449
— Refund on pension return to customers — A& FPREL S (RE
(Note (b)) (K1aEb)) 9,466 48,015
— Payable for listing expenses — B EmAX — 4,098
— Accrual expenses — BRI 1,974 922
— Reimbursement and refund payables —— &R £ 2008 MR 3K 924 712
— Others — HAb 688 793
91,389 150,966
126,534 203,032
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25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)
The Group (Continued)

(@)

The trade and other payables are denominated in RMB
and the carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

The ageing analysis of the trade payables by invoice date
is as follows:

RE M |RME

25 BESRHEHMESRE (E)

AEHE (&)
@ EHREMEMREUAREST
6 BRREEELAFEBE -

BHRNFAREZAMELD

Up to 90 days = &90H

BRER D ATL T
As at 31 December
M12A31H

2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEF T
35,145 52,066

Due to the impact of COVID-19, the Group was reduced
from social security payments by the government for
certain periods during the year of 2020. The total
payment, received from customers related to marketers
assignment service for settling the social insurance
obligation but subsequently reduced by the government,
was approximately RMB70,788,000. The Group had
refunded RMB22,773,000 to customers since the year of
2020 (the “Refund”), and, reversed the refundable
amount of RMB38,549,000 as other gain for the year
ended 31 December 2023 because management
considered the limitation of action and legal obligation on
certain pension refund to customers was expired (the
“Reversal”). After the Refund and Reversal, the remaining
refundable balances amounted to approximately
RMB9,466,000 as at 31 December 2023 (as at
31 December 2022: RMB48,015,000).

The Company

(b) FCOVID-19%2 £ - 7~ & B 722020
F @ E T EIRE R BT R D S A
HRMNH - BEEEF KREE
EHABREREALEELRE
5B BE 18 E R IT R S B0 A5 SR AR EE
45 AR #70,788,0007T © A= E
BEE2020FBARFEEARE
22,773,0007C ([$REFHKIE]) » WH
EEERBFAFALATSE
BEETHERBAEIEEEES
& v o A A & = 2023F 12 A 31
BIEFERBAEERBEARE
38,549,000 70 B fEE fib U zs ([ #E 5]
FRIA]) o AR IE FE K B B R E
% > P2023F 12 A31H & R A
REBEHRN B AR L466,0007T
(R2022%F 128318 : AR
48,015,0007T) °

NN

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBF T

Other payables: L FE A RIR

— Accrual Expenses — B X 100 —
— Payable for listing expenses — BN EWmRAX — 3,915
— Others — Hfth 92 =
192 3915
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e M |RME

26 BORROWINGS

26 fa K

Current, secured
— Bank borrowings

B BEA
— RITERX

As at 31 December

MW12H831H
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
55,000 61,273

(@)

176 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings, which are
all due within one year, approximate their fair values. The
bank borrowings are denominated in RMB and the
weighted average interest rates were 3.95% and 4.18%
per annum as at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, borrowings were guaranteed
by:

(i) Corporate guarantee provided by a subsidiary of the
Company.

(i)  Guarantee provided by a governmental guarantor
specially set for small and medium-sized
enterprises.

As at 31 December 2022, borrowings were guaranteed
by:

(i) Corporate guarantees provided by certain
subsidiaries of the Company;

(i)  Guarantee provided by a governmental guarantor
specially set for small and medium-sized
enterprises.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of
its borrowing for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

Annual Report 2023

PIEE—FAEMBITERDER
R ERERFERL - RITHE
RIAARBEGE R2023F K
2022412 A 31 B 89 hn#E ¥ 15 F A
5 5l /33.95% 5% 4.18% °

202312318 - ERKBEURT
ZIRPER

()  ARE—FHHBARMAEH]
NAER ©

(i) Rl AH N DT RO BT
FERAPTERHEER -

2022612318 - ERBURT
ZIRPER

()  ZARBETHBRRMEH]
NEFER

(i) Rl AH N DT RO BT
FERAPTEREER -

B Z 20234 2022412 A31H
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RE M |RME

27 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 27 HZREeBERERME

OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Cash generated from operations @)

REFRBRE

Year ended 31 December

BZE128318LLEE

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBFIT
Cash flows from operating RETHFBRERE
activities
Profit before income tax B BT 15 %1 Bl & A 19,008 76,598
Adjustments for: AT HEELFE :
Finance income (Note 10) B TSI A (B3 10) (4,920) (162)
Finance costs (Note 10) R TSRS (B3 10) 3,360 3,073
Fair value gains from FVPL (Note 6) R B3 AFET ABZREH
D EWS (B at6) — (753)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of assets HEBEREE (M)
(Note 6) (Kiate) 4 (253)
Amortisation and depreciation BN E (Mt 7)
(Note 7) 3,135 6,004
Shares of (profit)/losses from PR AR CEF), B8
associates — net (Note 16) — FR (W aE16) (72) 200
Refund on pension return to MEFEEMTERR
customers (Note 6) (H1:#6) (38,549) —
Net foreign exchange gain (Note 6) SME W& %58 (H7it6) (7,069) —
Impairment losses on trade BORWFHIE AHEEK
receivables, contract assets and H A fE W SR IB R (B B 1R
other receivables 372 553
(24,731) 85,260
Changes in working capital: EEESHTY
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 e U FRIE R 66,539 47,641
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e - HMEWKRIE R
other receivables and B FRIER (38 )
prepayments 923 (1,521)
Decrease/(increase) in contract AHEERD (M)
assets 26,486 (8,103)
Decrease in contract costs A R AR (501) 232
Decrease in trade and other B 5 I H M 5RI80R
payables (40,418) (31,164)
Increase in contract liabilities AR BEIE N 401 3,561
Net cash generated from REMSRTFH
operations 28,699 95,906
EHFERMERARAT —S-=FFR 177
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e M |RME

27 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 27
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial liabilities reconciliation

ReRE

(b) EREEHER

Liabilities from financing activities

B R M A ()

Other assets

REEHELNAR HitEE
Other
financial
Amounts due Cash and assets at
Llease to related Dividend cash amortised
Borrowings liabilities parties payables Sub-total  equivalents cost
RBERE
THEH
Eft RBék  Htidm
&R HEAEE BEAITZE  EGRS Mt BEEEY EE @i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETE ARETR AR®TR ARETx ARMTR ARETR AR%Tn ARET:
As at 1 January 2023 ®2023%181R (61,273) (2,374) (1,447) - (65,094) 62,704 — (2,390)
Cash flows Reig
— Proceeds from bank — ROTEHAERE
horrowings (85,000) - - — (85,000) - - (85,000
— Repayment of bank borrowings  — BB RTER 91,273 - - - 91,273 — - 91,273
— Dividend distribution — REAIK - - - 4,589 4,589 - - 4,589
— Advance from a shareholder of  — AR FARRE
the Company — — 1,447 - 1,447 — — 1,447
— Subscription of financial assets — RELREE - - - - - — 36,249 36,249
— Interest paid for borrowings  — EXHEHF & 2,003 — — — 2,003 - - 2,003
— Proceeds from the Listing — FWFBERE — - - - - 234,002 - 234,002
— Other cash flow —HpRERE — 2,648 - - 2,648 (113,172) — (110,524
Non-cash movement : FReEY
— Additions of right-of-use assets — FTEEREEE - (445) - - (445) - - (445)
— Declaration of dividend —5kKRE - - - (4,589) (4,589) - - (4,589)
— Interest expenses —fIBAX (2,003) (65) — - (2,068) - - (2,068)
— Net foreign exchange gain — HEWHFE - - - - - 7,442 - 7,442
As at 31 December 2023 R2023%12A31R (55,000) (236) - - (55,236) 190,976 36,249 171,989
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RE M |RME

27 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 27 HSREHEHRE XM (&)
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial liabilities reconciliation (Continued) by SRBEEYHERE)
Liabilities from financing activities Other assets
REEHELNAR AtEE
Amounts due Cash and Financial
lease  torelated  Payable to cash assets at
Borrowings liabilities parties  shareholders Sub-total  equivalents FVPL Total
RAF{a
JEfT JEfT BeRk  AB&H
B HEAE BEAITE  REHA it REEEM  eREE &zt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETT ARMTT ARETT ARETR

As at 1 January 2022 R202F1818 (54,800) (5911) — — (60,711) 20,317 4,000 (36,394)
Cash flows Reng
— Proceeds from bank — ROTBHAERE

horrowings (61,273) — — — (61,273) — — (61,273)
— Repayment of bank borrowings  — BERTER 54,800 = = = 54,300 = = 54,800
— Deemed distribution to — RIEMBRES R

shareholders — — 27,930 6,769 34,749 — — 34,749
— Advance from a shareholder of — ARARRE

the Company — — (1,447) — (1,447) — — (1447)
— Subscription of financial assets — REEREE = = = = = = 683,800 683,800
— Redemption of financial assets — BRI REE - - - - - - (688,553) (688,553)
— Interest paid for borrowings ~ — BXFHEHFIE 2,093 = = = 2,093 = = 2,093
— Other cash flow —EhREReE - 499 — — 4.9 42,387 — 47,378
Non-cash movement : FRLEH:
— Additions of right-of-use assets — HEEREAE = (3,143) = = (3,143) = = (3,143)
— Termination of leases —RIRE = 1,954 = = 1,954 = = 1,954
— Interest expenses — flgRx (2,093) (265) = = (2,359) = = (2,359)
— Fair value gains from FVPL — RERATEFABRN

AFEKRE - - — - — — 753 753

— Deemed distribution to — RIEMBRES R

shareholders (ote 1.2) (Hit1.29) - - (27,980) (6769) (34,749) - - (34,749)
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%12A318 (61,273) (2,374) (1,447) - (65,094) 62,704 — (2,390)

(c) Non-cash transactions ) ¥EBEEXRS
The cost of leased properties of approximately #H 220234 K20224%12 8318 It
RMB445,000 and RMB3,143,000 (Note 15) were capitalised FE HEMENKEDRINR
as the right-of-use assets during the vyears ended AR MA445,000T K A R ¥
31 December 2023 and 2022 respectively. 3,143,0007T (Fi5E15) B B AL 1E
ERAEEE -
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28 THE COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 28 AATBMBEBMRARRERSEE
POSITION AND EQUITY MOVEMENT r

AR
(@) The Company’s statement of financial position @@ FARABHBRRRMT P
is as follows: g

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2023 2022
2023 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M aE AR¥T T AREEFTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset IRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KRB RRMIEE (@) 298,782 298,782
Current asset REBEE
Prepayments SR E ] 19 1,598 5,407
Amounts due from a subsidiary &Y — RS HT B A &1 H
IR 34,856 —
Other Financial assets at RS AN FT 28 E At
amortised cost TREE 36,249 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREFEY 87,655 —
Total assets EEHAE 459,140 304,189
EQUITY R
Share capital fi% A 23 165 130
Share premium B 1 5 (B 213,645 —
Other reserves H A 235,288 298,782
Accumulated losses RETEE (25,884) (22,306)
Total equity BRBE 423,214 276,606
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to a subsidiary AN NS B (b) 35,734 23,668
Other payables o FE T 50IR 25 192 3,915
Total liabilities EEH4E 35,926 27,583
Total equity and liabilities ERREEEE 459,140 304,189
(@ Investment in a subsidiary represents the investment in @@  RMHEBAFMEEERChannel
Channel Power Plus Inc. and its subsidiaries at the Power Plus Inc. X EKIEB A 7]
aggregate net asset values of the Listing Business at date HIRE REMEBREMET
of completion of the Reorganisation (Note 1.2(h)). BRI E EFEAEE (M
E1.2(h) °
(b)  As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, amount due to a (b) 720234 &2022912A318 -
subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on FEASTFT /B R Rl 3R IE A -
demand. REBBRENRER -
Sun Guangjun Yang Hong
Director Director
EZE EZE
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28 THE COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 28 AATBMBMRRATRRERSEE

POSITION AND EQUITY MOVEMENT x* (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company: (b)y AABREET :

Other Accumulated
reserves losses Total

H {7 RitBR #Et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®T

Balance at 1 January 2023 R2023F1H18BM

F353 298,782 (22,306) 276,476

Loss for the year FAEE — (3,578) (3,578)
Contribution from EERIEE

shareholder 1,567 — 1,567

Share repurchase f& 15 B8 [ (65,061) — (65,061)

Balance at 31 December 2023F128318H
2023 £=3-2 235,288 (25,884) 209,404

Balance at 1 January 2022 R2022F1H1HH

iEER — (5,121) (5,121)

Loss for the year FAEE — (17,185) (17,185)
Reorganisation of the Group A&EEEH

(Note 1.2(h)) (Kt 5E1.2(h)) 298,782 — 298,782

Balance at 31 December 202212831 W
2022 ZeR 298,782 (22,306) 276,476
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 AR S

The following is a summary of the transactions carried out LA 7% B 220234 [ 202212 H31H

between the Group and its related parties in the ordinary IFFEAREEEEREE TN BT EKR

course of business during the years ended 31 December 2023 BHREITAR S KR 20234F K& 2022412

and 2022, and balances arising from related party transactions R3INBMBEB IR ZEHROBE -

as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

(@ Names and relationships with related parties (@ BEBIME BERBRE
The following companies and individuals are related AR AR R A8 A B ELZE 2023F
parties of the Group that had balances and/or K202 1231 B IEFEHEAE
transactions with the Group during the years ended EHEEHE RGN AEE
31 December 2023 and 2022. A B

B HEAEE R

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group HaZB

Mr. Sun Director and controlling REE EERITRKE
shareholder

Ningbo Kuwei Shareholder of Plus FIREER REERFET E
(Shanghai) now comprising L4EM IR ARER
the Group

Shanghai Puwei Shareholder of Plus EBER REBRKHETE
(Shanghai) now comprising LEM IR ARER
the Group

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EEBEINXZ
The Group had the following transactions with related N5 B E £2023F K% 2022F 12 A
parties for the years ended 31 December 2023 and NBLFEEHEBAEAERUTR
2022. 5 °

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALFE
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ARETIT
Interest income received from RERIATHFERA
— Mr. Sun — BREAE 107 —
Deemed distribution to RAERIRR R 7k
shareholders (note 1.2(g)) (H5t1.2(8))
— Mr. Sun — BREE — 22,407
— Ningbo Kuwei — BFEER — 3,880
— Shanghai Puwei — EBEXR — 1,693
— 27,980
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

()

(d)

Balances with related parties

Particulars of balances with related parties are as
follows:

RE M |RME

29 BEBARS ()

(c)

SE BB 75 BV R BR
ERRAEE T AR IB AT

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Amounts due to related parties of FE{S 25 B BA B 75 5K 1
the Group
Mr. Sun (Note (i) B (B1aE0) — 1,447
(i) As at 31 December 2022, amount due to Mr. Sun is (i) R2022%12 A31H » Ef & %

non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free, repayable on
demand and approximate to its fair value. The non-trade
amount due to Mr. Sun was waived as shareholder
contribution on 31 March 2023.

Key management compensation

The directors consider the key management personnel to
be the members of the Board of Directors of the
Company who have responsibilities for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group. Their
compensations are disclosed in Note 9(a).

30 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(@)

On 6 March 2024, a subsidiary of the Group issued several
cashier's checks for a total amount of HK42,000,000
(equivalent to RMB38,122,000) (the “Cashier's Check”)
with itself as the payee from a commercial bank in Hong
Kong for the purpose of assisting in proving the financial
capacity of the Group in order to meet the capital
verification requirements for a potential acquisition,
which is still in the initial negotiation stage and has not
made any substantive progress as of the date of this
report.

During the period from October to December in 2023, the
Group purchased an aggregate of 3,498,600 shares at
average HK$6.18 per share on the open market for the
purpose of cancellation in the future. The purchased
shares, with total consideration (including transaction
costs) of approximately HK$21,630,000 (equivalent to
RMB19,839,000), were considered as treasury shares of
the Company. Subsequently on 12 January 2024, the
aforementioned shares had been cancelled.

Other subseqguent events are disclosed in note 21 and
note 23(b)(ii).

(d)

EREARFEZEE  EIE
A28 RERKEEREA
RFERE - BN RLERNSE
B 5 RIEM2023F3 318 £

TEEEASHMH
E=ZRARTIEEEAERALRT
E=gKE REAAMRE I
BREHAEENXBES - )
5 B R BN P FE9(a) IR BR

30 Hi&E1|E

(@)

EZRMEEZERERAE

R2024E3 868 @ NEBE — KM
BRAEEE —REERITEE
) 5K 48 & 58 542,000,000 7T (46
BN A R #38,122,0007T) B 81T
ARE([RITAZE]) o« SRITARZEU
TABNEERBARANE ° %
BIRTAZET AR FRAEERN
e UmE — BB EKE
B EEK - FHEAREHE
ZU BB RV K IR EL - &
RIS EMEEEER -

M2023F10H £12H Biffl - A&
BN RF™IS L6187 T
8 B & £3,498,600 0 A% 1 A fit
B&EHE - T E RN AKE
(B R 5K A) #921,630,00078
7T (B & B A K #19,839,0007T)
BEREARREFR - BEER
20241 R128 - LAtk fp B &
B

H o1& & = BT 5221 RBT &
23(b)(ii) F K 2 °
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31 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of other potentially material
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

31.1 Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives or, in
case of leasehold improvements, the shorter lease term,
as follows:

Leasehold improvement

31

HitBEEXRSTBERME

RSB A B % AR A B IS R S A
RAMNEMWEEEASHARK - KA
FHHS  REBRRNAERVAEFE

311 ERRE
BAE K SR 12 IEE 0 B A 37 2 7
E-ErRADEBEZESHEE
HEEGR S -

HgMKAEREE R HENR
AR A 25 7] BE R AN R B R 5%
HERARERFEHFTENBR
T HEHAEEREEXER
RBYNEE(ER) - EER
DHBREEA LTER - i
EREREEENHTERMEN B
REEmPEERARE -

B KkFRETEREREZE
B EATAEFAIERFHRA (K
MREEMERE  ARRED
HEMA) D BEKAEHAFIERE
B :

Shorter of lease term or 3 years

HEYHEEE FAHSHIFE (UBREERE)
Office equipment 3 years
MR 3%
Motor vehicles 5 years
qE 5%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “Other gains — net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

184 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Annual Report 2023
-

BEEMNFGEENERFHN
BWMEHHRTIAERN  XIEH

& EREESNE MG TR
& 7R - Rl BB 5 B 2 B (B OB
EHAYE SRR (HE27)

& W BRI IR BT SR
RERREET  IN&Ea2@E
WaR A ElaE — FEIP




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

31.2 Intangible assets

(@)

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unigue software products controlled by the
Group are recognised as intangible assets where
the following criteria are met:

o it is technically feasible to complete the
software so that it will be available for use;

o management intends to complete the software
and use or sell it;

o there is an ability to use or sell the software;

o it can be demonstrated how the software will
generate probable future economic benefits;

o adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the software are available; and

o the expenditure attributable to the software
during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as
part of the software include employee costs and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at
which the asset is ready for use. As at 31
December 2023 and 2022, intangible assets were
mainly consisted of software purchased from third
parties. There were no development costs meeting
above criteria and capitalised as intangible assets
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

/\\

m;E

(a)

RE M |RME

REFBERME

SI2EREE

s E R

B4 R B4 A2 Fr AR R D B AR
RELRER/FAX - 8FF
B AT R $%@% %IJ
Al Rl R B R e E A RR
Ft BRI EY B B G R 3R
RERREVEE

s RERMHEEAME
A ERIM AT

e TEFEHERERERX
AR

. BRNERABEHR
®iF

BERE B AR B an ]

A AT BE 3R Y R R

gk

s  HBARHAMIIM BB
I 7] A 3 %
i &

s REHERBEHAE
HFISRER] SEHDAT & o

BN REM— DM ER
FEAG AR B 418 B A AR K 48
AEERXHEERD

B& A/ AR A AR
BEVFEE VWAZEER
HH{E BRI 8 - 20234
20229 12H8318 » &
BEXTZREAE=FBE
BB e B E2023F &
2022412 A318 IEFE -
WK AT S iZEE
MEBEFEEETER
1t »
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186 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Such determination is
made on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement, regardless of whether the arrangements
take the legal form of a lease.

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessee with
respect to certain leased offices.

Leases are initially recognised as a right-of-use asset and
corresponding liability at the date of which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset's
estimated useful life and the lease term. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life.

Annual Report 2023

REMBHRRME
31 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 31 HinBEERETTHEHRE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (%)
(CONTINUED)
31.2 Intangible assets (Continued) 128 EE (&)
(b) Research and development (b) FFEE
Research expenditure and development A £ (@) BATE R H
expenditure that do not meet the criteria in (a) T 35 58 S A 2 AR B T 3R A
above are recognised as expenses as incurred. ¥ o ERIER BRI AL
Development costs previously recognised as RAREBRARTS R A
expenses are not recognised as an asset in a BEE °
subsequent period.
(c) Amortisation method and period (0 BEFERHMB
The Group amortises intangible assets with a AEETEATHRRAER
limited useful life using the straight-line method FEEIHAARERAFHNE
over the following periods: FEEE :
. Computer software  2-5 years . FTEMEY 2ZE5F
31.3 Leases 31.3&

AEEEBETE AL HEHA#AE
EZ - BHRNERTHESE
MBEKE - i —EX S % —
%5‘]5&%%&#3&%%‘2@ i}
cREBENEBERTHNN
?}E’\JEWEHWE& - Niw A T
SEEErAMEE -

AEE(ERABRA)RETHE
WAERTLEE W

HEVPERARERREE X
EHEEEAH# K’Elﬁﬁ%“‘
ERABEEAE SEHEMNK
ERERMBRA - Eﬂ’lﬁﬁz
AREMARIBR R - AFTE
& HE B RSN E B
ERBEENIREEM
ERFHREMNEEENER
EE - -MARESIEEESTT
EEEEERE AEREEES
RIEEEENAERFRAFNE -
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A IR RMEE
31 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 31 HttBEE RS HERE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)
31.3 Leases (Continued) 313 E (&)

HEELEMEERRRIFER
BFfE -HEREEFAENTHEE
Ny FHRE

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option;

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option; and

lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

BENR(BREEEEEMN
B RAT A e U FA B 22 R

ERIEHE IR T R E
3

RISRBEFER T HAHE AT
HA PR 5R0R

BRESZENITEERS (H
AT A B IR M e 1T XA
M) s

X IETHE R &SR (s A
EIRR R AT ATE %R
) R

HEARBENFETBESRIE
AR EHENEEE N
HERK -
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31 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

31.3 Leases (Continued)

31

HiBEEXRSTBERME

)

31.3 € (&)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the Group's incremental borrowing rate, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities;

0 any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received,

o any initial direct costs; and

0 restoration costs, if any.

Payments associated with short-term leases are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense. Short-

term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less.
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